
 

 
 

Date: 03.09.2025 
 
To, To, 
The Secretary, The Secretary, 
Listing Department Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 
BSE Limited 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata-700001 
P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,  
Mumbai – 400 001  
  
Scrip Code - 538857 
 

Scrip Code - 029467 

Sub: Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 and Notice of the 36th Annual General Meeting 
 
Dear Sir/ Madam, 
 
We would like to inform you that 36th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company will be held 
on Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 3:00 pm (IST) at “B B D Bag Professional Association”, “Commerce 
House”, 2A Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 8th Floor, Room No: 1, Kolkata-700013. 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 30 and 34(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, please find enclosed herewith a copy of   
 

 Notice of AGM including instructions for e-voting and  
 Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 
Aforesaid documents are also available on the website of the Company i.e. 
https://www.scintilla.co.in/  
 
The remote e-voting period commences on 23rd September, 2025 9.00 A.M. (IST) and ends on 25th 
September, 2025 5.00 P.M. (IST). During the period, members holding shares either in physical form or 
in dematerialized form, as on 19th September, 2025 i.e., Cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. 
Those members, who are attending the AGM at the venue and have not cast their vote on the 
Resolutions through remote e-voting, shall be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 
Thanking you, 
 
Yours faithfully, 
For Scintilla Commercial & Credit Ltd  
 
 
 
Priyanka Mohta 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 
Encl: As above  
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,
th

Your Director's take pleasure in presen�ng the 36  (Thirty Sixth) Annual Report of the Company along 
st

with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended as on 31  March, 2025.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
During the year under review, your company recorded a total income of Rs. 6214.66 (in thousands) as 
compared to Rs. 5959.71 (in thousands) in the previous financial Year. The profit for the same period 
stood at Rs. 344.94 (in thousands) as compared to loss of Rs. 1688.16 (in thousands) in the previous 
financial year. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There was no change in the nature of business of the company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
The Company's business ac�vity primarily falls within a single business segment i.e., Investment and 
Finance. The analysis on the performance of the industry, the Company, internal control systems, risk 
management are presented in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is presented forming 
part of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Equity Shares:

st
The paid-up Equity Share Capital as on 31  March, 2025 was Rs. 1,00,277.77 (in thousands). There was no 
change in the Share Capital during the year under review.

Amount in ‘000 

Par�culars  Year ended as on 

31st March, 2025 

Year ended as on 

31st March, 2024 

Total Income  6214.66 5959.71 

Total Expenses  6139.29 7760.19 

Profit or Loss before Extraordinary Excep�onal items    75.36 (1800.48) 

Profit or Loss before tax 75.36 (1800.48) 

Less: Tax Expenses  (269.58) 112.32 

Profit or Loss a�er Tax  344.94 (1688.16) 

Other Comprehensive Income (152.31) (225.00) 

Total Comprehensive Income  192.63 (1913.16) 

EPS (Basic & Diluted) 0.03 (0.17) 
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Sweat Equity Shares:
In terms of Sub-rule (13) of Rule 8 of The Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the 
Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares.

Differen�al Vo�ng Rights: 
In terms of Rule 4(4) of The Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules, 2014), the Company has not 
issued any share with Differen�al Vo�ng Rights.

Employee Stock Op�ons:
In terms of Rule 12(9) of The Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules, 2014), the Company has 
not issued any Employee Stock Op�ons.

DIVIDEND
Your Director's have not recommended any dividend for the year under review.

Transfer of unpaid &unclaimed Dividends & Shares to Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund (IEPF)

Pursuant to Sec�ons 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Educa�on and 
Protec�on Fund Authority (Accoun�ng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”) there was 
no unclaimed/unpaid dividend, hence the company is not required to transfer any amount to Investor 
Educa�on and Protec�on Fund.

RESERVES
Since, the Company has earned income during the profit under review, Rs. 68.99 (in thousands) were 
transferred to the Statutory Reserve as per Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT
There are no material changes or commitments that took place a�er the close of financial year �ll date 
which will have any material or significant impact on the financials of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO
Par�culars as prescribed under Sub-Sec�on 3(m) of Sec�on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding energy conserva�on and technology absorp�on is 
not applicable to the Company.

During the year under review, there was no inflow or ou�low of foreign exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has a risk management framework comprising risk governance structure and defined risk 
management process. The risk governance structure of the Company is a formal organiza�on structure 
with defined roles and responsibili�es for risk management. The risks exis�ng in the internal and external 
environment are periodically iden�fied and reviewed, based on which, the cost of trea�ng risks is 
assessed and risk treatment plans are devised.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES
The provisions of Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social 
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Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, are not applicable on the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
The Company being a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC), the provisions of Sec�on 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of the Companies (Mee�ngs of Board and its Power), Rules, 2014 
are not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
All transac�ons entered with Related Par�es during the financial year were on an arm's length basis and 
were in ordinary course of business and the provision of Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
a�racted. There are no materially significant related party transac�ons during the period under review 
made by the Company with Promoters, Directors or other designated person which may have a poten�al 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Thus, disclosure in Form AOC- 2 is not required. 
However, details of all related party transac�ons are given in Notes to Financial Statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES AND MANAGEMENT
Composi�on:
The composi�on of the Board of Directors and its Commi�ees, viz., Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee and Stakeholders' Rela�onship Commi�ee are cons�tuted in accordance with 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015 [“SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015”], wherever applicable. The details are provided in 
Corporate Governance Report which forms the part of the Annual Report.

Appointment
On recommenda�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, the Board at their mee�ng held on 
02.09.2025, approved the appointment of Mrs. Meena Agarwal (DIN: 11276790) as Addi�onal Non-
Execu�ve Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 02.09.2025 who shall hold office �ll the conclusion 
of ensuing Annual General Mee�ng, subject to approval of Members at the ensuing Annual General 
Mee�ng of the Company.

Cessa�on/Resigna�on
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, since the second term of Mr. Vidhu Bhushan 
Verma (DIN: 00555238) as Non-Execu�ve Independent Director has expired at the Annual General 
Mee�ng, he has tendered his resigna�on from the office of director. Further, the Board has accepted his 
resigna�on at their mee�ng held on 30th August, 2024.

Re�rement by Rota�on
Pursuant to Sec�on 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, at least two–third of the total number of Directors 
(excluding independent directors) shall be liable to re�re by rota�on.

The Independent Directors hold office for a fixed term of not exceeding five years from the date of their 
appointment and are not liable to re�re by rota�on.

Accordingly, Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal (DIN: 00468744), Director, liable to re�re by rota�on, re�res from 
the Board this year and, being eligible, has offered himself for re–appointment. 

The brief resume and other details rela�ng to Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal (DIN: 00468744) who is proposed 
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to be re-appointed, as required to be disclosed under Regula�on 36(3) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, is incorporated in the annexure to the no�ce calling 
ensuing Annual General Mee�ng.

Mee�ngs of the Board & Commi�ees:
stThe details of Board and Commi�ee Mee�ngs held during the Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2025 

and the a�endance of the Directors are set out in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of 
this report. The maximum �me gap between any two Board Mee�ngs was not more than 120 days as 
required under SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, Companies 
Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard on Mee�ngs of the Board of Directors.

The details of mee�ng of Independent Directors are set out in the Corporate Governance Report which 
forms part of this report.

Declara�on by Independent Directors
The Company has received requisite declara�ons/ confirma�ons from all the Independent Directors 
confirming their independence as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015. The Board relies on their declara�on of 
independence.

Familarisa�on Programme for Independent Directors
Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, the Company has formulated a programme for familiarising the 
Independent Directors, their roles, rights, responsibili�es in the Company, nature of the industry in which 
the Company operates, business model of the Company etc. through various ini�a�ves.

Further, at the �me of appointment of an Independent Director, the company issues a formal le�er of 
appointment outlining his/ her role, func�on, du�es and responsibili�es as a director. The details of 
programmes for familiarisa�on for Independent Directors are available on the website of the 
Company .www.scin�lla.co.in

Annual Evalua�on of Board's Performance
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, the Board of Directors has carried out an annual evalua�on 
of its own performance, board commi�ees and individual directors. The details are provided in Corporate 
Governance Report which forms the part of the Annual Report.

Directors' Responsibility Statement:In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, your Directors state that:

a) in the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards had been followed 
along with proper explana�on rela�ng to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accoun�ng policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit / loss of the company 
for that period;
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c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and 
for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
e)    the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were opera�ng effec�vely; and

f)    the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
There was no change in the composi�on of Key Managerial Personnel during the year under review.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to 
the Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud 
or viola�on of the Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. It aims to provide an avenue for 
employees through this policy to raise their concerns on any viola�on of legal or regulatory 
requirements, suspicious fraud, misfeasance, misrepresenta�on of any financial statements and reports. 
It also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee. The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle 
Blower Policy is being made available on the Company's website .www.scin�lla.co.in

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board, on the 
recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, has framed a Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Policy for selec�on, appointment and remunera�on of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel including criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of 
Directors. The policy has been duly approved and adopted by the Board, pursuant to the 
recommenda�ons of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee. The Remunera�on Policy has been 
uploaded on the Company's website . Further the salient features of the policy are www.scin�lla.co.in
given in the Report of Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

ANNUAL RETURN
st

The Annual Return of the Company as on 31  March, 2025 in Form MGT - 7 is in accordance with Sec�on 
92(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014 and is available 
on the website of the Company at .www.scin�lla.co.in

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company has two associates during the period under review i.e., M/s Jaimatarani Merchants Private 
Limited (Formerly known as M/s Jaimatarani Merchants Limited) and M/s Mericogold Trading Limited 
(Formerly known as M/s Mericogold Trading Private Limited) and no subsidiary or joint ventures. Since, 
they are not material associates, there salient features are not provided in form AOC-1. 

DEPOSITS
During the year under review, your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from public 
within the meaning of Sec�on 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUECY
The Company has laid down an adequate system of internal controls, policies and procedures for 
ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of the business, including adherence to the Company's policies, 
safeguarding of its assets, preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of 
the accoun�ng records and �mely prepara�on of reliable financial disclosures.

The current system of internal financial control is aligned with the statutory requirements. Effec�veness 
of internal financial control is ensured through management reviews, controlled self-assessment and 
independent tes�ng by the Internal Auditor. 

AUDIT AND ALLIED MATTERS
Statutory Auditor
M/s Surajit Roy and Associates, (FRN 326099E), Chartered Accountants, was appointed as Statutory 

th th
Auditors of the Company at the Board Mee�ng held on 30  August, 2024 which was regularized at the 35  

thAnnual General Mee�ng held on 28  September, 2024 for a period of 1 (one) financial year i.e., 2024-25 in 
order to fill the casual vacancy occurred due to resigna�on tendered by M/s Ghosh & Basu LLP, (FRN 
E300013) Chartered Accountants, due to the developments in the Audit Firm (M/s Ghosh & Basu LLP) and 
they shall hold office �ll the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Mee�ng at such remunera�on as may 
be decided by the Board in consulta�on with the Statutory Auditors. 

Therefore, at the Board Mee�ng held on 2nd September,2025, since the term of the exis�ng Statutory 
Auditors shall expire at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng, the directors propose to re-appoint M/s 
Surajit Roy and Associates, (FRN 326099E), Chartered Accountants as their Statutory Auditors for a 
period of five consecu�ve financial years and who shall be eligible to hold office from the conclusion of 

st
ensuing Annual General Mee�ng �ll the conclusion of 41  Annual General Mee�ng to be held in the year 
2030.  

The Statutory Auditors Report to the Members for the year ended 31st March, 2025 does not contain any 
qualifica�on, reserva�on, adverse remark or disclaimer. Also there has been no instance of fraud 
reported by the statutory auditors for the period under review.

Internal Auditor
As recommended by the Audit Commi�ee, the Board of Directors had re-appointed M/s. Srimal Jain & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 to 
conduct internal audit of the Company and their report on findings is submi�ed to the Audit Commi�ee 
on periodic basis.

Secretarial Auditors
Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had re-
appointed Mr. Rajesh Ghorawat, Company Secretary in Prac�ce, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company. The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 in the prescribed Form MR-3 is 
appended as 'Annexure – A' to this Board's Report.

COST RECORDS
The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
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sec�on (1) of Sec�on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company adheres to follow the best corporate governance. As per Regula�on 34 read with Schedule 
V (C) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, a Report on Corporate 
Governance along with a cer�ficate received from the Statutory Auditors confirming compliance is 
annexed and forms part of the Annual Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the 
year under review impac�ng the going concern status and the opera�ons of the Company in future.

RBI GUIDELINES FOR NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANIES
The Company has observed all the pruden�al norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The 
Schedule as required in terms of Paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial Companies Pruden�al Norms 
(Reserve Bank) Direc�ons, 2015 is annexed herewith.

DISCLOSURE ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
The Company has in place a policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Commi�ee (ICC) has 
been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, 
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this Policy. There were nil complaints received 
during the year under review. 

During the year under review, no complaints with allega�ons of sexual harassment were received by the 
Company.

The Company has complied with provisions rela�ng to the cons�tu�on of Internal Complaints 
Commi�ee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and 
Redressal) Act, 2013.

MATERNITY BENEFIT PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY UNDER MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961
The Company declares that it has duly complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. 
All eligible women employees have been extended the statutory benefits prescribed under the Act, 
including paid maternity leave, con�nuity of salary and service during the leave period and post-
maternity support such as nursing breaks and flexible return-to-work op�ons, as applicable. The 
Company remains commi�ed to fostering an inclusive and suppor�ve work environment that upholds 
the rights and welfare of its women employees in accordance with applicable laws.

REMUNERATION RATIO TO DIRECTORS/KMP/EMPLOYEES
The disclosures pertaining to remunera�on and other details as required under Sec�on 197 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
a�ached as 'Annexure– B' forming part of this report.

OTHER DISCLOSURES
Secretarial Standards:
The company has complied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards SS-1 and SS-2 with 
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respect to convening of Board Mee�ngs and General Mee�ngs during the period under review.

Proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016:
No applica�on has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code; hence the requirement to 
disclose the details of applica�on made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of the financial year is not 
applicable.

APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
The Board of Directors place on record sincere gra�tude and apprecia�on for all the employees at all 
levels for their hard work, solidarity, coopera�on and dedica�on during the year. The Board conveys its 
apprecia�on for its customers, shareholders, suppliers as well as vendors, bankers, business associates, 
regulatory and government authori�es for their con�nued support.

For and on behalf of the Board
M/s Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Limited

Manisha Khandelwal
Director

DIN: 10299567

Jitendra Kumar Goyal
Managing Director

DIN: 00468744
Place: Kolkata 
Date: 02.09.2025 
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

ST
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to Sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members of
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Ltd

nd
Mercan�le Building, Block-E, 2  Floor
9/12, Lalbazar Street, Kolkata – 700 001

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate prac�ces by M/s. Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Ltd (hereina�er called 
“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 
evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verifica�on of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also based on the informa�on provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representa�ves during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in 

st
my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31  March, 
2025 (“Audit Period”) generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
st

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31  March, 2025 to the extent of 
Acts/provisions of the Acts applicable, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;

(v) The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):

a) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011;

b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 
2015;

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited



11

c) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2018 (Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review);

d)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regula�ons, 
2014 (Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review);

e)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Debt Securi�es) Regula�ons, 
2008 and The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Non-Conver�ble 
Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2021 (Not Applicable to the Company during the period under 
review);

f) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regula�ons, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the period under review);

g) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2021 
(Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review); and

h) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2018; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the period under review).

(vi) Other applicable laws generally applicable to the Industry/Company.
a) Reserve Bank of India Direc�ons, Guidelines and Circulars applicable to the Non-Banking 

Financial Companies (NBFC);

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
a) Secretarial Standard-I and II issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India;

and
b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines, Standards etc. men�oned above.

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, I have relied on the informa�on/records 
produced by the Company during the course of my audit and the repor�ng is limited to that extent.

I further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper balance of Execu�ve Directors, 
Non-Execu�ve Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composi�on of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. Mr. Vidhu Bhushan Verma who was appointed as Non-Execu�ve Independent 

th
Director of the Company tendered his resigna�on on 30  August, 2024 since his second tenure of five 
consecu�ve years has expired on such date.

Adequate no�ce is given to all directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs/Commi�ee Mee�ngs, agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further informa�on and clarifica�ons on the agenda items before the mee�ng and for 
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meaningful par�cipa�on at the mee�ng. Majority decisions is carried through while dissen�ng 
members' views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the 
basis of the Compliance Cer�ficate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors at their mee�ng(s), I am of the opinion there are adequate systems and processes in 
place in the Company which is commensurate with its size and opera�ons, to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, no events occurred which had bearing on the Company's 
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regula�ons, guidelines, standards etc.:

Rajesh Ghorawat
Prac�cing Company Secretary

M.No: F7226
                                                                                                                                CP No: 20897

    ICSI Peer Review No.: 1992/2022 
                UDIN: F007226G000361393

th
Date: 16  May, 2025     
Place: Kolkata       

Note: This Report is to be read with my le�er of even date which is annexed as “Annexure I” and forms 
an integral part of this report.
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Annexure-I

To
The Members of
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Ltd
Mercan�le Building

nd
Block-E, 2  Floor
9/12, Lalbazar Street 
Kolkata – 700 001

My report of even date is to be read along with this le�er.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verifica�on was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 
the processes and prac�ces, followed by me provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representa�on about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regula�ons and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, 
standards is the responsibility of management. My examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of 
procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficacy or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

Rajesh Ghorawat
Prac�cing Company Secretary

M.No: F7226
                                                                                                                                CP No: 20897

    ICSI Peer Review No.: 1992/2022 
                UDIN: F007226G000361393

th
Date: 16  May, 2025     
Place: Kolkata       
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Annexure - B
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The informa�on required pursuant to sec�on 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given hereunder:

i. The ra�o of the remunera�on of each director to the median remunera�on of the employees of the 
company for the financial year are given hereunder:

ii. The percentage increase in remunera�on of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Execu�ve 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year are given hereunder: Nil

iii. The percentage of increase in the median remunera�on of employees in the financial year: Nil.

st 
iv. The number of permanent employees on the role of company as on 31 March, 2025 is 3 nos., 

including Execu�ve Directors.

v. Average percen�le increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percen�le increase in the 
managerial remunera�on and jus�fica�on thereof and point out if there are any excep�onal 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remunera�on:

vi.   Affirma�on that the remunera�on is as per the remunera�on policy of the company: The Board of 
Directors of the Company affirms that the remunera�on is as per the Remunera�on Policy of the 
Company.

Name Designa�on Remunera�on 

paid during 

FY 2024-25 

(‘000) 

Ra�o  of remunera�on to median 

remunera�on  of employees  

(Including  Whole-�me Directors)  

Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal Managing Director 300.00 1  

 

Average percentage increase in salaries of employees 
other than managerial personnel during 2024-25

 

Nil 

The percentage increase in the Managerial Remunera�on
 

Nil
 

For and on behalf of the Board
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Limited

Place: Kolkata
Date: 02.09.2025  

Jitendra Kumar Goyal
Managing Director

DIN: 00468744

Manisha Khandelwal
Director

DIN: 10299567

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INTRODUCTION
Management Discussion and Analysis mainly comprises of the statements which, inter-alia, involve 
predic�ons based on percep�ons and may, therefore, be prone to uncertain�es. It is the sum total of the 
Company's expecta�ons, beliefs, es�mates and projec�ons which are forward looking within the 
meaning of applicable laws and regula�ons. The actual results could differ materially from those 
expressed herein specifically or impliedly.

MACRO-ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
In 2024, the global economy achieved a growth rate of 3.2%, reflec�ng a measured pace of expansion. 
Nonetheless, this figure fell short of the historical average of 3.7% recorded from 2000 to 2019. The 
decelera�on was a�ributed to a confluence of both structural and cyclical factors, including policy 
�ghtening in major economies, geopoli�cal instability, and sector-specific challenges. Together, these 
elements exerted a profound impact on both advanced and emerging markets, leading to a more 
subdued global economic environment. 

The economic performance of both advanced and emerging economies followed dis�nctly different 
trajectories throughout the year. Advanced economies struggled with weak manufacturing ac�vity, 
faltering consumer confidence, and persistent infla�onary pressures, all of which impeded broader 
economic growth. Rising energy costs, disrup�ons in global trade flows, and the con�nued impact of 
prior monetary �ghtening further constrained demand. In contrast, emerging markets and developing 
economies encountered their own set of challenges, including subdued external demand, capital 
ou�lows driven by rising interest rates in developed na�ons, and considerable policy uncertain�es. 
Addi�onally, trade disrup�ons and geopoli�cal tensions significantly contributed to the modera�on of 
growth, par�cularly in economies heavily reliant on exports. Despite these challenges, certain emerging 
markets showed strength, supported by strong domes�c consump�on and targeted fiscal s�muli.

While infla�onary trends varied across different economies, global headline infla�on showed a 
significant decrease in 2024, falling from 5.7% in 2023 to 4.2%. This drop was primarily driven by the 
stabilisa�on of energy prices and the gradual resolu�on of ongoing supply chain challenges. T hroughout 
the year, central banks maintained a cau�ous approach, carefully balancing monetary policy to support 
economic recovery while ensuring infla�on remained on a downward trajectory. Looking ahead, 
infla�on is expected to con�nue its modera�on, poten�ally reaching 3.5% by 2026, provided geopoli�cal 
risks and supply-side shocks remain under control. 

The global trade environment in 2024 remained precarious, marred by rising protec�onism, geopoli�cal 
strife, and shi�ing trade alliances. Disputes between the United States and China, coupled with tariffs 
and export restric�ons, severely disrupted global supply chains. Meanwhile, nearshoring and friend-
shoring ini�a�ves introduced new complexi�es and logis�cal challenges. Geopoli�cal tensions, 
including the ongoing war in Ukraine and regional instability, further fuelled economic uncertainty and 
market vola�lity. Oil prices were projected to dip by 2.6% in 2025, driven by weakening demand in China 
and an increase in non-OPEC+ supply, although geopoli�cal risks could upend this outlook. Commodity-
expor�ng na�ons, in par�cular, faced increased vulnerability as shi�s in trade pa�erns and disrup�ons to 
supply chains undermined economic stability.

In 2024, financial markets displayed a range of mixed trajectories, with advanced economies 
experiencing rallies in equity markets, while emerging markets contended with heightened vola�lity, 
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primarily due to capital ou�lows and the upward trajectory of the US dollar. Persistent infla�onary trends 
and shi�ing expecta�ons regarding interest rates remained central to investor sen�ment, with 
protracted policy �ghtening posing significant risks to both economic expansion and capital investment. 
Na�ons that embraced sound economic policies and fostered strong global collabora�on appeared 
be�er posi�oned to weather the prevailing uncertain�es and maintain economic vitality.

INDIAN ECONOMY
India's economic performance in FY 2024-25 reflects a consistent and robust growth trajectory, with the 
na�on's Gross Domes�c Product (GDP) growing by 6.5%, thereby solidifying its status as the fastest-
growing major economy. This growth is primarily driven by substan�al government investment in 
infrastructure, a resurgence in rural demand driven by a thriving Kharif crop, and the sustained 
expansion of the services sector, notably in finance and real estate. The Reserve Bank of India's prudent, 
accommoda�ve monetary policy, which includes an interest rate reduc�on, has further spurred both 
investment and consump�on. In addi�on, a marked improvement in manufacturing output and resilient 
urban consump�on have further invigorated the economic momentum. While global trade uncertain�es 
remain an external risk, India's intrinsic economic strength, coupled with policy interven�ons and robust 
private sector investments, is set to underpin con�nued growth.

In a significant development, India's infla�on slowed to its lowest level in nearly six years, with retail 
infla�on eased to 3.16% in April 2025, remaining below the RBI's 4% target for the third consecu�ve 
month, as food prices rose at a slower pace. The easing infla�on also signals improving supply-side 
dynamics, par�cularly across food and core components, further reinforcing the outlook for sustained 
economic momentum

The Union Budget FY 2025–26 reinforced the government's commitment to sustainable growth while 
maintaining fiscal discipline. Capital expenditure was raised to an unprecedented INR 11.21 Lakh Crores 
(~3.1% of GDP), underscoring a strategic focus on infrastructure, rural upli�ment, and catalyzing private 
sector investment. The fiscal deficit target was further trimmed to 4.9%, demonstra�ng prudent budget 
management. A major boost came from the RBI's record dividend transfer of INR 2.69 Lakh Crores, 
substan�ally above the budgeted INR 2.56 Lakh Crores, which creates roughly INR 70,000 Crores of extra 
fiscal room. This contribu�on alone could lower the deficit by 20–30 bps, poten�ally bringing it near 4.2% 
of GDP, or alterna�vely, enabling enhanced capital spending on key priori�es, all while preserving fiscal 
prudence.

Consump�on revival remained a key policy focus, with higher alloca�ons to rural flagship schemes, 
enhanced Direct Benefit Transfers (DBTs), and tax relief under the new income tax regime effected to 
achieve intended outcome. T hese steps are expected to strengthen disposable income and boost 
consump�on recovery, par�cularly among rural and middle-income households.

NBFC
The Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFC) sector con�nues to serve as an indispensable pillar in 
India's financial framework, playing a pivotal role in enhancing financial inclusion and broadening access 
to credit. As of FY 2024-25, the sector has expanded to approximately USD 350 Billion, marking a 
consistent increase from the previous year's USD 326 Billion. However, the growth of the sector's Assets 
Under Management (AUM) is forecasted to moderate, with year-on-year growth projec�ons for FY 2024-
25 and FY 2025-26 ranging between 15-17%, a decline from the robust 23% recorded in FY 2023-24. This 
decelera�on is a�ributed to moun�ng challenges such as rising delinquencies, intensified regulatory 
frameworks, and �ghter funding condi�ons.
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OUTLOOK
The Company's present business opera�ons are preponderantly that of an investment company, future 
of which largely depends upon financial and capital markets. Your Company has investments in 
equity/debt instruments (including through mutual funds), financially sound companies and immovable 
proper�es. The income from interest and dividends will con�nue to contribute to the income of the 
Company. The management is op�mis�c about the future outlook of the Company. The Company will 
expand its ac�vi�es, consistent with its status as a NBFC.

COMPANY'S OVERVIEW
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Limited was founded in 1990 and is a registered Non-Banking Finance 
Company (NBFC) regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The Company operates in the state of 
West Bengal and specialises in providing financial services. The mainstay of your Company's opera�ons 
con�nued to be investments in various companies, under which steady interest income flows into the 
Company coupled with sustained apprecia�on in capital. During the year under review, your Company 
has earned income in the form of interest.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS
SCCL constantly monitors the external environments and internal situa�on so that it is aware of the 
opportuni�es and threats that emerge. This enables the Company to tap into the posi�ve prospects that 
come its way while overcoming or bypassing the challenge of threats.

Opportuni�es
· Efficient Business Model helps to minimise risk and opera�ng cost

· Adequate capitalisa�on to support medium-term growth plans

· Operates in “B2B” business segment with huge growth poten�al

· Expanding revenue streams through strategic partnerships in non-lending financial services and co-
lending arrangements

· A strengthening economy, increasing levels of formalisa�on, and rapid digital adop�on, opening new 
avenues for innova�on and scale

· A growing middle class with evolving and diverse financial needs, crea�ng demand for customised 
solu�ons

· Growing investor ac�vity is driving demand for loans against securi�es, crea�ng a strong lending 
opportunity

Threats
· Global poli�cal uncertain�es that may impact capital flows and investor sen�ment

· Heightened compe��on from banks, which are expanding into tradi�onal NBFC segments.

· A poten�al slowdown in the automo�ve sector, affec�ng vehicle financing demand.

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE REVIEW
The Company has only one line of business, i.e., Financing and Investment Ac�vi�es during the year 
under review, hence no segment wise informa�on is required. The Company has no ac�vity outside 
India. Therefore, there is no geographical segment. 
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REGULATORY

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has been con�nually strengthening the supervisory framework from 
NBFC's in order to ensure sound and healthy func�oning and avoid excessive risk taking. In furtherance 
of these objec�ves, RBI issued new guidelines during past years. 

1. Know your customer guidance – An� money laundering Standards 
2. Guidance on classifica�on, monitoring and repor�ng of frauds 
3. Guidance on Securi�sa�on of Standards Assets 

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
Human resources remain central to achieving the Company's goals. Guided by the ac�ve involvement of 
the promoters and supported by the strategic insights of a diverse and capable Board, the Company 
con�nues to build a strong founda�on for sustainable growth.

We also remain commi�ed to the health, safety, and well-being of all employees and business associates, 
ensuring a secure and healthy work environment that supports produc�vity and engagement.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & ITS ADEQUACY 
The Company has a strong and well-defined internal control framework, built on structured policies and 
procedures that are periodically reviewed and tested across all key processes and func�ons. Oversight is 
further strengthened by dedicated commi�ees such as the Risk Management Commi�ee and the Asset 
and Liability Commi�ee, which monitor and evaluate cri�cal aspects of opera�ons. Moreover, the 
Company has appointed M/s Srimal Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants, an outside agency as its Internal 
Auditors, who conduct internal audit for various ac�vi�es

Robust systems and processes ensure effec�ve control mechanisms are in place. The Internal Audit and 
Compliance teams regularly assess adherence to internal policies, regulatory requirements, and legal 
obliga�ons, providing �mely feedback to the management for necessary correc�ve ac�ons, including 
minimising any design risks.

The Audit Commi�ee of the Board oversees the func�oning of the audit and compliance processes, 
reviews the adequacy of controls, and ensures alignment with regulatory guidelines. 

CAUTIONARY NOTE 
Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objec�ves, 
projec�ons, es�mates and expecta�ons may be 'forward looking' within the meaning of applicable laws 
and regula�ons. Actual results may differ from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could 
make a difference to the Company's opera�ons include changes in Government regula�ons and tax 
regime, economic developments within India and abroad, financial markets, etc. 

The Company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward-looking statements that may be revised or 
modified in future on the basis of subsequent developments, informa�on or events. The financial 
statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS) no�fied under 
Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Management 
of the Company has used es�mates and judgments rela�ng to the financial statements on a prudent and 
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reasonable basis, in order that the financial statements reflect in a true and fair manner, the state of 
affairs and profit/loss for the year. The narra�ve on our financial condi�on and result of opera�ons 
should be read together with our audited consolidated financial statements and the notes to these 
statements included in the Annual Report. 

For and on behalf of the Board
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Limited

Place: Kolkata
Date: 02.09.2025  

Jitendra Kumar Goyal
Managing Director

DIN: 00468744

Manisha Khandelwal
Director

DIN: 10299567

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited
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Category of Directors No of Directors 

Execu�ve Director (ED)  1 

Non-Execu�ve Directors  1 

Non-Execu�ve Independent Directors  3 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regula�on 34 read with Schedule V© of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, (as amended) a report on Corporate Governance is given below: 

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 
Effec�ve corporate governance prac�ces cons�tute the strong founda�on on which successful 
commercial enterprises are built to last.

The Company believes in the Code of Governance so as to be a responsible corporate ci�zen and to serve 
the best interest of all the stakeholders viz, the employees, shareholders, customers, vendors and the 
society at large. The Company seeks to achieve this goal by being transparent in its business dealings, by 
disclosure of all relevant informa�on in an easily understood manner, and by being fair to all stakeholders 
by ensuring that the Company's ac�vi�es are managed by professionally competent and independent 
Board of Directors. 

The Company is in compliance with the requirements s�pulated under Regula�on 17 to 27 read with 
Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regula�on (2) of Regula�on 46 of Securi�es and Exchange Board of 
India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons”), as 
applicable, with regard to corporate governance. 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
The Company has a very balanced and diversified Board of Directors. The composi�on of the Board 
primarily takes care of the business needs and stakeholders' interest. The Non-Execu�ve Directors 
including Independent Directors on the Board are well qualified, experienced and competent persons 
from the fields of finance & taxa�on, law, governance etc. They take ac�ve part at the Board and 
Commi�ee Mee�ngs by providing their valuable guidance and expert advice to the Board and the 
Management on various aspects of business policy direc�on, governance, compliance etc. and play a 
cri�cal role in resolving strategic issues, which enhances the transparency and adds value in the decision-
making process of the Board of Directors. 

Your Company's Board comprises of the appropriate mix of Execu�ve, Non-Execu�ve and Independent 
Directors including two Women Independent Directors to maintain its independence. The Board consists 
of five Directors out of which 1 is Execu�ve Director and remaining 4 are Non-Execu�ve Directors 
including 3 Independent Directors. 

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than ten Commi�ees or Chairman of five 
Commi�ees (commi�ees being Audit Commi�ee and Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee) across all 
the Indian Public Companies in which he/she is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding their 
commi�ee posi�ons have been made by all the Directors.

None of the Directors hold office in more than ten Public Companies. None of the Independent Directors 
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of the Company serve as an Independent Director in more than seven listed companies. All Directors are 
also in compliance with the limit on Directorships of listed companies as prescribed under Regula�on 17A 
of the Lis�ng Regula�ons. Cer�ficates have also been obtained from the Independent Director 
confirming their posi�on as Independent Director on the Board of the Company in accordance with 
Sec�on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regula�on 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015. Based on the declara�ons received from the Independent 
Directors, the Board confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the condi�ons specified in these 
regula�ons and that they are Independent of the Management. 

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their a�endance at Board Mee�ngs held during 
the year and at the last Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) and the number of Directorships and Commi�ee 

st
Chairmanships/Memberships held by them in other public limited companies as on 31  March, 2025 are 
given below.

* Ms. Vidhu Bhushan Verma resigned from the post of Non-Execu�ve Independent Director of the 
thCompany w.e.f. 30  August, 2024, due to expiry of his second tenure as Independent Director.

# Commi�ee considered are only Audit Commi�ee and Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee.

Mee�ngs of the Board of Directors
th thDuring the year under review, 5 (Five) Mee�ngs of the Board of Directors were held on 30  May, 2024, 13  

th th thAugust, 2024, 30  August, 2024, 14  November, 2024 and 7  February, 2025 respec�vely. The gap 
between any two mee�ngs does not exceed 120 days.

Name of Director  

 

Category 

 

No. of 

Board 

Mee�ngs 

A�ended  

 

A�endance 

at last AGM 

held on 28th 

September, 

2024  

Directorship 

in other 

public 

companies 

 

No. of Commi�ee 

posi�on held in other 

companies 

Chairperson Member 

Mr. Jitendra 
Kumar Goyal 

(DIN: 00468744) 

Execu�ve Director 
(Managing 

Director) 

5 Yes 3 1 5 

Ms. Pooja 
Kalanouria  

(DIN: 09056683) 

Non-Execu�ve 
Independent 

Director 

5 Yes 1 - 2 

Ms. Ritu Agarwal 
(DIN: 08143534) 

Non-Execu�ve 
Independent 

Director 

5 Yes 3 2 3 

Mr. Mahesh 
Kumar Kejriwal 

(DIN: 07382906) 

Non-Execu�ve 
Independent 

Director 

5 Yes 2 -  4 

Ms. Manisha 
Khandelwal  

Non-Execu�ve 
Director 

2 Yes 1 -  2 
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st
Directorships in Listed En��es as on 31  March, 2025

st
The details of Directorship held in other listed en��es as on 31  March, 2025 are as under:

Shareholding of Directors
Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal is holding 211 equity shares in the Company.

Disclosures of Rela�onships between directors
No Director is related to any other Director on the Board in terms of the defini�on of “Rela�ve” given 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Skills / Exper�se / Competencies of the Board of Directors 
The following is the list of core skills / exper�se / competencies iden�fied by the Board of Directors as 
required in the context of the Company's business and that the said skills are available with the Board 
Members: 

- Knowledge of Financial Service Industry: Understanding of the func�oning of NBFC's across the 
length and breadth of the country and its regulatory jurisdic�ons.

- Strategy and Planning: Apprecia�on of long-term trends, strategic choices, and experience in 
guiding and leading management teams to make decisions in uncertain environments.

- Governance, Ethics and Regulatory Oversight: Experience in developing governance prac�ces, 
serving the best interests of all stakeholders, maintaining board and management accountability, 
building long term effec�ve stakeholder engagements, and driving corporate ethics and values.

- Audit, Risk Management, Internal Control: Experience in both internal and external audit of 
Companies / body corporate in financial services industry.

The eligibility of a person to be appointed as a Director of the Company is dependent on whether the 
person possesses the requisite skill sets iden�fied by the Board as above and whether the person is a 
proven leader in running a business that is relevant to the Company's business or is a proven academician 
in the field relevant to the Company's business.

Name of Director Name of the listed en�ty Category of Directorship 

Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal  Decillion Finance Limited Managing Director 

Virat Leasing Limited Non-Execu�ve Director  

Kaushal Investments Ltd Non-Execu�ve Director 

Ms. Ritu Agarwal Decillion Finance Limited Non-Execu�ve Independent Director 

Virat Leasing Limited  Non-Execu�ve Independent Director 
Kaushal Investments Ltd Non-Execu�ve Independent Director 

Ms. Pooja Kalanouria Decillion Finance Limited Non-Execu�ve Independent Director 

Mr. Mahesh Kumar Kejriwal  Virat Leasing Limited  Non-Execu�ve Independent Director 
Kaushal Investments Ltd Non-Execu�ve Independent Director 

Ms. Manisha Khandelwal  Ganesh Infraworld Limited Non-Execu�ve Independent Director 
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Board Procedure 
The annual tenta�ve calendar of the Board Mee�ngs is circulated to the members of the Board, well in 
advance. The agenda is circulated well in advance to the Board members, along with comprehensive 
back-ground informa�on on the items in the agenda to enable the Board members to take informed 
decisions. The agenda and related informa�on are circulated in electronic form through their email or by 
hand delivery, which is easily accessible to the Board members. The informa�on as required under Part A 
of Schedule II to the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons is also made available to the Board, wherever applicable, for 
their considera�on. The Company adheres to the Secretarial Standard-1 on the Board and Commi�ee 
Mee�ngs as prescribed by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India. 

Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior Management (The 
Code). The Code has been communicated to the Directors and Senior Management. The Code has also 
been posted on the Company's website at . All Board of Directors and Senior www.scintilla.co.in

st
Management have confirmed compliance with code for the year ended 31  March, 2025. 

Apart from receiving remunera�on, if any, that they are en�tled to under the Act as Non-Execu�ve 
Independent Directors and reimbursement of expenses incurred in the discharge of their du�es, none of 
the Non-Execu�ve Independent Directors has any other material pecuniary rela�onship or transac�ons 
with the Company, its Promoters or its Directors and its Senior Management. 

The Senior Management of the Company have made disclosures to the Board confirming that there is no 
material financial and/or commercial transac�ons between them and the Company that could have 
poten�al conflict of interest with the Company at large. 

Independent Directors and Separate Mee�ng of Independent Directors
The Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed in terms of the requirements of the Act, 
the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and the Governance Guidelines for Board Effec�veness adopted by the 
Company. Formal le�ers of appointment have been issued to the Independent Directors and the terms 
and condi�ons of their appointment are disclosed on the Company's website at . www.scintilla.co.in
The Company also has a structured Familiariza�on framework for the Independent Directors. It takes due 
steps for familiarizing the Independent Directors with the Company's procedures and prac�ces, by 
providing them the necessary documents, reports and internal policies. The familiariza�on programme 
for Independent Directors is given on the website at .www.scintilla.co.in

As s�pulated by Regula�on 25(3) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and Sec�on 149(8) read with Clause VII of 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, a separate mee�ng of the Independent Directors of the 

thCompany was held on 7  February, 2025 during the Financial Year, without the a�endance of Non-
Independent Director.

The following ma�ers were considered at the mee�ng of the Independent Directors:

a) Reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

b) Assessed the quality, quan�ty and �meliness of flow of informa�on between the Company 
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effec�vely and reasonably perform 
their du�es. 
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3. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
Audit Commi�ee acts in accordance with the terms and reference specified by the Board which includes 
the recommending on the appointment, re-appointment, terms of appointment, replacement or 
removal of the statutory auditor and the fixa�on of audit fees, review and monitor the auditor's 
performance and effec�veness of the audit process, financial repor�ng process and the disclosure of its 
financial informa�on to ensure that the financial statement is correct, evalua�on of internal financial 
control and risk management system, any subsequent modifica�on of transac�on of the Company's 
related party, monitoring the end use of the fund raised through public offers and related ma�ers. 

Composi�on

 

Mr. Vidhu Bhushan Verma resigned from the post of Non-Execu�ve Independent Director of the Company 
thw.e.f. 30  August, 2024, due to expiry of his second tenure as Independent Director.

Mrs. Priyanka Mohta, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company and acted as 
Secretary to Commi�ee. 

st
There were 5 mee�ngs of the Audit Commi�ee held during the Financial Year ended 31  March, 2025 on 

th th th th th
30  May, 2024, 13  August, 2024, 30  August, 2024, 14  November, 2024 and 7  February, 2025 
respec�vely.

The Internal Auditors and the representa�ve of the Statutory Auditors also a�ended the Audit 
Commi�ee Mee�ngs. The Internal Audit Report is directly placed to the Board Commi�ee. 

th
The Chairman of Audit Commi�ee was present at the Annual General Mee�ng held on 28  September, 
2024. The minutes of Audit Commi�ee mee�ngs are placed in the Board for no�ng. 

Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of the Audit Commi�ee are in line with Regula�on 18(3) read with Schedule II, 
Part - C of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and Sec�on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are briefly described 
below: 

· To oversee the Company's financial repor�ng process and the disclosure of its financial informa�on to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

Name of the Director Category Designa�on 

Ms. Ritu Agarwal Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Chairman 

Mr. M ahesh Kumar Kejriwal  Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Member 

Ms. Pooja Kalanouria Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Member 

Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal  Execu�ve Director Member 

 

S. 

No. 

Name of the Director 

 

Number of Audit Commi�ee Mee�ngs a�ended during 

the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 

1. Mr. Vidhu Bhushan Verma  3 

2. Ms. Ritu Agarwal 5 

3. Mr. Mahesh Kumar Kejriwal  5 

4. Ms. Pooja Kalanouria 5 

5. Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal  5 
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· To recommend the appointment, remunera�on and terms of appointment of the Statutory Auditors, 
Cost Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company;

· Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

· Reviewing, with the Management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon 
before submission to the board for approval, with par�cular reference to: 

a) Ma�ers required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board's Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-sec�on 3 of sec�on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b) Changes, if any, in accoun�ng policies and prac�ces and reasons for the same;

c) Major accoun�ng entries involving es�mates based on the exercise of judgment by Management;

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e) Compliance with lis�ng and other legal requirements rela�ng to financial statements;

f) Disclosure of any related party transac�ons;

g) Modified opinion(s) in the dra� audit report, if any. 

· To review with management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 
approval;

· Reviewing, with the Management, the statement of uses / applica�on of funds raised through an 
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferen�al issue, etc.), the statement of funds u�lized for purposes 
other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / no�ce and the report submi�ed by the 
monitoring agency monitoring the u�liza�on of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommenda�ons to the Board to take steps in the ma�er; 

· To review and monitor the Auditor's independence and performance and effec�veness of the 
Audit Process;

· Approval or any subsequent modifica�on of transac�ons of the Company with related par�es;

· Scru�ny of Inter-corporate loans and Investments;

· Valua�on of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

· Evalua�on of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

· Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of 
the internal control systems;

· Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit func�on, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, repor�ng structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

· Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon; 

· Reviewing the findings of any internal inves�ga�ons by the internal auditors into ma�ers where 
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature 
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and repor�ng the ma�er to the Board; 

· Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 
audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

· To look into the reasons for substan�al defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

· To review the func�oning of the whistle blower mechanism; 

· Approval of appointment of chief financial officer a�er assessing the qualifica�ons, experience 
and background, etc. of the candidate; 

· To review the u�liza�on of loans and/ or advances from/ investment by the company to its 
subsidiary exceeding 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower, 
including exis�ng loans / advances / investments;

· To consider and comment on ra�onale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, 
demerger, amalgama�on etc., on the listed en�ty and its shareholders;

· Carrying out any other func�on as is men�oned in the terms of reference of the audit commi�ee.

Review of informa�on by Audit Commi�ee
·   To review the following:

a) management discussion and analysis of financial condi�on and results of opera�ons; 

b) statement of significant related party transac�ons (as defined by the audit commi�ee), 
submi�ed by management; 

c) management le�ers / le�ers of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

d) internal audit reports rela�ng to internal control weaknesses; and 

e) the appointment, removal and terms of remunera�on of the chief internal auditor shall be 
subject to review by the audit commi�ee. 

f) statement of devia�ons: 
· quarterly statement of devia�on(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 

submi�ed to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regula�on 32(1). 

· annual statement of funds u�lized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/no�ce in terms of Regula�on 32(7). 

4. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee has been cons�tuted by the Board in compliance with the 
requirements of Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 19 of the SEBI Lis�ng 
Regula�ons. 

Composi�on 

Name of the Director Category Designa�on 

Ms. Ritu Agarwal Non-Execu�ve Independent Director  Chairman 
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Kejriwal  Non-Execu�ve Independent Director  Member 

Ms. Pooja Kalanouria Non-Execu�ve Independent Director  Member 
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th* Mr. Vidhu Bhushan Verma resigned from the post of Non-Execu�ve Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 30  August, 
2024, due to expiry of his second tenure as Independent Director.

Mrs. Priyanka Mohta, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company and acted as 
Secretary to Commi�ee. 

Two Mee�ngs of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee was held during the Financial Year 
st th thended 31  March, 2025 on 30  August, 2024 and 7  February, 2025.

Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee include: 
· Formula�on of the criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of a 

director and recommended to the Board a policy, rela�ng to the remunera�on of the Directors, Key 
managerial Personnel and other employees; 

· Formula�on of criteria for evalua�on of performance of independent directors and the board of 
directors; 

· Iden�fy person who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommended to the Board their 
appointment and removal and shall carry out evalua�on of each director's performance; 

· Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

· Deciding whether to extend or con�nue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the 
basis of the report of performance evalua�on of independent directors. 

· Recommend to the board, all remunera�on, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 

Performance Evalua�on
Upon recommenda�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, the Board of Directors has laid 
down the process, format, a�ributes and criteria for performance evalua�on of the Board of the 
Company, its Commi�ees and the individual Board members, including Independent Directors. On the 
basis of performance evalua�on of Independent Directors, it is determined whether to extend or 
con�nue their term of appointment, whenever their respec�ve term expires.

The Independent Directors at their separate mee�ng reviewed the performance of: Non-Independent 
Directors and the Board as a whole and the quality, quan�ty and �meliness of flow of informa�on 
between the Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effec�vely and 
reasonably perform their du�es.

S/N Name of the Director 

 

Number of Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee Mee�ngs 

a�ended during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 

1. Mr. Vidhu Bhushan Verma 1 

2. Ms. Ritu Agarwal 2 

3. Ms. Pooja Kalanouria 2 

4. Mr. Mahesh Kumar Kejriwal  2 
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The Directors were sa�sfied with the evalua�on results, which reflected the overall engagement of 
the Board and its Commi�ees with the Company.

The performance evalua�on process for the Financial Year 2024-25 has been completed.

Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy
The Company has adopted a Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy for its Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees. The Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee formulates and reviews 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy and also lays down the criteria for determining qualifica�ons, 
posi�ve a�ributes, Independence of Director and Board diversity. The Policy laid down the factors for 
determining remunera�on of Non-Execu�ve Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

The Company does not have any Employee Stock Op�on Scheme. The Nomina�on and Remunera�on 
policy may be referred to at the Company's official website at the web link www.scintilla.co.in.

A. Remunera�on to Execu�ve Directors: 
The Execu�ve Directors are paid salary as per agreement, considered by Board & Commi�ee. In addi�on, 
the Company provides with certain perquisites, allowances and benefits in accordance with terms of 
contract, if any. In the event that there is no breach of the terms of the agreement, if any, by the Execu�ve 
Director, the Company exercise the discre�on to terminate his/her services during the terms of 
agreement, without assigning any reason thereof, then and in that event, the Execu�ve Director may be 
paid a compensa�on of a sum which shall not exceed the remunera�on which he/she would have 
earned. 

B. Remunera�on to Non-Execu�ve Independent Directors: 
The Non-Execu�ve Independent Directors are not paid any si�ng fees or commission for a�ending the 
mee�ngs of the Board and/or Commi�ee thereof with the discre�on of Board. The Non-Execu�ve 
Independent Directors, in their individual capacity, did not have any pecuniary rela�onship or 
transac�ons with the Company during the financial year 2024-25.

C. Remunera�on to Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other Employees: 
The objec�ve of the Policy is to have a compensa�on framework that will reward and retain talent. The 
remunera�on will be such as to ensure the correla�on of remunera�on to performance is clear and meet 
appropriate performance benchmark. Remunera�on to Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management 
and other Employees will involve a balance between fixed and variable pay reflec�ng short- and long-
term performance objec�ves of the employees in line with the working of the Company and its goal. 

The Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee recommend the remunera�on of KMP and other 
Employees.

stD. Remunera�on paid or payable to Directors for the year ended 31  March, 2025 are as follows:
Execu�ve Directors (Eds):

Name of the Directors Salary 

(‘000) 

Perquisites 

(‘000) 

Others 

(‘000) 

Total ( ‘000) 

Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal  300.00 - - 300.00 
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5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
The Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee has been cons�tuted by the Board in compliance with the 
requirements of Sec�on 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 20 of the SEBI Lis�ng 
Regula�ons.

Composi�on 

* Mr. Vidhu Bhushan Verma resigned from the post of Non-Execu�ve Independent Director of the 
thCompany w.e.f. 30  August, 2024, due to expiry of his second tenure as Independent Director.

Mrs. Priyanka Mohta, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company and acted as 
Secretary to Commi�ee. 

stOne Mee�ng of the Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee was held during the Financial Year ended 31  
thMarch, 2025 on 7  February, 2025.

Terms of Reference
The terms of reference and roles of the Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee as framed in line with 
provisions of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and Companies Act, 2013, are as under:

· To resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to 
transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 
issue of new / duplicate cer�ficates, general mee�ngs etc.

· To review measures taken for effec�ve exercise of vo�ng rights by shareholders.

· To review adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services 
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

· To review of various measures and ini�a�ves taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring �mely receipt of dividend warrants / annual reports / statutory 
no�ces by the shareholders of the Company.

Normally all Complaints/ Queries are disposed off expedi�ously. The Company had no complaints 
pending at the close of the Financial Year. The Commi�ee considers and resolves the grievances of the 
Shareholders of the Company including complaints related to shares, non-receipts of balance sheet, non-

Name of the Director Category Designa�on 

Ms. Ritu Agarwal Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Chairman 

Mr. Mahesh Kumar Kejriwal  Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Member 

Ms. Pooja Kalanouria Non-Execu�ve Independent Director Member 

 

S.No. Name of the Director 

 

Number of Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee  Mee�ngs 

a�ended during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 

1. Mr. Mahesh Kumar Kejriw al 1 

2. Ms. Pooja Kalanouria 1 

3. Ms. Ritu Agarwal 1 
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receipts of declared dividend, if any, transfer/ transmission of shares/ debentures, Issue of duplicate 
Share Cer�ficate, etc. 

The Chairman of the Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee was present at the last AGM of the Company 
thheld on 28  September, 2024 to answer the queries of the security holders.

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 
a) Loca�on and �me where last three AGMs were held:
The details of the last three Annual General Mee�ngs (AGMs) of the Company held as under:

b) Extraordinary General Mee�ng: 
No Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng of the shareholders was held during the financial year 2024-25.

c) Postal Ballot
During the year, the Company has not passed any resolu�on through postal ballot. Further, there is no 
proposal to pass any Special Resolu�on through Postal Ballot. Special Resolu�ons by way of Postal Ballot, 
if required to be passed in the future, will be decided at the relevant �me.

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 
The quarterly / annual financial results are normally published in “Business Standard” (English) and 
“Duronto Varta” (Bengali). The financial results, shareholding pa�ern and other requirements under 
Regula�on 17 to 27 and 46(2)(b) to (i) of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, wherever applicable, were uploaded on 
the websites of the BSE Limited at , the Calcu�a Stock Exchange Limited at www.bseindia.com www.cse-

india.com www.scin�lla.co.in and the Company at .

The full Annual Report was made available on the website of the Company and also disseminated to the 
stock exchanges where shares of the Company are listed. The electronic copies of the annual report and 

th
the no�ce convening the 35  AGM were sent to all the members whose e-mail addresses were registered 
with the Company or their respec�ve Depository Par�cipants (DP) and also via physical mode whose e-
mail addresses were not registered with the Company/ Depository Par�cipants.

8. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERINFORMATION: 
st

i. The par�culars of the Annual General Mee�ng for the year ended 31  March, 2025 is as under:

Financial Year  
 

Date and Time 
 

Venue 
 

No of Special 
Resolu�ons passed 

2023-2024 28th
 September, 

2024 at 12.00 noon 
"Commerce House" 2A, 
Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 
8th Floor, Room No. 1, 
Kolkata-700013 

1 

2022-2023 29th September, 
2023 at 12.00 noon 

Oswal Chambers, EITMA, 
5th Floor, 2, Church Lane, 
Kolkata - 700 001 

3 

2021-2022 28th September, 
2022 at 12.00 noon 

Oswal Chambers, EITMA, 
5th Floor, 2, Church Lane, 
Kolkata - 700 001 

3 
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ii. Financial Calendar: Our tenta�ve calendar for declara�on of results for the financial year 2025-26 are 
given below:

st st
iii. The Company's financial year begins on 1  April and ends on 31  March of the following year.

iv. Dates of Book Closure: As men�oned in the No�ce of this AGM.

v. Dividend Payment Date: Not Applicable.

vi. Lis�ng on Stock Exchange: The Company's Shares are currently listed and traded on the following 
Stock Exchanges

Lis�ng Fees as applicable have been paid.

vii. Market Price Data: 
Monthly High and Low price of shares traded at BSE Ltd during the Financial Year 2024-2025 are as:

Date of 36th Annual 
General Mee�ng 

Venue 
 

Time 
 

 “B B D Bag Professional Associa�on”, “Commerce 
House”, 2A Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, 

Room No: 1, Kolkata-700013 

03.00 p.m.
 

26th September, 2025

 

Financial Calendar   Period   Declara�on of Unaudited Results    

1st Quarter   1st April to 30th June   On or before 14th August, 2025 

2nd Quarter   1st July to 30th September   On or before 14th November,  2025 

3rd Quarter   1st October to 31st December  On or before 14th February, 2026 

Audited Financial Results   1st January to 31st March   On or before 30th May,  2026 

 

Name of the Stock Exchange  Address  Stock Code / Symbol 

BSE Limited Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 

Kala Ghoda, Fort, Mumbai-400001 

ISIN - INE892C01018, 

Scrip Code – 538857 

The Calcu�a Stock 

Exchange Limited 

7, Lyons Range, Dalhousie, Kolkata -

700001, West Bengal 

Scrip Code: 029467 

 

Period Monthly Low (Rs.) Monthly High (Rs.) 

Apr’2024 3.91 4.50 

May’2024 4.28 5.33 

Jun’2024 4.94 5.51 

Jul’2024 4.75 5.50 

Aug’2024 4.87 5.77 

Sep’2024 5.26 6.21 

Oct’2024 4.99 5.75 
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Period Monthly Low (Rs.) Monthly High (Rs.) 

Oct’202 4.99 5.75

Nov’2024 5.22 6.09 

Dec’2024 5.57 8.08 

Jan’2025 7.30 7.30 

Feb’2025 6.33 7.44 

Mar’2025 4.78 6.33 

viii. Suspension of Securi�es of the Company from Stock Exchange: The Securi�es of the Company are 
not suspended from trading on the stock exchanges.

ix. Registrars and Share Transfer Agents: All ma�ers pertaining to Share Transfers / Transmissions are 
being handled by Niche Technologies Private Limited, the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents. 
Address: 3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata-700 017
Tel. No.: 033) 2280 6616/6617/6618
Fax No.: (033) 2280 6619
E-Mail:  nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

x.   Share Transfer System: The Company has in place a proper and adequate share transfer system. The 
Company formed a commi�ee known as “Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee” to process share 
transfer request as delegated by the Board of Directors of the Company. M/s. Niche Technologies 
Private Limited, the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company was appointed to ensure that 
the share transfer system is maintained in physical as well as electronic form.

xi. Dematerializa�on of Shareholding and Liquidity: 70,93,961 i.e., 70.74% of the Paid-Up Share Capital 
st

had been dematerialized, as at 31  March, 2025.

A reconcilia�on of share capital, audited by Prac�cing Company Secretary (PCS) is submi�ed to the 
Stock Exchanges on a quarterly basis in terms of regula�on 76 of SEBI (Depositories and Par�cipants) 
Regula�ons, 2018.

xii. Address for Correspondence: 
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Limited

nd
Registered Office Address: Mercan�le Building, Block-E, 2  Floor, 9/12, Lalbazar Street, Kolkata-
700001

th
Corporate Office Address: Jajodia Tower 4  Floor, Room No. D-8, 3, Ben�nck Street Kolkata-700001
Email:  info@scintilla.co.in
Website: www.scintilla.co.in

xiii. Distribu�on of Shareholding:
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st
 The shareholding distribu�on of equity shares as on 31  March, 2025 is given below:

st
Categories of Shareholders as on 31  March, 2025: 

9. DISCLOSURES: 
a. The Company did not have any materially significant related party transac�ons during the period 

under review made by the Company with Promoters, Directors or other designated person which 
may have a poten�al conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The Company has the 
Related Party Transac�on Policy which has been hosted on the website of the Company at 
www.scin�lla.co.in. There is no transac�on of a material nature with any related party, which was in 
conflict with the interest of the Company. In any case, disclosures regarding the transac�ons with 
related par�es are given in the notes to the accounts of Financial Statements.

b. The Company has complied with the requirements of regulatory authori�es on capital market and 
no penal�es / strictures have been imposed against it in the last three years.

 
c. The Company has adopted Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower policy and affirms that no personal has 

been denied access to the Audit Commi�ee. This policy has been posted on the website of the 
Company. 

d. The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements under the applicable provisions of 
SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

e. The Company has adopted Policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries which has been placed in 
the website of the Company .www.scin�lla.co.in

f. The Company has not raised funds through preferen�al allotment or qualified ins�tu�ons 
placement as specified under Regula�on 32(7A) during the financial year 2024-25.

No of shares (Range) No of shareholders No of Equity shares held  Percentage of  holding  

1-500 1110 107827  1.08  

501-1000 210 170625  1.70  

1001-5000 357 913217  9.11  

5001-10000 92 701371  7.00  

10001-50000 93 2198144  21.92  

50001-100000 8 600577  5.99  

100001 and Above 18 5336016  53.20  

Total 1888 1,00,27,777  100.00  

 

Category No of Shares held % of shareholdings 

Promoters’ Holding 18,86,489 18.81 

Non-Promoters’ Holding 81,41,288 81.19 

Total  1,00,27,777 100.00 
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g. The Company has received a cer�ficate from a Company Secretary in Prac�ce cer�fying that none of 
the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or con�nuing as Directors of Company by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

h. The Board had accepted all recommenda�on of mandatory commi�ees during the financial year 
2024-25.

i. Details of total fees for all services, paid by the Company to the Statutory Auditors have been 
provided under Notes to the Financial Statement forming part of this Annual Report.

j. Disclosures in rela�on to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, 
Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

• number of complaints filed during the financial year - NIL 

• number of complaints disposed of during the financial year - N.A.
 
• number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year – NIL

k. The loans /advances are provided to firms/ Companies in which the directors of the Company are 
interested and the same has been disclosed in the Notes to Financial Statements.

l. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Accoun�ng 
Standards and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and related rules, as amended from 
�me to �me.

m. There has been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report 
and the Company has fully complied with the applicable requirements specified in Regula�on 17 to 

st
27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-Regula�on 2 of Regula�on 46 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons as on 31  
March, 2025.

n. Disclosure on discre�onary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II of the Lis�ng 
Regula�ons:
· Shareholders' Rights 

The Company's Financial Results are uploaded on its website . Hence, www.scintilla.co.in
Financial Results are not sent to the Shareholders. However, the Company furnishes the 
Financial Results on receipt of request from the shareholders. 

· Modified opinion in Audit Report
The Statutory Auditors have provided an unmodified opinion in their Audit Reports on the 

st
financials the Company for the year ended 31  March, 2025. 

· Repor�ng of Internal Auditor 
Internal Audit Report are directly to the Board.

10. CODE OF CONDUCT: 
The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board members and all employees in 
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For and on behalf of the Board
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Limited

Manisha Khandelwal
Director

DIN: 10299567

Jitendra Kumar Goyal
Managing Director

DIN: 00468744
Place: Kolkata 
Date: 02.09.2025  

Sd/- Sd/-

management grade of the Company. The Code of Conduct is posted on the website of the Company. All 
Board members and senior management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. Chief 
Execu�ve Officer's (MD) cer�ficate regarding compliance of the Code of Conduct by the Directors and 
Senior Management is appended to this Report.

11. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM THE AUDITORS: 
The Company has obtained a cer�ficate from Statutory Auditors of the Company, regarding the 
compliance with the provisions of Corporate Governance as required under the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons. 
The same is annexed to this Report.

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited
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CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

I, Jitendra Kumar Goyal, Managing Director of the Company, hereby affirm and declare, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief and on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company and Senior Management 
Personnel, that:

· The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel of the Company;

· The Code of Conduct has been posted on the website of the Company;

· The Code of Conduct has been complied with.

For and on behalf of the Board
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Limited

Sd/-
Jitendra Kumar Goyal

Managing Director
DIN: 00468744

Place: Kolkata 
Date: 02.09.2025  
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Cer�fica�on by Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
(Under Regula�on 17(8) of Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regula�ons, 2015)

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best 
of our knowledge and belief:

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading;

b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 
compliance with exis�ng accoun�ng standards, applicable laws and regula�ons.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transac�ons entered into by the Company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or viola�ve of the Company's code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial repor�ng and 
that we have evaluated the effec�veness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 
financial repor�ng and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit commi�ee, deficiencies in the 
design or opera�on of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have 
taken or propose to take to rec�fy these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit commi�ee:
a) significant changes in internal control over financial repor�ng during the year, if any;

b) significant changes in accoun�ng policies during the year, if any, and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

c) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if 
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal 
control system over financial repor�ng.

Sd/-
Manoj Biyani

CFO
PAN: AEFPB3880C

For and on behalf of the Board
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Limited

Jitendra Kumar Goyal
Managing Director

DIN: 00468744
Place: Kolkata 
Date: 02.09.2025  

Sd/-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Limited

1. This cer�ficate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement.

2. We, Surajit Roy and Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Scin�lla 
Commercial & Credit Limited (“the Company”) have examined the compliance of condi�ons of 

st 
Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended on 31 March, 2025, as s�pulated in 
regula�ons 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regula�on 46(2) and para-C and D of Schedule V of the 
SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (the Lis�ng Regula�ons).

Management's Responsibility

3. The compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 
This responsibility includes the design, implementa�on and maintenance of internal control and 
procedures to ensure the compliance with the condi�ons of the Corporate Governance s�pulated in 
Lis�ng Regula�ons.

Auditor's Responsibility 

4. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementa�on thereof, adopted by 
the Company for ensuring compliance with the condi�ons of the Corporate Governance. It is neither 
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

5. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by 
the Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate 
Governance requirements by the Company.

6. We conducted our examina�on in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Cer�ficate for 
Special Purposes (Revised 2016) (the 'Guidance Note') issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ('ICAI'). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical 
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI.

Opinion

7. Based on our examina�on of the relevant records and according to the informa�on and explana�ons 
provided to us and the representa�ons provided by the Management, we cer�fy that the Company 
has complied with the condi�ons of Corporate Governance as s�pulated in regula�ons 17 to 27 and 
clauses (b) to (i) of regula�on 46 (2) and Para –C and D of Schedule V of the Lis�ng Regula�ons during 

st
the year ended 31  March, 2025.
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8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effec�veness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

Restric�on on Use

9. The cer�ficate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to 
enable the Company to comply with the requirement of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, and it should not be 
used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any 
liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this cer�ficate is 
shown or in to  whose hands it may come without our prior consent in wri�ng.02.09.2025 

For Surajit Roy and Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 326099E

Surajit Roy
Partner

Membership No.: 057260
UDIN: 25057260BMIEWT4620 

Place: Kolkata
Date: 01.09.2025 

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited

sd/-



40

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuant to Regula�on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Lis�ng 

Obliga�ons and         Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015]

To
The Members of 
Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Ltd 
Mercan�le Building, 
Block-E, 2nd Floor
 9/12, Lalbazar Street, Kolkata-700 001

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of M/s Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Ltd. (CIN - L65191WB1990PLC048276) having its 
Registered Office at Mercan�le Building, Block-E, 2nd Floor, 9/12, Lalbazar Street, Kolkata – 700 001 
(hereina�er referred to as 'the  Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of 
issuing this Cer�ficate in accordance with  Regula�on 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C  Sub clause 
10(i) of the Securi�es Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my informa�on and according to the verifica�ons (including Directors 
Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) status at the portal ) as considered necessary and www.mca.gov.in
explana�ons furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby cer�fy that none of the Directors 

st
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2025 have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or con�nue as Directors of company by the 
Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory 
Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/con�nuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion based on 
my verifica�on. This cer�ficate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 
the efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sl. No. Name of Directors DIN Date of Appointment  

1. Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal 00468744 29/01/1990 

2. Mr. Mahesh Kumar Kejriwal 07382906 06/10/2016 

3. Ms. Ritu Agarwal 08143534 30/05/2018 

4. Ms. Pooja Kalanouria 09056683 11/02/2021 

5.
 

Ms. Manisha Khandelwal
 

10299567
 

01/09/2023
 

Rajesh Ghorawat
Prac�cing Company Secretary

FCS: 7226
COP: 20897

                  ICSI Peer Review No.: 1992/2022 
                                                         UDIN: F007226G000361371

thDate: 16  May, 2025     
Place: Kolkata       

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited

sd/-

http://www.mca.gov.in/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SCINTILLA COMMERCIAL & CREDIT LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Scin�lla Commercial & Credit Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and 
other explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as (“ Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies  Act, 2013  (“the  Act”) in  the  
manner so  required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the  Indian  Accoun�ng  Standards 
prescribed under  sec�on  133  of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, 
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2025, and total comprehensive income (comprising of net profit and other 
comprehensive income/(loss)), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs)specified under sec�on 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the 
ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial 
statements.

Key Audit Ma�ers
Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these ma�ers. We have determined the ma�ers described below to be the key audit ma�ers to be communicated 
in our report.

Descrip�on of Key Audit Ma�er

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) on loans (refer note no 5.2(f), note no 11 and 34(1)(a) of the financial 
statements
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Sr. 
No.

Key Audit Ma�er                                               How the ma�er was addressed in our audit

1. Management es�mates impairment 
provision using Expected Credit loss model 
for the loan assets. Measurement of loan 
impairment involves applica�on of 
s i g n i fi c a n t  j u d g e m e n t  b y  t h e 
management. The most significant 
judgements are:

Timely iden�fica�on and classifica�on of 
the impaired loans.

Determina�on of probability of defaults 
(PD) and es�ma�on of loss given defaults 
(LGD) based on the premise that loans 
made by the company are unsecured and 
relevant factors.

The es�ma�on of Expected Credit Loss 
(ECL) on financial instruments involve 
significant judgments and es�mates. 
Following are points with increased level 
of audit focus:

Ÿ  Classifica�on of assets to stage 1, 2 or 3 
using criteria in accordance with Ind AS 
109

Ÿ  A c c o u n � n g  i n t e r p r e t a � o n s , 
assump�ons and data used to build the 
models;

Ÿ  Inputs and judgements used by the 
management at various assets stages.

Ÿ  The disclosures made in the financial 
statements for ECL especially in 
rela�on to judgements and es�mates 
m a d e  b y  t h e  m a n a g e m e n t  i n 
determina�on of the ECL.

Considering the significance of such 
allowances to the overall financial 
statements and degree of judgement and 
es�ma�on involved in computa�on of 
expected credit losses, this area is 
considered as key audit ma�er.

1) In our audit approach we assessed the basis upon 
which the ECL model is build and discussed with the 
management of the Company in order to understand 
the mechanics of ECL deployed by the company to 
measure the loan impairment.

2) We examined that Board does not have approved 
policy for computa�on of ECL, but have in place the 
internal guidelines for computa�on of ECL. These 
internal guidelines address procedures and controls for 
assessing and measuring the credit risk on its loan 
por�olio.

3) We evaluated the opera�ng effec�veness of controls 
across the process relevant to ECL including the 
judgments and es�mates.

4) We evaluated the nature of loan assets of the company 
and held discussions with the management and 
assessed that the company has only one class of loan 
i.e. unsecured loans repayable on demand and 12 
month ECL is just the same as life�me ECL, because the 
all the loans are repayable on demand, which is shorter 
than 12 months as a result life �me of a loan is that 
short period required to transfer cash when demanded 
by the company.

5) We tested the completeness of loans and advances 
included in the Expected Credit Loss calcula�ons as of 
March 31, 2025 by reconciling it with the balances as 
per loan balance register as on date.

6) We tested assets on sample basis to verify that they 
were allocated to the appropriate stage.

7) F o r  s a m p l e s  o f  e x p o s u r e ,  w e  t e s t e d  t h e 
appropriateness of determining EAD, PD and LGD.

8) For forward looking assump�ons used in ECL 
calcula�ons, we held discussions with management, 
assessed the assump�ons used to determine the 
probability weights assigned to the possible outcomes. 
During our examina�on we assessed that company 
es�mates the PD based on historical observed default 
rates adjusted for forward looking es�mates, based 
upon macro-economic developments occurring in the 
economy and market it operates in. 

9)  We performed an overall assessment of the ECL 
provision including the management's assessment if 
they were reasonable considering the Company's 
por�olio, risk profile, credit risk management prac�ces 
and the macro-economic environment. We held 

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited



43

Sr. 
No.

Key Audit Ma�er                                               How the ma�er was addressed in our audit

1. discussions with the management on its assessment  
and we assessed that management does not expect 
any significant impairment in its en�re loan por�olio. 
However, we could not assess the appropriateness of 
the future scenarios and assump�ons made by the 
management in response to economic uncertainty as 
we do not have the access of the detailed data (like 
Income tax returns, financial statements, projected 
financial statements, cash flow statements etc.)  of the 
borrowers of the company.

10) We assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of 
disclosures in compliance with accoun�ng standards in 
rela�on to judgements used in es�ma�on of ECL 
provisions.

Informa�on other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the 
informa�on included in the Management's Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's 
Report, Corporate Governance Report included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed; we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the other informa�on included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the ma�er to those charged with governance and 
determine the ac�ons under the applicable laws and regula�ons.

Management's Responsibility and those charged with governance for the Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the prepara�on of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in 
India.  This  responsibility  also  includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the  Act for safe guarding of the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and 
other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, 
relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial  statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to con�nue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited



44

accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c 
alterna�ve but to do so. The Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's 
financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material 
misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial control system in place 
and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presenta�on. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually origin aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and 
�ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that 
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may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure 
about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1)As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in 
terms of Sec�on143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraph 
3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable. 

2)As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examina�on of those books.

c)The Balance Sheet, the Statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant 
books of account.

d)In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards specified under 
Sec�on 133 of the Act.

e)On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act.

f)With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financials statements of the 
Company and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

g)With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
st

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2021, effec�ve from 01  April 2021, in our opinion and to best 
of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us: 

a)The Company did not have any material pending li�ga�ons as at March 31, 2025, which may effect on its 
financial posi�on significantly

b)The Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses, during the year ended March 31, 2025.

c) During the year no amounts were required to be transferred, to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund by 
the Company, so the ques�on of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

std) Omi�ed by the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules 2021, effec�ve from 01  April, 2021

e) (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 
36(1)(14)(A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
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borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other 
person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
wri�ng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es 
iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 
36(1)(14)(B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or 
en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Funding Par�es”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.

(iii)Unmodified Opinion:
Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our no�ce that has caused us to believe that the representa�ons under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement.

f) No dividends were declared or paid during the year by the Company, hence compliance with Sec�on 123 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable

g) With respect to the ma�ers to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule 11(g) of Companies 
st(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 effec�ve from 1  April 2023, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and 

according to the explana�ons given to us and based on our examina�on which included test checks, the Company 
have used an accoun�ng so�ware for maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail 
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transac�ons recorded in the 
so�ware in compliance to the Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (or maintaining books 
of account using accoun�ng so�ware which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility as applicable to 
the company with effect from April, 2023). Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

Further pursuant to Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 for repor�ng requirement for 
preservance of Audit trail by the company, the company has preserved/retained the audit trail and the same has 
not been tampered with.

3) With respect to the ma�er to be included in the Auditor's Report under Sec�on 197(16) of the Act:
In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the remunera�on paid by the 
Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 197 of the Act read 
with Schedule V to the Act.

For and on behalf of 

For Surajit Roy and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on Number: 326099E

Sd/-
CA Surajit Roy
Partner
Membership Number: 057260
UDIN: 25057260BMIEVT7213

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29-05-2025
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors' Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to paragraph 2 (f) underReport on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements of Scin�lla 
Commercial & Credit Limited. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SCINTILLA COMMERCIAL 
& CREDIT LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunc�on with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's Management and the Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial 
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al component of stated in the Guidance 
Note issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibili�es include the design, 
implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Audi�ng prescribed under Sec�on143(10) of the Companies Act,2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effec�vely in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to the financial statements and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial 
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng 
effec�ve internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statement.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements.
A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statement is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of s financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company's internal financial 
control with reference to  financial statement includes those policies and procedures that:-
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For and on behalf of 

For Surajit Roy and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on Number: 326099E

Sd/-
CA Surajit Roy
Partner
Membership Number: 057260
UDIN: 25057260BMIEVT7213

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29-05-2025

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the company;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authoriza�ons of 
management and directors of the company; and 

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, 
use, or disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
these financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these  financial statements were 
opera�ng effec�vely as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference to these financial 
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the 'Guidance Note').
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Scin�lla 
Commercial & Credit Limited Company on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, 
we report the following:

i. In respect of the Company's Property, plant and equipment:
(a) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. The Company does not have 

any intangible assets, hence repor�ng under clause (i) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment and hence repor�ng under 
clause (i) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable proper�es of freehold or leasehold land and 
building and hence repor�ng under clause (i) (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment and hence repor�ng under 
clause (i) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on 
of the records of the Company and as stated in Note no 33 (1) to the  financial statements, no 
proceedings have been ini�ated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�ons) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
there under

ii. (a)  The Company is in the business of providing loans, making investments in shares and securi�es 
and does not have any physical inventories. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause (ii) (a) of the Order is 
not applicable.

(b)   In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, at any point of �me 
of the year, the Company has not been sanc�oned working capital limits in excess of five crores, in 
aggregate, from banks or financial ins�tu�ons on the basis of security of currents assets, and hence 
repor�ng under clause (ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii. (a) Since the Company's principal business is to give loans, the provisions of clause (iii) (a) of the Order 
are not applicable to it.

(b) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the investments 
made, and the terms and condi�ons of the grant of loans and advances in the nature of loans provided 
are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest

(c) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, in respect of loans 
and advances in the nature of loans, the loans are repayable on demand and schedule of payment of 
interest has been s�pulated and repayments or receipts are regular during the year

(d) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no amount is 
overdue in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans.

(e) Since the Company's principal business is to give loans, the provisions of clause (iii) (e) of the Order 
are not applicable to 
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(f) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has 
granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to Related par�es (as defined in Sec�on 2(76) of the 
Act) which are repayable on demand. Required details in respect thereof are as follows:

iv. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has 
complied with the applicable provisions of Sec�ons 185 and 186 of the Act with respect to the loans 
given, and investments made. Further the Company has not given guarantees or provided security.

v. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of sec�ons 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under and hence repor�ng under 
clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed for the ac�vi�es of the Company by the 
Central Government under Sec�on 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

vii. a) The Company is generally regular in deposi�ng with appropriate authori�es, undisputed statutory 
dues including Income Tax, provident fund, employee state insurance Goods and Services Tax, and 
other statutory dues as may be applicable to it and the extent of the arrears of outstanding Statutory 
dues as on the last day of the financial year concerned were not for a period of more than six months 
from the date, they become payable.

As informed, the provisions of provident fund, employee state insurance and Goods and Services Tax 
are currently not applicable to the Company.

b) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, there are no 
statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authority on account of any 
dispute.

viii. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons give to us and on the basis of our 
examina�on of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across any 
transac�ons recorded in the books of account which reflected income surrendered or disclosed 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act 1961.  

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of 
our examina�on of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 
or other borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender or financial ins�tu�ons during the 
year. The Company does not have any borrowings from banks, or from Government.

Par�culars All par�es Promoters Related Par�es 

Aggregate number of loans 
/advances in nature of loans  

 Repayable on demand (A) 

 Agreement does not specify any 
terms or period of repayment (B)

               

 

  

 85,615.58 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

  

 Nil 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

  

 65,590.13 

 

 

 

Nil 

Total (A) + (B) 85,615.58 

 

Nil 65,590.13 

Percentage of loans/advances 

in nature of loans to the total loans  

 
100% 

 
Nil 

 
76.61% 
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(b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or 
financial ins�tu�on or government or any government authority or any other lender.

(c) The Company has neither taken any term loan during the year nor there are unu�lized term 
loans at the beginning of the year; hence, repor�ng under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(d) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, and the procedures performed by 
us, and on an overall examina�on of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no 
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, been used for long term purposes by the 
Company.

(e) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on an overall examina�on of the 
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from 
any en�ty or person on account of or to meet the obliga�ons of its subsidiaries. Further the 
Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates.

(f) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and procedures performed by us, we 
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securi�es held in its 
subsidiaries. Further the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates.

x. (a) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has not 
raised moneys by way of ini�al public offer or further public offer including debt instruments or term 
loans and hence repor�ng under this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company
(b) The Company has not made any preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares or 
conver�ble debentures during the year.

xi. a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no 
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been 
no�ced or reported during the year.
(b) There is no instance, during the year under considera�on that necessitates repor�ng in Form 
ADT-4.

(c) There are no instances of whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the Company.

xii. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi company. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company is in 
compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 177 and Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where 
applicable for all transac�ons with the related par�es and the details of the related party transac�ons 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Accoun�ng Standards.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and based on our examina�on, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. The Company has engaged a firm of Chartered 
Accountants to carry out internal audit and who submit their report to the Audit Commi�ee and to 
the Board of Directors.

(b) The reports of the internal auditors for the period under audit have been considered by us.
xv. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, during the year the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transac�ons with its directors or persons connected with 
them
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.
xvi. (a) In our Opinion, the Company being a non-deposit taking non-systema�cally important Non-

Banking Financial Company and is required to be registered under Sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934 and the Company has duly obtained the required registra�on.
(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance ac�vi�es 
without a valid Cer�ficate of Registra�on (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the Regula�ons made by 
the Reserve Bank of India hence Para 3(xvi)(c) and Para 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the F.Y 2024-2025, however there were cash losses 
of Rs 1187.19 thousand during the immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii. There has been no resigna�on of the Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of the financial ra�os, 
ageing and expected dates of realiza�on of financial assets and payment of financial liabili�es, other 
informa�on accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examina�on of the evidence suppor�ng the assump�ons, 
nothing has come to our a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng at the date 
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further 
state that our repor�ng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx. The Provisions of Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company, hence 
repor�ng under {Para 3(xx)(a)} and {Para 3(xx)(b)} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi. Repor�ng under clause xxi of the Order is not applicable to the company as the company does not 
have subsidiaries , associates or joint ventures.

For and on behalf of 

For Surajit Roy and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on Number: 326099E

Sd/-
CA Surajit Roy
Partner
Membership Number: 057260
UDIN: 25057260BMIEVT7213

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29-05-2025
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Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025 (Rs in '000)

Par�culars 
Note 

No.

I.  ASSETS

    (1)   Financial Assets

            (a)    Cash and cash equivalents 9 577.37           1,668.73        

            (b)    Receivables 10

                      (i)  Trade receivables -                 2,625.00        

            (c)    Loans 11 81,168.55     75,035.52      

            (d)    Investments 12 23,684.08     26,397.12      

            (e)    Other financial assets 13 300.00           105,729.99   -                  105,726.37    

    (2)    Non-Financial Assets

            (a)     Current tax assets (net) 14 475.42           538.31            

            (b)     Deferred tax assets (net) 15 1,082.96       813.38            

            (c)     Other non-financial assets 16 381.05           1,939.42       298.00            1,649.69        

    Total Assets 107,669.41   107,376.06    

II.  LIABILITES AND EQUITY

       Liabili�es

    (1)   Financial Liabili�es

             Payables 17

            (a)    Trade payables

                   (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises -                 -                  

                       and small enterprises

                   (i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than -                 -                  
                      micro enterprises and small enterprises

            (c)    Borrowings (other than debt securi�es) 18 8,157.15       8,079.15        

           (d)     Other financial liabili�es 19 120.26           8,277.41       97.42              8,176.58        

    (2)   Non-Financial Liabili�es

           (a)     Other non-financial liabili�es 20 10.36             10.36             10.47              10.47              

     Total Liabili�es 8,287.77       8,187.05        

    (3)   Equity

            (a)     Equity share capital 21 100,277.77   100,277.77    

            (b)     Other equity 22 (896.13) -1,088.76       

     Total Equity 99,381.64     99,189.01      

     Total Liabili�es and Equity 107,669.41   107,376.06    

    Corporate Informa�on 1
    The accompanying notes 1 to 36 are an integral

    part of the financial statements

 As at 31st March 2024  As at 31st March 2025 

As per our report of even date a�ached

For  Surajit Roy and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on No: 326099E

Sd/-
CA Surajit Roy
Partner
Membership No- 057260
UDIN: 25057260BMIEVT7213

Place of Signature : Kolkata
Date : 29.05.2025

           For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/-
Jitendra Kumar Goyal

Managing Director
DIN: 00468744

Sd/-
Manisha Khandelwal

Director
DIN: 10299567

  

Sd/- 
 Manoj Biyani 

 Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Priyanka Mohta

Company Secretary
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Par�culars Note No
 Year ended 31st 

March 2025 

 Year ended 31st 

March 2024 
        Revenue from opera�ons
        i) Interest income 23 6,191.22                5,948.03                  
        ii) Net gain on fair value change 24 -                            

        iii) Other opera�ng income 25 -                           -                            

I      Total Revenue from opera�ons 6,191.22                5,948.03                  

II    Other Income 26 23.44                      11.69                        

III    Total Income(I+II) 6,214.66                5,959.71                  
       Expenses: 
      i) Finance Cost 27 432.39                    509.18                      

      ii) Net loss on fair value change 24 3,268.04                4,221.01                  

      iii) Impairment of financial instruments 28 322.79                    992.28                      
      iv) Employee benefit expense 29 809.76                    808.58                      
      v) Other expenses 30 1,306.31                1,229.14                  

IV  Total Expenses 6,139.29                7,760.19                  

V     Profit before excep�onal items and tax (III - IV) 75.36 -1,800.48                
VI    Excep�onal Items -           -                           -                            
VII   Profit /(Loss) before tax (V + VI) 75.36 -1,800.48                

VIII  Tax expense : 31
        (1)  Current tax -                           2.92                          
        (2)  Deferred tax (269.58) (211.00)
        (3)  Tax adjustment for earliers -                           95.76                        

         Total tax expense (269.58) -112.32                    

IX     Profit /(Loss) for the period from con�nuing opera�ons (VII - VIII) 
X      Profit /(Loss) for the year 344.94 -1,688.16                
XI    Other Comprehensive Income / Loss 32

                (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (152.31) -225.00                    

               (ii) Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be recycled to profit or loss -                           -                            
         Total other Comprehensive Income / Loss (152.31) -225.00                    

XII    Total Comprehensive Income  for the year (X + XI) 192.63 -1,913.16                
         ( Comprising of profit /(loss) and other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year)

XII    Earnings per equity share ( Nominal value per share Rs 10 /-)
         Basic and diluted      ( Refer Note no 33 (5) ) 0.03                       (0.17)                       

         Number of shares used in compu�ng earnings per share
         Basic and diluted      ( Refer Note no 33 (5) ) 100277.77 100277.77

      Corporate Informa�on 1
      The accompanying notes 1 to 36  are an integral part
      of the financial statements

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025                                            ( Rs in '000)

As per our report of even date a�ached
For  Surajit Roy and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on No: 326099E

Sd/-
CA Surajit Roy
Partner
Membership No- 057260
UDIN: 25057260BMIEVT7213

Place of Signature : Kolkata
Date : 29.05.2025

           For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/-
Jitendra Kumar Goyal

Managing Director
DIN: 00468744

Sd/-
Manisha Khandelwal

Director
DIN: 10299567

  

Sd/- 
 Manoj Biyani 

 Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Priyanka Mohta

Company Secretary
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For the year ended 31st 

March, 2025 (Rs in '000)

Balance as at 
1st April, 2024

Changes in equity 
share capital due to 
prior period errors

Restated balance at 
the beginning of 
current repor�ng 

period

Balance as at 
31st March, 2025

100,277.77 - -                                 -                                   100,277.77             

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2024 (Rs in '000)

Changes in equity 

share capital due to 

prior period errors

Restated balance at 

the beginning of 

current repor�ng 

period

100,277.77 -                                     -                                 -                                   100,277.77             

 (b). Other equity : (Rs in '000)

Reserves and Surplus

 Retained Earnings  Statutory reserve 

 Balance as at 
1st April, 2024  (1,984.08)                            895.32 -                                   -1,088.76                

 Changes in accoun�ng 

policy or prior period 

errors 

 Restated balance at the 

beginning of the period 

 Changes in equity during 

 the year ended 31st 

 March, 2025 
 Profit for the year 

344.94 344.94                       Transfer to statutory 

reserve -68.99                               68.99                             -                           

 Other Comprehensive 

income/loss for the year (152.31) (152.31)                   

 Transfer from/to other 

Comprehensive 

income/retained (152.31) 152.31                            -                           

 Balance as at 
31st March, 2025  (1,860.44)                            964.31                                      -   (896.13)

Changes in equity 
share capital during 

the year

 Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

Total other equity Par�culars 

Changes in equity 

share capital during 

the year

(a). Equity Share capital:

Balance as at 
1st April, 2024

Balance as at 
31st March, 2025
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 (b).Other equity : ( Cont) (Rs in '000)

Reserves and Surplus

 Retained Earnings  Statutory reserve 

 Balance as at 
1st April, 2023                                 (70.92)                           895.32 -                                   824.40                    

 Changes in accoun�ng 

policy or prior period 

errors 

 Restated balance at the 

beginning of the period 

 Changes in equity during 

 the year ended 31st 

 March, 2024 

 Profit for the year -1,688.16                         -1,688.16                
 Transfer to statutory 

reserve -                                     -                                 

 Other Comprehensive 

income/loss for the year -225.00                          -225.00                    

 Transfer from/to other 

Comprehensive 

income/retained -225.00                             225.00                           -                           
 Balance as at 31st March, 

2024 (1,984.08) 895.32                           -                                   -1,088.76                

 Par�culars 
 Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

Total other equity

                        

                                    

                            

 The accompanying notes 1 to 36  are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date a�ached

For  Surajit Roy and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on No: 326099E

Sd/-
CA Surajit Roy
Partner
Membership No- 057260
UDIN: 25057260BMIEVT7213

Place of Signature : Kolkata
Date : 29.05.2025

           For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/-
Jitendra Kumar Goyal

Managing Director
DIN: 00468744

Sd/-
Manisha Khandelwal

Director
DIN: 10299567

  

Sd/- 
 Manoj Biyani 

 Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Priyanka Mohta

Company Secretary
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Par�culars

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before excep�onal items and tax 75.36            -1,800.48   
Adjustments to reconcile profit before excep�onal items and tax 
to net cash flow provided by opera�ng ac�vi�es
Other income -

           
(0.09)

            Interest on TDS/IT refund (23.44)
     

(11.59)
          Finance cost 432.39

      

509.18

          408.96

          

497.49

        Opera�ng profit/loss before working capital changes 484.32

          

-1,302.99

   Adjustments to reconcile opera�ng profit to cash flow provided by 
changes in working capital

Decrease/ (Increase) in loans (6,133.03)    -18,753.28 
Decrease/ (Increase) in Investments   2,560.73 17,253.26 
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 2,625

       

(1,025.00)
(Increase) /Decrease in other financial/ non financial Assets (300.00)

   

115.00
Decrease / (Increase) in trade payables -

           

-

                

Decrease / (Increase) in other non-financial assets -20.16

      

-370.87

         

(Decrease)/ Increase in other financial and non-financial liabili�es 22.72

       

(10.66)

          

-1,244.73

    

(2,791.55)

Cash generated from opera�ons -760.41

        

(4,094.54)
Tax Expense -

                

98.68

           

Net cash generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es                      A -760.41

        

(4,193.22)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Other income -

            

0.09
Interest on TDS/IT Refunds 23.44

        

11.59

             

Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es                                       B 23.44

            

11.69

           

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 Borrowings (other than debt instruments) 78.00

        

379.04

          

Interest Expense (432.39)

   

(509.18)

       

Net cash (used in) financing ac�vi�es                                    C (354.39)

       

(130.14)

Net decrease/ Increase in cash and cash equivalents  (A+B+C) -1,091.37

    

(4,311.67)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 1,668.73

      

5,980.41

     

Closing cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of 577.37

          

1,668.73

     

Cash Flow Statement 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March 2025                                                                         (Rs in '000)

Year ended 
31st March 2024 

Year ended 31st 

March 2025

Notes:
1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘’ Indirect Method ‘’ as set out in the Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind 
AS)-7on Statement of Cash Flows
2) Cash and cash equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use
3) Cash and cash equivalents as at the Balance Sheet date consists of: (Rs in '000)
Par�culars  As at 31st March 2024  

Balances with banks
On current accounts 418.92

      
1,531.60

Cash on hand 158.45

      

137.14
Closing cash and cash equivalents  (Refer Note 9) 577.37

      

1,668.73

Closing cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement 577.37

      

1,668.73

 As at 31st March 2025

As per our report of even date a�ached
For  Surajit Roy and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on No: 326099E

Sd/-
CA Surajit Roy
Partner
Membership No- 057260
UDIN: 25057260BMIEVT7213

Place of Signature : Kolkata
Date : 29.05.2025

           For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/-
Jitendra Kumar Goyal

Managing Director
DIN: 00468744

Sd/-
Manisha Khandelwal

Director
DIN: 10299567

  

Sd/- 
 Manoj Biyani 

 Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Priyanka Mohta

Company Secretary
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
Note No : 1  Corporate Informa�ons
Scin�lla Commercial Limited ( “the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. 
The registered office of the Company is situated at "Mercan�le Building" Block -E, 2nd Floor, 9/12 Lalbazar Street, 
Kolkata 700001, West Bengal IndiaThe Company’s shares are listed on the BSE Ltd (The Bombay Stock Exchange)

The Company is a Non-Deposit taking Systema�cally not important Non-Banking Financial Company and is 
Registered under Sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company is engaged in the business of 
making investments in shares and Securi�es, extending loans and advances and other financial services ac�vi�es, 
except insurance and pension, funding ac�vi�es, n.e.cThe financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 
2025 were approved for issuance by the Board of Directors of the Company in theirmee�ng held on May 30, 2025.

Note No. : 2  Basis of prepara�on
The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accoun�ng
Standards (Ind AS) no�fied under the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from 
�me to �me). For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company prepared its financial 
statements in accordance with accoun�ng standards no�fied under sec�on 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read 
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).

Historical  Cost Conven�on
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for deriva�ve financial instruments 
and other financial assets held for trading all of which have been measured at fair value.

Uses of Es�mates and Judgements
The prepara�on of financial statements requires the management to make judgements, accoun�ng es�mates and 
assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabili�es, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of 
con�ngent liabili�es, at the end of the repor�ng period.

Although these es�mates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and ac�ons, 
uncertainty about these assump�ons and es�mates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets or liabili�es in future periods. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or 
complexity, or areas where assump�ons are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 7 - Significant 
accoun�ng

judgements, es�mates and assump�ons.
The  financial statements including notes thereon are presented in Indian Rupees (“Rupees”or “Rs.” ), which is the 
Company’s func�onal and presenta�on currency. All amounts disclosed in the financial statements including notes 
thereon have been roundedoff to the nearest thousands as per the requirement of Schedule III to the Act, unless 
stated
 otherwise.

Note No. : 3  Presenta�on of Financial Statement
These financial statements have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with the Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards (Ind AS) Statements as prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements of the Company are presented in order of liquidity and in accordance with Schedule III
(Division III) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as no�fied by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA). An analysis regarding recovery or se�lement within 12 months a�er the repor�ng date (current) and more
than 12 months a�er the repor�ng date (non–current) is presented in Note 32(1)
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Financial assets and financial liabili�es are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an 
uncondi�onal legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being con�ngent on a future 
event and the par�es intend to se�le on a net basis in the following circumstances:
I)   The normal course of business
ii)  The event of default
iii) The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and/or its counterpar�es

Note No. : 4  Statement of Compliance
These standalone statements of the Company have been prepared  in accordance with Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards ('Ind  AS') no�fied under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015 (as ammended) and other relevant provisions of the Act to 
the  extent applicable and applicable guidelines issued by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI')

Note No. : 5  Significant Accoun�ng Policies
5.1  Revenue recogni�on
Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair
value of the considera�on received or receivable. The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers 
based on a five step model as set out in Ind As115:

Step 1: Iden�fy contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more par�es 
that creates enforceable rights and obliga�ons and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.
Step 2: Iden�fy performance obliga�ons in the contract:
A performance obliga�on is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or a service to the customer.
Step 3: Determine the transac�on price: The transac�on price is the amount of considera�on to which the 
Company expects to be en�tled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding 
amounts collected on behalf of third par�es.

Step 4: Allocate the transac�on price to the performance obliga�ons in the contract: For a contract that has more
than one performance obliga�on, the Company allocates the transac�on price to each performance obliga�on in
an amount that depicts the amount of considera�on to which the Company expects to be en�tled in exchange for
sa�sfying each performance obliga�on.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company sa�sfies a performance obliga�on.
Revenue includes the following:

I)  Interest Income
Interest income on a financial asset at amor�sed cost is recognised on a �me propor�on basis taking into account 
the amount outstanding and the effec�ve interest rate ('EIR'). The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed.

a. As the rate that exactly discounts es�mated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in es�ma�ng the cash flows
c. Including all fees received between par�es to the contract that are an integral part of the effec�ve interest rate, 
transac�on costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the es�ma�on of the future cash flows is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effec�ve interest rate to the net amor�zed 
cost (net of provision) of the financial asset.
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II)  Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised on the date when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established , it is 
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the en�ty and the amount of 
dividend can be reliably measured. in case of interim dividend, on the date of declara�on by the Board of Directors; 
whereas in case of final dividend, on the date of approval by the shareholders.

III)  Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes
Any differences between the fair values of financial assets (including investments, deriva�ves and stock in trade) 
classified as fair value through the profit or loss (“FVTPL”)  held by the Company on the balance sheet date is 
recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net 
gains on fair value changes” under Revenue from opera�ons and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed under 
“Expenses” in the statement of profit and loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL is recognised in net gain /
loss on fair value changes.

However, net gain / loss on derecogni�on of financial instruments classified as amor�zed cost is presented 
separately under the respec�ve head in the statement of profit and loss.

Income from investments in Equity / Preferance  which are included within FVTOCI Category (Fair value through 
Other Comprehensive income) are recognised in OCI (Other comprehensive income) except the dividend on such  
investments which are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

IV) Other Income
In repect of the other heads of income it is accounted to the extent it is probable that economic benefits will fow 
and the revenue can be realiably measured, regardless of when payment is made.

5.2  Financial Instruments
(I) Ini�al measurement of financial instruments
The classifica�on of financial instruments at ini�al recogni�on depends on their contractual terms and the 
business model for managing the instruments, as described in subsequent notes. Financial instruments are ini�ally 
measured at their fair value, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabili�es recorded at FVTPL, 
transac�on costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are measured at the transac�on 
price. When the fair value of financial instruments at ini�al recogni�on differs from the transac�on price, the 
company accounts for the Day 1 profit or loss, as described below.

When the transac�on price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origina�on and the fair value is based on 
a valua�on technique using only inputs between the transac�on price and fair value in net gain on day 1 ( for first 
�me adop�on refer no.8)observable in market transac�ons, the company recognizes the difference between the 
transac�on price and fair value in net gain/(loss) on fair value changes.

(ii) Classifica�on of financial instruments
The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
1. Financial assets to be measured at amor�sed cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account (FVTPL)

The classifica�on depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets, cash flows and the Company’s business 
model for managing financial assets. The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects 
how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objec�ve. The business model is assessed on the 
basis of aggregated por�olios based on observable factors. 
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The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress 
case’ scenarios into account. The Company also assesses the contractual terms of financial assets on the basis of its 
contractual cash flow characteris�cs that are solely for the payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

‘Principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at ini�al recogni�on and may change over the life of the 
financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amor�sa�on of the premium/discount). In 
making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic 
lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only considera�on for the �me value of money, credit risk, other basic 
lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms 
introduce exposure to risk or vola�lity that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial 
asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

iii) Financial Assets and Liabili�es
(a) Financial assets measured at amor�zed cost
These financial assets comprise bank balances, loans, trade receivables and other financial assets. Financial Assets 
with contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates and represent solely payments of principal 
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding and are held within a business model whose objec�ve is 
achieved by holding to collect contractual cash flows are measured at amor�zed cost.

These financial assets are ini�ally recognised at fair value plus directly a�ributable transac�on costs and 
subsequently measured at amor�zed cost. Transac�on costs are incremental costs that are directly a�ributable to 
the acquisi�on, issue or disposal of a financial asset or a financial liability.

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments
Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where they 
have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

b) are held within a business model whose objec�ve is achieved by both collec�ng contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets.

These debt instruments are ini�ally recognised at fair value plus directly a�ributable transac�on costs and 
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in other 
comprehensive income (a separate component of equity).

Impairment losses or reversals, interest revenue are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Upon disposal, the 
cumula�ve gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the 
statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments
Investment in equity instruments are generally accounted for as at fair value through the statement of profit and 
loss account unless an irrevocable elec�on has been made by management to account for at fair value through 
other comprehensive income such classifica�on is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income for equity instruments are not subsequently transferred to 
statement of profit and loss. Dividends on such investments are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

c) Items at fair value through profit or loss
The financial assets are classified as FVTPL if these do not meet the criteria for classifying at amor�zed cost or 

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited



62

FVOCI. Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:
• Investments (including equity shares) and stock in trade held for trading;
• Items specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on ini�al recogni�on; and
• Debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and interest.
• Deriva�ve transac�ons

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are ini�ally recognised at fair value, with transac�on 
costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value and 
any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as they arise.

Financial instruments held for trading
A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for selling or 
repurchasing in the near term, or forms part of a por�olio of financial instruments that are managed together and 
for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking, or it is a deriva�ve not designated in a qualifying hedge 
rela�onship. Trading deriva�ves and trading securi�es are classified as held for trading and recognised at fair value.

d) The Company classifies its financial liabili�es at amor�zed costs unless it has designated liabili�es at fair value 
through the statement of profit and loss account or is required to measure liabili�es at fair value through profit or 
loss such as deriva�ve liabili�es.

(e) Deriva�ves
The Company enters into deriva�ve transac�ons being equity deriva�ve transac�ons in the nature of Futures and
Op�ons in Equity Stock/ Index for trading purposes. Deriva�ves are recorded at fair value and carried as assets 
when their fair value is posi�ve and as liabili�es when their fair value is nega�ve. The no�onal amount and fair 
value of such deriva�ves are disclosed separately. Changes in the fair value of deriva�ves are included in net gain 
on fair value changes.

(f) Impairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles
The Company recognises loss allowances (provisions) for expected credit losses on its financial assets that are 
measured at amor�sed costs or at transac�on cost which may approximates fair value. However at the repor�ng 
date, the company does not have any exposure to non-fund exposures. The Company applies a three-stage 
approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for the following categories of financial assets that are not 
measured at fair value through profit or loss: 
• debt instruments measured at amor�sed cost
• loan commitments; and
• financial guarantee contracts 

However at the repor�ng date, the company does not have any loan commitments and financial guarantee 
contracts.
Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109. The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses 
expected to arise over the life of the asset (the life�me expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant 
increase in credit risk since origina�on, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit 
loss. Life�me ECL are the expected credit losses resul�ng from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the por�on of Life�me ECL that represent the ECLs that result from 
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months a�er the repor�ng date.

Both Life�me ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collec�ve basis, depending 
on the nature of the underlying por�olio of financial instruments. The Company's loan por�olio comprises of only 
class, i.e Unsecured loans repayable on demand both to corporates and Indiviuals.
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Stage 1
All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since ini�al recogni�on or that has low 
credit risk at the repor�ng date and that are not credit impaired upon origina�on are classified under this stage. 
The Company classifies all standard advances and advances upto 30 days default from the date of demand of loan 
under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facili�es where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been 
reclassified from Stage 2.

The company has only one class of loan por�olio i.e. unsecured loans repayable on demand

Stage 2
All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since ini�al recogni�on but are not credit 
impaired are classified under this stage. 31 days to 90 days past due from the date of demand is considered as 
significant increase in credit risk.

Stage 3
All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
es�mated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures that have become 
credit impaired, a life�me ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effec�ve interest 
rate to the amor�sed cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount 90 days past due from the date 
of demand is considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired.

Since the company has only one class of loan i.e unsecured loans repayable on demand, 12 month expected credit 
loss will be just the same as life�me expected credit loss, because the loan is repayable on demand which is shorter 
than 12 months as a result life�me of a loan is that short period required to transfer cash when demanded by the 
company.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each repor�ng date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amor�sed cost and debt financial 
assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the es�mated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The mechanics of ECL
Ind AS requires the company to calculate ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected  
cash shor�alls, discounted at an approxima�on to the EIR. A cash shor�all is the difference between the cash flows 
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cashflows that the company expects to 
receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calcula�ons are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of default (PD) - The probability of default is an es�mate of the likelihood of default over a given 
�mehorizon. A default may only happen at a certain �me over the assessed period, if the facility has not been 
previously derecognised and is s�ll in the por�olio.

Exposure at default (EAD) - The exposure at default is an es�mate of the exposure at a future default date.

Loss given default (LGD) - The loss given default is an es�mate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs 
at a given �me. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company 
would expect to receive, including from the realisa�on of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of 
the EAD.

Since all the loans given by the company are repayable on demand, in this specific of on-demand repayable loan
there are two op�ons
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1) The borrower is able to pay immediately (if demanded) or
2) The borrower is not able to pay immediately 

Hence the company examines whether the borrower has sufficient liquid assets to repay the loan immediately If 
the borrower has sufficient liquid assets (cash and cash equivalents) to repay the outstanding loan including 
interest accrued therein, then ECL is close to zero, because probablity of default is zero. However, the probability of 
loss (PD) is not zero, if the company assess that the borrower has no sufficient liquid assets to repay the loan when 
demaded and accordingly the Company es�mates the PD based on historical observed default rates adjusted for 
forward looking es�mates, based upon macro-economic developments occuring in the economy and market it 
operates in and the rela�onship between key economic trends like GDP, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank 
of India, infla�on and most importantly the compe��ve advantage and disadvantage the company has in 
comparison to its peer group(s).

Since the company's loan por�olio mainly comprises of unsecured loans (repayable on demand), Loss given 
default (LGD) is always close to 100%.

While the internal es�mates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflec�ve of such rela�onships as 
temproray overlays (as men�oned in above para(s) ), if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such 
macro economic trends reasonably.

Trade Receivables
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recogni�on of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
applica�on of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.

An impairment analysis is performed at each balance sheet date on an individual basis for major clients. In 
addi�on, number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment 
collec�vely. Based on Company's past history and the model under which it works, where it obtains most of the 
revenues on cut off dates or on se�lement date, the Company does not provide for loss allowances during the 
repor�ng period.

(I) Write-offs
The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable 
expecta�ons of recovering a financial asset in its en�rety or a por�on thereof. This is generally the case when the. 
Company determines that the client or borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate 
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans 
are credited to the statement of profit and loss. However the Company con�nue to monitor such bad loans and 
takes every possible effort towards its recovery.

(ii) Fair value measurements
Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an en�ty-specific measurement. Under Ind AS, fair valua�on of 
financial instruments is guided by Ind AS 113 “Fair Value Measurement.”

For some assets and liabili�es, observable market transac�ons or market informa�on might be available. For other 
assets and liabili�es, observable market transac�ons and market informa�on might not be available. However, the 
objec�ve of a fair value measurement in both cases is the same to es�mate the price at which an orderly 
transac�on to sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between market par�cipants at the 
measurement date under current market condi�ons (i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the 
perspec�ve of a market par�cipant that holds the asset or owes the liability).

Three widely used valua�on techniques specified in the said Ind AS are the market approach, the cost approach 
and the income approach which have been dealt with separately in the said Ind AS.
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Each of the valua�on techniques stated as above proceeds on different fundamental assump�ons, which have 
greater or lesser relevance, and at �mes there is no relevance of a par�cular methodology to a given situa�on. 
Thus, the methods to be adopted for a par�cular purpose must be judiciously chosen. The applica�on of any 
par�cular method of valua�on depends on the company being evaluated, the nature of industry in which it 
operates, the company’s intrinsic strengths and the purpose for which the valua�on is made.

In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assump�ons 
that are based on market condi�ons and risks exis�ng at each balance sheet date.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments :
Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valua�on are unadjusted quoted prices from 
ac�vemarkets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The 
Company considers markets as ac�ve only if there are sufficient trading ac�vi�es with regards to the volume and 
liquidity of the iden�cal assets or liabili�es and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on 
the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valua�on and are significant, are derived 
from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the en�re period of the instrument’s life. Such 
inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabili�es in ac�ve markets, quoted prices for iden�cal 
instruments in inac�ve markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield 
curves, implied vola�li�es, and credit spreads. In addi�on, adjustments may be required for the condi�on or 
loca�on of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. 
However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are significant to the en�re measurement, 
the Company will classify the instruments as level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the 
measurement as whole.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the repor�ng period 
during which the change has occurred. No such instances of transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy 
were recorded during the reported period.

Further In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the 
difference between the transac�on price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit 
and loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

5.3  Expenses
(I) Finance costs
Finance costs represents Interest expense recognised by applying the Effec�ve Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross 
carrying amount of financial liabili�es other than financial liabili�es classified as FVTPL. Since the short term 
borrowings were for short term dura�on and repayable on demand, hence the same is recorded at transac�on 
valueAll other expenses are recognised as incurred.

(ii) Employee Benefits
a) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits in respect of salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits if any are 
recognised
as expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the related service 
is rendered.

b) Defined contribu�on plans
The Company does not have any obliga�on towards defined contribu�on plans
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c) Defined benefit plans
The Company does not have any obliga�on towards defined benefit plans

(iii) Income Tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on 
the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabili�es a�ributable to temporary 
differences and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognized in Statement of profit and loss, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, 
the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respec�vely.

a) Current tax
Current income tax assets and liabili�es for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from or paid to the taxa�on authori�es using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or 
substan�vely enacted by the balance sheet date and applicable for the period.

Current income tax rela�ng to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correla�on to the underlying 
transac�on either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates posi�ons taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situa�ons in which applicable tax regula�ons are subject to interpreta�on and establishes 
provisions where appropriate.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabili�es, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off 
the recognized amounts and where it intends either to se�le on a net basis or to realise the assets and se�le the 
liabili�es simultaneously.

b) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabili�es are 
recognized for deduc�ble and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabili�es 
and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the ini�al 
recogni�on of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transac�on that is not a business combina�on and affects neither 
accoun�ng nor taxable profits or loss at the �me of the transac�on.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deduc�ble temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and any unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deduc�ble temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 
u�lised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to 
be u�lised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax rela�ng to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correla�on to the underlying transac�on 
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabili�es and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable en�ty, or on 
different tax en��es, but they intend to se�le current tax liabili�es and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and 
liabili�es are realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
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asset is realised or the liability is se�led, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substan�vely 
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Goods and services tax / value added taxes paid on incurring expenses
Since the Company is not required to get registered under Goods and Services Tax Act, (GST ACT), GST paid on 
expenses incurred are charged to statement of profit and loss

5.4  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash on hand, balance with banks on current accounts 
and short term, highly liquid investments (if any) with an original maturity of three months or less and which carry 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

They are held for the purposes of mee�ng short-term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other 
purposes)
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are as defined above.

5.5  Leases
At the incep�on of the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contain, a lease. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an iden�fied asset for a period of �me in 
exchange for considera�on. The Company assesses whether:

A) The contract involves the use of an iden�fied asset, this may be specified explicitly or implicitly.
B) The Company has the right to obtain substan�ally all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout
the period of use, and
C) The Company has right to direct the use of the asset.

With effect from April 1, 2019, new Ind AS 116 -Leases has come into effect replacing Ind AS 17. Ind AS 116 - Leases 
introduces a single, on- balance sheet laese accoun�ng model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset 
represen�ng its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability represen�ng its obliga�on to make lease 
payments.

Lessor accoun�ng remains similar to the current standard - i.e. lessors con�nue to classify leases as finance or 
opera�ng leases. However the company does not have any lease contracts as a lessee, hence there is no impact in 
the financial statements of the Company.

5.6   Provisions, con�ngent liabili�es and con�ngent assets
a) A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or construc�ve obliga�on
that can be es�mated reliably, and it is probable that an ou�low of economic benefits will be required to se�le the
obliga�on. Provisions are not recognised for future opera�ng losses.

If the effect of the �me value of money is material, provisions are determined by discoun�ng the expected future 
cash flows at current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the �me value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. When discoun�ng is used, the increase in the passage of �me is recognized as finance costs.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best es�mate of the considera�on required to se�le the present 
obliga�on as at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertain�es surrounding the obliga�on.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to se�le a provision are expected to be recovered from a third 
party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the 
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense rela�ng to provision is presented in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.
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b) A con�ngent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, unless the possibility of 
an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

If it becomes probable that an ou�low of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a 
con�ngent liability, a provision is recognized in the financial statements of the period (except in the extremely rare 
circumstances where no reliable es�mate can be made).

c) A con�ngent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an inflow of 
economic benefits is probable. When the realisa�on of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no 
longer a con�ngent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

d) Provisions, con�ngent liabili�es and con�ngent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

5.7   Earnings per Share
a) Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) a�er tax by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year (excluding other comprehensive income)

b) Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) a�er tax by the weighted average 
numberof equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of 
equity shares which could be issued on the conversion of all dilu�ve poten�al equity shares (excluding oher 
comprehensive income)

5.8   Excep�onal Items
The term excep�onal items is neither defined in Ind AS nor in Schedule III. However, Ind AS 1 has reference to such 
items in paras 85,86,97 & 98. Accordingly when the items of income or expenses are material, the Company 
discloses its nature and amount separately. Following circumstances (as per para 98) gives circumstances that 
would give rise to the separate disclosure of items of income and expenses and includes:
1) Wri�en down of inventories to net reliasable value or of PPE to recoverable amount, as well as reversals of such 
write-downs 
2) restructuring of the ac�vi�es of an en�ty and reversals of any provisions for the costs of restructuring;
3) disposals of items of PPE
4) disposals of investments
5) discon�nued opera�ons
6) li�ga�ons se�lements; and
7) other reversals of provisions

In case the company has more than one such item of income/expense of the above nature which is excep�onal, 
then such items are disclosed on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. Details of the all individual items are 
disclosed in the notes. However there were no excep�onal item as reported by the Company.

5.9   Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousands as per 
the requirements.

5.10    Con�ngencies and events occurring a�er the Balance Sheet date
Events occurring a�er the date of the Balance Sheet, which provide further evidence of condi�ons that existed at 
the Balance Sheet date or that arose subsequently, are considered upto the date of approval of accounts by the 
Board of Directors, where material.

5.11   Dividends on Ordinary Shares
The Company recognises a liability to make cash distribu�ons to equity holders of the parent when the distribu�on 
is authorised and the distribu�on is no longer at the discre�on of the Company.
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As per the corporate laws in India, a distribu�on is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders.  A 
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

5.12   Recent Accoun�ng Developments
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") no�fies new standards or amendments to the exis�ng standards under. 
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules as issued from �me to �me. For the year ended March 31, 2025, 
MCA has no�fied any new standards or amendments to the exising standards applicable to the Company.

6.   Segment Informa�on
Primary Segment
The Company's primary business segments are reflected based on the principal business carried ou�.e. 
Investments & Financing. All other ac�vi�es of the Company revlove around the main business.The risk and returns 
of the business of the Company is not associated with geographical segmenta�on,hence there is no secondary 
segment repor�ng based on geographical segment. As such, there are no separate reportable segments as per the 
Indian Accoun�ng Standard 108

7.   Significant Accoun�ng Judgements, Es�mates and Assump�ons
The prepara�on of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the managemen�o 
make judgments, es�mates and assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assetsand 
liabili�es and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es, at the end of therepor�ng 
period. Es�mates and underlying assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accoun�ng 
es�mates are recognised in the period in which the es�mates are revised and future periods are affected.Although 
these es�mates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and ac�ons, uncertaintyabout 
these assump�ons and es�mates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets or liabili�es in future periods.

In par�cular, informa�on about significant areas of es�ma�on, uncertainty and cri�cal judgments in applying 
accoun�ng policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is 
included in the following notes:

7.1   Business Model Assessment
Classifica�on and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model test. 
The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed 
together to achieve a par�cular business objec�ve. This assessment includes judgement reflec�ng all relevant 
evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks 
that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are 
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amor�sed cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal 
and whether the reasons are consistent with the objec�ve of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring 
is part of the Company’s con�nuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial 
assets are held con�nues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business 
model and so a prospec�ve change to the classifica�on of those assets.

7.2   Fair Value Measurement
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabili�es recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in ac�ve markets, their fair value is measured using different valua�on techniques. The 
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible a degree 
of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considera�ons of inputs such as liquidity risk, 
credit risk and vola�lity.

Changes in assump�ons about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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7.3   Impairment of financial asset
The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, inpar�cular, 
the es�ma�on of the amount and �ming of future cash flows  when determining impairment losses and the 
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These es�mates are driven by a number of factors, changes in 
which can result in different levels of allowances.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experienceand adjust 
when necessary. The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail in Note 5.2 (iii)(f) Overview 
of ECL principles.

8   Con�ngent liabili�es and Provisions other than Impairment on Loan Por�olio
The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened elementof 
li�ga�on risk inherent to its opera�ons. As a result, it is involved in various li�ga�on,  arbitra�on in the ordinary 
course of the Company’s business.

When the Company can reliably measure the ou�low of economic benefits in rela�on to a specific case and 
considers such ou�lows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case.Where the probability of 
ou�low is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable es�mate cannotbe made, a con�ngent liability is 
disclosed.

Given the subjec�vity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Companytakes 
into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the ma�er and  historical evidence from 
similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these es�mates.

8.1   Effec�ve Interest Rate (EIR)
The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the 
best es�mate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises 
the effect of poten�ally different interest rates at various stagesand other characteris�cs of the product life cycle 
(including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This es�ma�on, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycleof 
the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are integralparts 
of the instrument.
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Note No. : 9   Cash and cash equivalents (Rs in 000)

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March 2025 

 As at 31st 

March 2024 

Balances with banks

On current accounts 418.92                   1,531.60               

Cash on hand 158.45                   137.14                  

577.37                   1,668.73               

Note No. : 10   Receivables 

(I) Trade receivables (Rs in 000)

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March 2025 

 As at 31st 

March 2024 

Trade receivables considered good-secured -                              

Trade receivables considered good-unsecured 2,625.00               

Trade receivables which have significant increase in 

credit risk                             -   

Trade receivables credit-impaired -                         

Total -                         2,625.00               

Allowances for impairment loss -                         -                              

Total -                         2,625.00               

(Rs in 000)

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March 2025 

 As at 31st 

March 2024 

Out of the above Trade receivables

  Trade receivables from Related par�es -                         2,625.00               

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days. The Company does not felt 
necessary to provide for Expected credit loss on trade receivables, as historic credit lossover the preceding three to 
five years on the total balance of non-credit impaired trade receivables is close to Nil

Reconcilia�on of impairment allowance on trade receivables

Par�culars Amount

Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach 

Impairment allowance as on April 01, 2023

Add: Addi�on during the year Nil

Less: Reduc�on during the year Nil

Impairment allowance as on April 01, 2024 Nil

Add: Addi�on during the year Nil

Less: Reduc�on during the year Nil

Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2025 Nil

The Management expects no default in receipt of trade receivables, also there is no history of default observed by 
the management. Hence, no ECL, has been recognised on trade receivables.

Further there are no other receivables for any financial year as presented in the Financial statements, hence no ECL 
has been recognised on other receivables; alsoreconcilia�on of other receivables was not considered necessary
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Addi�onal disclosure pursunat to MCA No�fica�on dated 24th March 2021 (Rs in 000)

Par�culars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

less than 6 

months

 6 months 

- 1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed - Trade receivables - considered good

    F.Y 2024-25 - -            -              -             -               -                

    F.Y 2023-24 2,625.00 -            -              -             -               2,625.00     

(ii) Undisputed - Trade receivables having significant 

increase in credit risk

    F.Y 2024-25 - -            -              -             -               -                

    F.Y 2023-24 - -            -              -             -               -                

(iii) Undisputed - Trade receivables - Credit impaired

    F.Y 2024-25 - -                 -                   -                  -                   -                    

    F.Y 2023-24 - -                 -                   -                  -                   -                    

(iv) Disputed - Trade receivables - considered good

    F.Y 2024-25 - -                 -                   -                  -                   -                    

    F.Y 2023-24 - -                 -                   -                  -                   -                    

(v) Disputed - Trade receivables having significant 

increase in credit risk

    F.Y 2024-25 - -                 -                   -                  -                   -                    

    F.Y 2023-24 - -                 -                   -                  -                   -                    

(vi) Disputed - Trade receivables - Credit impaired

    F.Y 2024-25 - -                 -                   -                  -                   -                    

    F.Y 2023-24 - -                 -                   -                  -                   -                    

    Total

    F.Y 2024-25 - -            -                   -                  -                   -                

    F.Y 2023-24 2,625.00 -            -              -             -               2,625.00     

Note No. : 11   Loans (Rs in 000)

As at March, 2025 As at March, 2024

(A)

i) Bills purchased and bills discounted -                                                  

ii) Loans repayable on demand 85,615.58                         79,159.77                                 

iii) Term loans -                                              

iv) Leasing -                                              

v) Factoring -                                              

v) Others -                                              

Total (A) Gross 85,615.58                         79,159.77                                 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 4,447.03                            4,124.24                                   

Total (A) Net 81,168.55                         75,035.53                                 

(B)

i) Secured by tangible assets -                                              
ii) Unsecured 85,615.58                         79,159.77                                 

Total (B) Gross As at 31st March 2025 79,159.77                                 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 4,447.03                            4,124.24                                   

Total (B) Net 81,168.55                         75,035.53                                 

Par�culars At amor�sed cost At amor�sed cost
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(C)

i) Public sector -                                              

ii) Others -                                              

    Retail 32,438.97                         31,756.17 

    Corporates 53,176.61 47,403.60 

Total (C) Gross 85,615.58 79,159.77 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 4,447.03 4,124.24 

Total (C) Net 81,168.55 75,035.52 

As at March, 2025 As at March, 2024

Out of the above loans

 Loans to related par�es 65,590.13                         50,895.75                                 

(Rs in 000)

Promoters

Directors 9,172.78 10.71%

KMPs 3,705.66 4.33%

Related Par�es 52,711.69 61.57%

Total 65,590.13 76.61%

Par�culars At amor�sed cost

Type of borrowers

At amor�sed cost

 Amount Of Loan or 

Advance in the nature 

of loan Outstanding 

 Percentage to the Loans 

& Advances in the nature 

of Loans 

                                                

Credit quality of assets
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company's internal 
policy and year end stage classifica�on. The amount presented are gross of impairment allowances.
Company’s internal guidelines on ECL allowances are set out in Note no 5.2 (f) and Note no. 34(1)

(Rs in 000)

Par�culars As at March, 2025 As at March, 2024

Stage wise break up of loans

Low credit risk (Stage 1) 85,615.58                         79,159.77                                 

Significant increase in credit risk (stage 2) -                                              

Credit impaired (Stage 3)

Total 85,615.58                         79,159.77                                 
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An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount as follows (Rs in 000)

Par�culars  Stage 1 

collec�ve 

 Stage 2 

collec�ve 

 Stage 3 

collec�ve 
Total

Gross carrying amount opening balance 79,159.77        79,159.77   

New assets orginated or purchased 28,063.47        28,063.47   

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (21,450.61) (21,450.61)

Transfers to stage 1 -                    

Transfers to stage 2 -                    

Transfers to stage 3 -                    

Changes to contractual cash flows due to 

modifica�ons not resul�ng in derecogni�on -                    

Amounts wri�en off (157.04) (157.04)

Gross carrying amount closing balance 85,772.62        -             (157.04) 85,615.58   

As at March, 2025

(Rs in 000)

Par�culars  Stage 1 

collec�ve 

 Stage 2 

collec�ve 

 Stage 3 

collec�ve 
Total

Gross carrying amount opening balance 59,414.21   -             -                59,414.21  

New assets orginated or purchased 85,498.03   85,498.03  

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (65,665.84) -65,665.84 

Transfers to stage 1 -               

Transfers to stage 2 -               

Transfers to stage 3 -               

Changes to contractual cash flows due to 

modifica�ons not resul�ng in derecogni�on -               

Amounts wri�en off (86.63) -86.63         

Gross carrying amount closing balance 79,246.39   -             -86.63          79,159.77  

As at March, 2024
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Reconcilia�on of ECL Balance

 Stage 1 

collec�ve 

 Stage 2 

collec�ve 

 Stage 3 

collec�ve 
Total

ECL allowance - opening balance 4,124.24           -             -               4,124.24     

New assets orginated or purchased 1,403.17           -             -               1,403.17     

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (1,072.53) -             -               (1,072.53)

Transfers to stage 1 -                     -             -               -               

Transfers to stage 2 -                     -             -               -               

Transfers to stage 3 -                     -             -               -               

Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred 

between stages during the year and reversal of ECL 

on account of recovery                         -   -             -               -               

Unwinding of discount -                     -             -               -               

Changes to contractual cash flows due to 

modifica�ons not resul�ng in derecogni�on                         -   -             -               -               

Changes to models and inputs used for ECL calcula�ons -                     -             -               -               

Amounts wri�en off -                     -             (7.85) (7.85)

ECL allowance - closing balance 4,454.89           -             (7.85) 4,447.03     

Par�culars

As at March, 2025

General approach

Reconcilia�on of ECL Balance

 Stage 2 

collec�ve 

ECL allowance - opening balance - 

New assets orginated or purchased - 

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) - 

Transfers to stage 1 -             

Transfers to stage 2 -             

Transfers to stage 3 -             

Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred 

between stages during the year and reversal of ECL 

on account of recovery -             

Unwinding of discount -             

Changes to contractual cash flows due to 

modifica�ons not resul�ng in derecogni�on - 

Changes to models and inputs used for ECL calcula�ons                     - 

Amounts wri�en off                     - 

ECL allowance - closing balance           - 

Par�culars

As at March, 2024

General approach

(Rs in 000)

(Rs in 000)

 Stage 3 

collec�ve 
Total

-                3,131.96     

-                4,279.90     

-                -3,283.29   

-                -               

-                -               

-                -               

-                -               

-                -               

-                -               

-                -               

-4.33            -4.33           

-4.33            4,124.24     
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Par�culars

Provision as per RBI Pruden�al Norms As at March, 2025 As at March, 2024

Standard Asset 16.53                                         49.58

Sub-Standard Asset -                             

Doub�ul Asset -                             

Loss Asset -                             

Total 16.53                                         49.58                         

Amount In Rs 000)

Notes
a) Asset classifia�on is as per Reserve Bank of India guidelines and provisions is as per Expected Credit Loss 
methodologyas per Ind AS which is higher than minimum required as per pruden�al norms.

b) As the ECL provisions is higher than provision required under IRACP (Income Recogni�on, Assets classifica�on 
&provisioning, there is no requirement to create Impairment allowance reserve.

Note No. : 12   Investments

 Amor�sed 

cost 

Through Other 

Comprehensiv

e Income

 Designated at 

Fair Value 

through Profit 

or Loss 

Sub-Total Others Total

1 2 3 4 = 2 + 3 5 6 = 1 + 5

i) Mutual funds -                    -                        -                        -                        -                          -                                              

ii) Government securi�es -                    -                        -                        -                        -                          -                                              

iii) Debt securi�es (Quoted) -                    -                        -                        -                          -                                              

iii) Equity instruments (quoted) -                    -                        472.83                 472.83                 -                          472.83                  

iv) Equity instruments (unquoted) -                    691.25                 22,520.00           23,211.25           -                          23,211.25                                 

v) Subsidiaries (at cost) -                    -                        -                        -                        -                          -                                              

vi) Associates (at cost) -                        

vii) Others - 

Total (A) Gross - 691.25 22,992.83 23,684.08 - 23,684.08 

i) Investments outside India - - - - - - 

ii) Investments in India - 691.25 22,992.83 23,684.08 - 23,684.08 

Total (B) Gross - 691.25 22,992.83 23,684.08 - 23,684.08 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss (C) - - - - - - 

Total - Net (D)= (A)-(C) - 691.25 22,992.83 23,684.08 - 23,684.08 

As at March, 2025

Par�culars

At fair value
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Note No. : 12   Investments

 Amor�sed 

cost 

Through Other 

Comprehensiv

e Income

 Designated at 

Fair Value 

through Profit 

or Loss 

Sub-Total Others Total

1 2 3 4 = 2 + 3 5 6 = 1 + 5

i) Mutual funds                    - -                        -                                  -                      -                         -                            

ii) Government securi�es                    - -                        -                                  -                      -                         -                            

iii) Debt securi�es (Quoted)                    - -                        -                                  -                      -                         -                            

iii) Equity instruments (quoted)                    -                        328.37                            328.37               -                         328.37                     

iv) Equity instruments (unquoted)                    - 1,048.75              25,020.00                      26,068.75         -                         26,068.75               

v) Subsidiaries (at cost)                    - -                        -                                  -                      -                         -                            

vi) Associates (at cost) -                      

vii) Others -                      

Total (A) Gross - 1,048.75              25,348.37                      26,397.12 - 26,397.12 

i) Investments outside India - - - - - - 

ii) Investments in India - 1,048.75 25,348.37 26,397.12 - 26,397.12 

Total (B) Gross - 1,048.75 25,348.37 26,397.12 - 26,397.12 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss (C) - - - - - - 

Total - Net (D)= (A)-(C) - 1,048.75 25,348.37 26,397.12 - 26,397.12 

As at March, 2024

Par�culars

At fair value

As per Ind As 109, equity instruments measured at other than at cost and debt instruments measured at fair value 
through profit or loss do not require a separate evalua�on of impairment amount. Hence, in such cases, the 
disclosure pertaining to impairment shall not be applicable.

Shares are in full numbers (Rs in 000)

Equity (Unquoted) at FVTOCI (Non-trade)

Face 
Value

Quan�ty  As at 31st 

March 2025 

Quan�ty  As at 31st 

March 2024 

ABM Finlease Pvt. Ltd. 10
                 

5,125 666.25
                 

5,125
          

666.25

Ashok Va�ka Pvt Ltd 10
                 

-
             

-
                        

-
               

-

Vibgyor Commotrade Pvt Ltd 10
                 

-
             

-
                        

-
               

-

R.V.INFRACOM PVT. LTD. (20.00) 15,000
        

300.00

Mayborn Investments Pvt. Ltd. 10

                 
575

              
57.50

Shreyans Stockinvest Pvt.Ltd.(bonus share) 10

                 

8,200 0.00

                      

8,200

          

0.00

ZIGMA COMMOSALES PVT LTD.(10+190) -

             

-

                        

-

               

-

Fast Flow Commodeal Ltd. 10

                 

250 25.00

                    

250

              

25.00

Total 691.25

                 

1,048.75

Aggregate Break-up value of Unquoted shares 2,505.79

Further refer note no 5.2 (iii) for the basis of classifica�on,  measurement and recogni�onof FVTOCI investments

2,740.07
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Trade investments held as stock in trade and measured at FVTPL (Fair value through profit & loss)

Trade investments at FVTPL (Stock-in-trade) Quoted (Rs in 000)

Par�culars

Quan�ty  As at 31st 

March 2025 

Quan�ty  As at 31st 

March 2024 

Equity Quoted

Hindusthan Na�onal  Glass & Industries Limited 10

                 

19,058                 472.83 19,058           328.37 

                 472.83           328.37 

Trade investments at FVTPL (Stock-in-trade) Unquoted (Rs in 000)

Par�culars

Quan�ty  As at 31st 

March 2025 

Quan�ty  As at 31st 

March 2024 

Equity Unquoted

Prakash Estates Ltd 10 6,000 120.00

                 

6,000 120.00

Jaimatarani Merchants Pvt Ltd. 10 1,100,000 11,000.00

           

1,100,000 11,000.00

Mericogold Trading Pvt Ltd. 10 1,100,000 11,000.00

           

1,100,000 11,000.00

ABM Finlease Pvt. Ltd 10 10,000 400.00 10,000 400.00

Vibgyor Commosales Pvt Ltd 10 12,500 2,500.00

Rubicam Agencies Pvt Ltd (Equity oriented pref shares) 100 - - - -

Total 22,520.00 25,020.00

Face 
Value

Face 
Value

Further refer note no 5.2 (iii) for the basis of classifica�on,  measurement and recogni�on of of FVTPL investments

Advances 300.00                   -            
300.00                   -            

Note No. : 14  Current tax assets (net) (Rs in 000)

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March 2025 

 As at 31st  

March 2024

Tax deducted at source 478.33
                   

541.23
      Less : Provision for Income Tax 2.92

                       
2.92

          475.42
                   

538.31
      

Note No. : 13  Other financial assets (Rs in 000)

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March 2025 

 As at 31st
March 2024  

Note No. : 15  Deferred tax Assets/Liabilites (net)

As at 31st March 2025 (Rs in 000)

Par�culars Opening 

Balance

 

Recognised

 in Profit 
  or loss 

 Reclassified

from equity 
 to profit  
 or loss 

 Recognised 

in Other 
Comprehen
sive Income 

 Closing 

Balance 

Tax effect of items cons�tu�ng deferred tax liabili�es -                   -           -                     -                -             
Investment 224.69            (188.33)   -                - 36.36          

224.69            (188.33)   - - 36.36          

Tax effect of items cons�tu�ng deferred tax assets
Expected credit loss 1,038.07        81.25        -                -                  1,119.32    

1,038.07        81.25        -                -                  1,119.32    
Net deferred tax ( Asset ) Liabilites/ (Income) 

Expense (813.38)         (269.58)   -               -                (1,082.96) 
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Tax effect of items cons�tu�ng deferred tax assets

Expected credit loss             788.32 249.76    -                1,038.07    

788.32            249.76    -                -                  1,038.07    

Net deferred tax ( Asset ) Liabilites/ (Income) 

Expense (602.38)         -211.00    -               -                (813.38)     

Note No. : 15  Deferred tax Assets/Liabilites (net)

As at 31st March 2024 (Rs in 000)

Par�culars Opening 

Balance

 

Recognised

 in Profit 
  or loss 

 Reclassified

from equity 
 to profit  
 or loss 

 Recognised 

in Other 
Comprehen
sive Income 

 Closing 

Balance 

Tax effect of items cons�tu�ng deferred tax liabili�es

Investment 185.93 38.76        -                     -                  224.69        

185.93 38.76        -                -                  224.69        

Note No. : 16  Other non-financial assets (Rs in '000)

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March 2025 

Income tax refundable 381.05            298.00      

381.05            298.00      

 As at 31st 

March 2024 

Note No. : 17 (a) Trade Payables (Rs in '000)

Par�culars
 As at 31st March 

2025 

 As at 31st March 

2024 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises -                                -                                  

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises & small enterprises -                                -                                  

-                                -                                  

As per the requirements of sec�on 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 with 
respect to trade payables , the Company has no outstanding towards it.

b) Trade Payables ageing Schedule 

Unbilled

Less than 

1 year
1 - 2 year 2 - 3 year

more than 

3 year

As on 31 March 2025

- MSME

- Others -            
- Disputed dues- MSME

- Disputed dues -Others

  Total -
            

-
             

-
          

-
              

As on 31 March 2024

- MSME

- Others

- Disputed dues- MSME

- Disputed dues -Others

  Total -
            

-
             

-
          

-
              

Par�culars Outstanding for following periods from due dates of payment
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Note No. : 18   Borrowings ( other than debts) (Rs in '000)

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March 2025 

 As at 31st 

March 2024 

Short term borrowings (unsecured)          8,157.15 8,079.15            

         8,157.15             8,079.15 

Short term borrowings represents unsecured demand loan from other par�es 

Note No. : 19  Other financial liabili�es (Rs in '000)

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March 2025 

 As at 31st 

March 2024 

Liabilites for Expenses 120.26            83.98                  

Advances received 13.44                  

120.26            97.42                  

Note No. : 20  Other non- financial liabili�es (Rs in '000)

Par�culars
 As at 31st 

March 2025 

 As at 31st 

March 2024 

TDS Payable 10.36               10.47                  

10.36               10.47                  

Note No. : 21   Equity Share capital (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

(a) Authorised

      Equity shares of par value 10 /- each 10,050,000 100,500.00       10,050,000 100,500.00     

(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

      Equity shares of par value 10 /- each 10,027,777    100,277.77       10,027,777    100,277.77     

100,277.77       100,277.77     

Shares are in full figures

(c) Reconcilia�on of number and amount of equity shares outstanding

Par�culars

No of Shares RS in '000 No of Shares RS in '000

At the beginning of the year 10,027,777    100,277.77       10,027,777    100,277.77     

At the end of the year 10,027,777    100,277.77       10,027,777    100,277.77     

 As at 31st March 2025  As at 31st March 2024 

 As at 31st March 2025  As at 31st March 2024 

          

          

 (d) The Company has only one class of equity shares. The holders of equity shares are en�tled to receive dividend 
as declared from �me to �me and are en�tled to one vote per share.

 (e) In the event of liquida�on of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be en�tled to receive remaining 
assets of the Company, a�er distribu�on of all preferen�al dues. The distribu�on will be in propor�on to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 
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  (f ) Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the equity shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder

% of shares No. of shares % of shares No. of shares

Centuple Finance Pvt. Ltd. 18.81% 1,886,489          18.81% 1,886,489       

 (g) Disclosure of shareholding of promoters

% of shares No. of shares % of shares No. of shares

18.81% 1,886,489          18.81% 1,886,489       

 As at 31st March 2025  As at 31st March 2024 

 As at 31st March 2025  As at 31st March 2024 

Centuple Finance Pvt. Ltd.

 (h) There are no shares reserved for issue under op�ons and contracts / commitments for the sale of 
shares/ disinvestments

  (i) For the period of 5 years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared

Name of the Shareholder

 (a) Aggregate number and class of shares alloted as fully paid 

up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in 

cash 

 (b) Aggregate number and class of shares alloted as fully paid 

by way of bonus shares 

 c) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back 

(j) There were no securi�es issued having a term for conversion into equity / preference shares.

(k) There are no calls unpaid in respect of Equity Shares issued by the Company

(l) There are no forfeited shares by the Company

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

No of Shares No of Shares 

 As at 31st 
March 2025 

 As at 31st 
March 2024 

Note No. : 22  Other equity (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

Statutory Reserve pursuant to Sec�on 45-IC of the RBI Act 1934

Balance as per last account             895.32             895.32 

Add: Transfer from Profit or loss                68.99                 964.31                       -                895.32 
 Retained Earnings

      Balance as per last account (1,984.08) (70.92)

      Add : Net Profit for the Year 344.94 -1,688.16       

      Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve (68.99)            -                  

      Add : Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income (152.31) (1,860.44) -225.00           (1,984.08)       

 Other Comprehensive Income

      Balance as per last account -                        -                        

      Add : Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (152.31) -225.00           

      Less : Transfer to retained earnings 152.31            -                      225.00           -                    

(896.13) -1,088.76        

 As at 31st 
March 2025 

 As at 31st 
March 2024 
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Nature and purpose of Reserves
1) Statutory Reserve
Statutory reserve (Statutory Reserve pursuant to Sec�on 45-IC of The RBI Act, 1934): defines that every non 
banking finance ins�tu�on which is a Company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not 
less than twenty percent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the statement of profit and lossbefore 
any dividend is declared.

 The company has transferred 20% of net profit to Statutory reserve for the F.Y 2024-2025 as required under 
the applicable provisions of the RBI Act

2) Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned �ll date, less any transfers to/from other 
comprehensive income income, or other distribu�ons paid to shareholders if any and less any transfers to 
Statutory reserve out of current year's profit pursuant to Sec�on 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934.

3) Other Comprehensive reserve (OCI)
OCI represents the fair value changes in investments designated at FVTOCI which will not reclassified to 
profit and loss account.

  Revenue from opera�ons

Note No. : 23  Interest Income (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

(a)  Interest Income 

On financial assets measured at amor�sed cost
      Interest on loans 6,191.22

          
5,948.03

             
-

                    
-

                       
5,948.03

               
6,191.22

          
5,948.03

               

Note No. : 24  Net Gain /(Loss) on Fair Value Changes (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

Net gain /(loss) on financial instruments 

at fair value through Profit or loss

(i) On trading por�olio

     Investments (3268.04) (4221.01)

(3268.04) (4221.01)

Note No. : 25  Other Opera�ng Income (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

Other opera�ng Income

     Reversal of Expected credit loss -

                    

-

                        
- -

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 
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Note No. : 26   Other Income (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

Interest on TDS/IT Refund 23.44

                       

11.59

                   

23.44

                

-

                       

11.59

                     

Others

-

                    

0.09

                     

0.09

                       

23.44

                

11.69

                     
Note No. : 28  Impairment of financial assets (expected credit loss) (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

ECL on loans 322.79

              

992.28

Less: transferred to other opera�ng income -

                    

-

                         

322.79

              

992.28

                  
Note No. : 27  Finance Cost (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

Interest on borrowings 432.39

              

509.18

                  
432.39

              

509.18

                  
Note No. : 29   Employee benefit expense (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

Managing director's remunera�on 300.00

                    

300.00

                 

Salaries and bonus 480.77

                    

480.00

                 

Staff welfare 28.99 28.58

809.76 808.58

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 

                                          

                                
Note No. : 30  Other expenses (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

Payments to auditor

       As auditor for statutory audit 27.20

                       

20.00

                   

       Other charges 15.24

                       

42.44

                

12.00

                   

32.00

                     

Internal audit fees                 12.98                      12.98 

Accoun�ng charges                 20.00                      20.00 

Adver�sement                 25.58                      34.67 

Annual Fees (CCB)                   5.90                        5.90 

Bank charges                   1.72                        1.70 

Bad debts               157.04                      86.63 

Conveyanace                 50.78                      47.32 

Depository Charges               119.77                   118.00 

Dona�on                   7.50 

Establishment charges               120.00                   120.00 

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 
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Postage & couriers 23.37 16.84

RTA fees 26.55 26.55

Trade license 2.15 2.15

Professional tax 2.50 2.50

Website maintenance & hos�ng charges 7.04 6.90

1,306.31 1,229.14

                                          

                                Note No. : 30  Other expenses (Contd..) (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

 

Filing fees 8.20 2.40

Licence fee for PIT Archieve So�ware 15.93

Lis�ng fees 424.80 424.80

General Expenses 29.49 27.29

Office expenses 55.23 59.34

 Professional fees 98.25 134.75

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 

Prin�ng & Sta�onery 49.10 46.41

                                        

                                        

                         

Note No. : 31  Tax expense (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

Current tax 2.92

Taxa�on for earlier years 95.76

Deferred tax (refer note no 15) (269.58)

                 

-211.00

(269.58) -112.32

(269.58) -112.32

Reconcilia�on of total Income tax expense

Par�culars
 As at 31st  

March 2025 

Profit before tax for Computa�on 75.36

Add: Disallowances

Expected credit loss 322.79

Adjusted profit before tax for income tax 398.15

Current tax as per books (effec�ve rate 25.168%) -

(Set off 7 carry forward loss of earlier years)

Taxes of earlier years -

Deferred tax (269.58)

Total tax expense as given in books (269.58)

Note No. : 32   Other comprehensive income (Rs in' 000)

Par�culars

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Fair value changes of Investments (Realised) (152.31) -225.00
Fair value changes of Investments (Unrealised) - -

Less: Income tax rela�ng to items that will 

not be reclassified to profit or loss                               -                             -   

(152.31) -225.00

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 

 Year ended 31st March, 2025  Year ended 31st March, 2024 

         Total other Comprehensive Income -
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Note No. : 33  Other disclosures
1. Con�ngent liabili�es and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
a) Con�ngent liabili�es :
                     NIL

b) Commitments :
There are no capital commitments contracted by the Company during the period under review

C) Other Statutory & Legal Ma�ers
There has been no significant and/ or material order(s) passed by any Regulators/Courts/Tribunals impac�ng the 
status of the company

2. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for 
more than 45 days as at 31st March, 2025 & March 2024 This informa�on as required to be disclosed under the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such par�es 
have been iden�fied on the basis of informa�on available with the 

3. Disclosures as required by Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS) 37:- Provisions, Con�ngent liabili�es and 
Con�ngent assets
(i) Nature of provision
Provision for con�ngencies
Provision for con�ngencies represent provision towards various claims made/an�cipated in respect of du�es and 
taxes and other li�ga�on claims against the Company based on the Management’s assessment.

(ii) Movement in provision:-

Par�culars  Du�es & Taxes 

 Other 

Li�ga�on Claims    Total 

Balance as at 1st April, 2024

Provided during the year

Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2025

Non-current

Current

Balance as at 1st April, 2023

Provided during the year

Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Non -current

Current

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

4)    Segment Repor�ng :
The Company's primary business segments are reflected based on the principal business carried out i.e. 
Investments & Financing. All other ac�vi�es of the Company revlove around the main business. The risk and 
returns of the business of the Company is not associated with geographical segmenta�on, hence there is no 
secondary segment repor�ng based on geographical segment.

As such, there are no separate reportable segments as per the Indian Accoun�ng Standard 108
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Note No. : 33  Other disclosures ( Con�nued)
(5) Earnings per share - The numerators and denominators used to calculate Basic / Diluted earnings per share

Par�culars  2024-2025  2023-2024 

(a)  Amount used as the numerator

       Profit a�er Tax -                                                                        (A) 344.94 -1,688.16        

(b) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

       used as the denominator for compu�ng Basic Earnings

       Per Share                                                                                      (B) 10,027.78              10,027.78        

Add: Weighted average number of dilu�ve poten�al equity shares -                           -                    

(C) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

       used as the denominator for compu�ng Basic Earnings

       Per Share                                                                                      (C) 10,027.78              10,027.78        

(d) Nominal value of equity shares                                         (Rs) 10.00 10.00

       Basic earnings per share                                                    (A)/(B) 0.03                        (0.17)               

       Diluted earnings per share                                               (A)/(C) 0.03                        (0.17)               

6)    Related party disclosures :

(i)    Subsidiary Company : (Control exists)

(ii)  Associate Company  : 
( Significant influence can be exercised)

(iii) Key Mangerial personel ( KMP) 1. Jitendra Kumar Goyal (Managing Director)

2. Priyanka Mohta (Company Secretary)

3. Manoj Biyani (Chief Financial Officer)

4. Manisha Khandelwal (Non-Execu�ve Director)

(iv) Other related par�es 1. Sumit Goyal (Son of KMP)

        Close members of KMP 2. Renu Goyal (Wife of KMP)

3. Varsha Jain (Daughter of KMP)

4. Virendra Kumar Goyal HUF (Karta is Brother of KMP)

5. G Jitendra HUF (Karta is a KMP)

6. Anju Goyal (Wife of Brother of Managing Director

7. Virendra Kumar Goyal (Brother is Managing Director)

8. Megha Goyal (Daughter of Brother of Managing Director)

9. Y.K. Goyal & Sons HUF (Karta is a KMP)

(V) Significant Influence en��es 1. Decillion Finance Limited

2. Fas�low Commodeal Limited

3. Goyal Toys LLP

4. Mo� Finvest Private Limited

5. Rambhakta Enterprises LLP

6. VZ Vanijya LLP

7. Yashoyog Commercial LLP

8. Centuple Trading LLP

9. Centuple Commercial LLP

10. Goyal Commercial Private Limited

(a)   Name of the related par�es and descrip�on of rela�onship

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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11. Li�lestar Tracom LLP

12. Mayborn Investments Private Limited

13. Aurelian Commercial LLP

14. Ultra Dealers Private Limited

15. ABM Finlease Private Limited

16. Virat Leasing Limited

17. Spectrum Pestrogan Pvt Ltd

18. Tubro Consultants & Enterprises Private Limited

19. Vibgyor Commotrade Pvt Ltd

20. Dignity Dealtrade Pvt Ltd

21. Daffodil Dealtrade Pvt. Ltd

22. Kaushal Investments Ltd

23. Lifestyle Vanijya LLP

24. Zigma Commosales Private Limited

25. Horizon Agro Processing Private Limited

26. Anjaniputra Promoters Private Limited

27. Laxmidhan Proper�es Private Limited

28. Shreyans Stockinvest Pvt Ltd

29. Sumit Technisch & Engineering Pvt Ltd

30. Aurelian Trading LLP

31. Merit Commosales LLP

32. Twinkle Vintrade LLP

33. Daulat Vintrade LLP

34. Suncity Dealers LLP

35. Silverlake Tradelinks LLP

36. Success Dealers LLP

37. Icon Commotrade LLP

38. Skylight Vintrade LLP

39. Maru� Tie-Up LLP

40. Yashoyog Investments

41. Planet Dealtrade LLP

42. KVZ Enterprises

43. Rubicam Agencies Private Limited

44. HSF Food Pro-Tech Private Limited

45. Balaji Enterprises
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(b) Transac�ons with related party

       Year ended 31st March 2025 Rs. '000

Name of the related party  Amount  Outstanding 

Maru� Tie-Up LLP 1,711.19             20,076.67             

Maru� Tie-Up LLP 1,071.60             19,005.07             

KVZ Enterprises 200.00                 200.00                   

KVZ Enterprises 200.00                 -                         

KVZ Enterprises 301.55                 301.55                   

Mayborn Investments Private Limited 100.00                 100.00                   

Mayborn Investments Private Limited 100.00                 -                         

Anju Goyal 1,043.89             1,043.89               

Anju Goyal 43.89                   1,000.00               

Icon Commotrade LLP 828.39                 11,870.24             

Icon Commotrade LLP 5,420.24             6,450.00               

Tubro Consultants & Enterprises Private Limited 105.09                 118.53                   

Tubro Consultants & Enterprises Private Limited 118.53                 -                         

Spectrum Pestorgan Private Limited 2.18                     2.18                       

Spectrum Pestorgan Private Limited 2.18                     -                         

Spectrum Pestorgan Private Limited 57.50                   57.50                     

Spectrum Pestorgan Private Limited 57.50                   -                         

Anjaniputra Promoters Private Limited 4,617.00             4,617.00               

Anjaniputra Promoters Private Limited 11.70                   4,605.30               

Centuple Commercial LLP 83.19                   -                         

Jitendra Kumar Goyal 3,172.78             9,172.78               

Jitendra Kumar Goyal 300.00                 -                         

Li�lestar Tracom LLP 1,880.83             1,880.83               

Li�lestar Tracom LLP 30.83                   1,850.00               

Megha Goyal 544.72                 1,194.72               

Merit Commosales LLP 77.24                   77.24                     

Merit Commosales LLP 77.24                   -                         

Rambhakta Enterprises LLP 1,500.00             1,500.00               

Rambhakta Enterprises LLP 1,500.00             -                         

ABM Finlease Private Limited 562.39                 562.39                   

ABM Finlease Private Limited 562.39                 -                         

Centuple Commercial LLP 10.00                   -                         

Centuple Commercial LLP 150.00
                 

150.00
                   

Centuple Commercial LLP 130.00                 20.00                     

Centuple Trading LLP 113.10                 2,620.15               

Centuple Trading LLP 1,820.15             800.00                   

Laxmidhan Proper�es Private Limited 500.00                 500.00                   

Laxmidhan Proper�es Private Limited 500.00                 -                         

Laxmidhan Proper�es Private Limited 2,625.00             -                         

Renu Goyal 521.58                 521.58                   

Renu Goyal 21.58                   500.00                   

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Remunera�on

Loan Repaid

 Re-imbursed expenses 
incurred on behalf of company 

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Repaid

 Expenses incurred on 
behalf of company 

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Taken

Loan Repaid

Loan Repaid

Loan Given

Loan Given

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Advance Received

Advance Refunded back

Advance Received

Advance Refunded back

Advance Given

Advance Returned by Party

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Taken

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Taken

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Advance Received

Advance Refunded back

Nature of Transac�ons

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party
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(b) Transac�ons with related party (Contd)

       Year ended 31st March 2025 Rs. '000

Name of the related party  Amount  Outstanding 

Mo� Finvest Private Limited 102.37                 102.37                   

Mo� Finvest Private Limited 102.37                 -                         

Planet Dealtrade LLP 996.73                 996.73                   

Planet Dealtrade LLP 246.73                 750.00                   

Sumit Goyal 3,356.94             6,906.94               

Virendra Kumar Goyal 6,349.66             9,649.66               

Virendra Kumar Goyal HUF 102.15                 102.15                   

Virendra Kumar Goyal HUF 102.15                 -                         

Yashoyog Investments 1,500.00             1,500.00               

Yashoyog Investments 1,500.00             -                         

Yashoyog Investments 1,687.50             1,687.50               

Yashoyog Investments 1,687.50             -                         

Daffodil Dealtrade Pvt. Ltd 400.00                 400.00                   

Daffodil Dealtrade Pvt. Ltd 400.00                 -                         

Mayborn Investments Private Limited- 57.50                   -                         

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Sale of Investments

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Taken

Loan Repaid

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Nature of Transac�ons

       Year ended 31st March 2024 Rs. '000

Name of the related party  Amount  Outstanding 

Maru� Tie-Up LLP 181.44                 

Decillion Finance Limited 150.00                 

Decillion Finance Limited 150.00                 

Daulat Vintrade LLP 100.00

Nature of Transac�ons

Loan Returned by Party

Advance Received

Advance Returned

Loan Given                  

Daulat Vintrade LLP 100.00                 

Icon Commotrade LLP 14,153.18           

Icon Commotrade LLP 3,111.33             

Tubro Consultants & Enterprises Private Limited 114.34                 

Tubro Consultants & Enterprises Private Limited 100.89                 

Centuple Commercial LLP 135.00                 

Centuple Commercial LLP 140.00                 

Jitendra Kumar Goyal 2,521.14             

Jitendra Kumar Goyal 1,247.25             

Li�lestar Tracom LLP 102.29                 

Li�lestar Tracom LLP 102.29                 

Rambhakta Enterprises LLP 16,127.13           

Rambhakta Enterprises LLP 17,727.13           

Rambhakta Enterprises LLP 2,000.00             

Rambhakta Enterprises LLP 2,000.00             

Vibgyor Commotrade Pvt Ltd 7,350.00             

ABM Finlease Private Limited 991.25                 

ABM Finlease Private Limited 11,531.00           

Balaji Enterprises 4,282.18             

Balaji Enterprises 5,032.18             

Centuple Commercial LLP 423.31                 

Centuple Commercial LLP 1,448.35             

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Repaid

Sale of Investments

Purchase of Investments

Sale of Investments

Loan Given

Loan Taken

Loan Repaid

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Taken

Loan Repaid

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Taken

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Advance Received

Advance Returned
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Mo� Finvest Private Limited 12,408.20           

Mo� Finvest Private Limited 21,088.03           

Mo� Finvest Private Limited 21,088.03           

Planet Dealtrade LLP 1,040.22             

Planet Dealtrade LLP 4,740.22             

Planet Dealtrade LLP 991.25                 

Planet Dealtrade LLP 991.25                 

Sumit Goyal 5,590.82             

Sumit Goyal 4,217.88             

Varsha Jain 518.37                 

Varsha Jain 518.37                 

Virendra Kumar Goyal 3,488.65             

Virendra Kumar Goyal 1,192.93             

Virendra Kumar Goyal 605.14                 

Virendra Kumar Goyal 1,349.15             

Yashoyog Investments 2,198.18             

Yashoyog Investments 3,198.42             

Yashoyog Investments 7,500.00             

Yashoyog Investments 7,500.00             

Daffodil Dealtrade Pvt. Ltd 14,006.00           

Daffodil Dealtrade Pvt. Ltd 14,006.00           

Daffodil Dealtrade Pvt. Ltd 857.50                 

Daffodil Dealtrade Pvt. Ltd 857.50                 

Mayborn Investments Private Limited 57.50                   

Zigma Commosales Private Limited 100.00                 

Loan Taken

Loan Repaid

Purchase of Investments

Sale of Investments

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Taken

Loan Repaid

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Taken

Loan Repaid

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Taken

Loan Repaid

       Year ended 31st March 2024 Rs. '000

Name of the related party  Amount  Outstanding Nature of Transac�ons

Centuple Trading LLP 12,230.06           

Centuple Trading LLP 9,923.01             

Laxmidhan Proper�es Private Limited 2,625.00             

Renu Goyal 102.59                 

Renu Goyal 102.59                 

Mo� Finvest Private Limited 580.52                 

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

Loan Given

Loan Returned by Party

Loan Given

(c)  Details of Remunera�on paid/payable to KMP

       Year ended 31st March 2025

Par�culars  Manoj Biyani  Priyanka Mohta 

Short-term employee benefits

         Salary 300.00              180.00 

        Commission -                   -                           

        Perquisites -                   -                           

Post-employment benefits

Contribu�on to Provident Fund, Gratuity and

other Funds *

-                   -                           -                                 

300.00                           

-                                 

-                                 

-                   -                           -                                 

 Jitendra 
Kumar Goyal 
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Short-term employee benefits

         Salary 300.00              180.00                     

        Commission -                   -                           

        Perquisites -                   -                           

Post-employment benefits

Contribu�on to Provident Fund, Gratuity and

other Funds *

-                   -                           

-                   -                           -                                 

-                                 

300.00                           

-                                 

-                                 

             

                  

                  

                  

                  

       Year ended 31st March 2024

Par�culars  Manoj Biyani  Priyanka Mohta  Jitendra 
Kumar Goyal 

* The said amount does not includes amount in respect of gratuity and leave as the same are not ascertainable

d) The transac�ons with related par�es have been entered at an amount which are not materially different from 
those on normal commercial terms.

e) The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be se�led in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No 
expense has been recognised in current year and previous year for bad or doub�ul debts in respect of the amounts 
owed by related par�es.

f ) The remunera�on of directors is determined by the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee having regard to the 
performance of individuals and market trends.

1) Financial instruments - Accoun�ng, Classifica�on and Fair value measurements
This sec�on gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides addi�onal 
informa�on on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accoun�ng policies, including the criteria for recogni�on, the basis of measurement and 
the basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability 
and equity instrument are disclosed inNote 2 and Note 5 to the standalone financial statements.

Note No. : 34  Other disclosures
A) Financial instruments by category

As at 31st March, 2025 (Rs in '000)

Par�culars   Note No 
 Amor�sed 

Cost 
 FVTOCI  FVTPL  Cost 

 Total Carrying 

Value 

1)    Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9 577.37
                      

-
                         

-
                      

-
                         

577.37
                  

Trade receivables 10 -
                             

-
                         

-
                      

-
                         

-
                         

Loans 11 81,168.55
                

-
                         

-
                      

-
                         

81,168.55
            

Investments 12 -
                             

691.25
                  

22,992.83
         

-
                         

23,684.08
            

Other financial assets 13 300.00
                      

-
                         

-
                      

-
                         

300.00
                  

                                                               TOTAL 82,045.92                691.25                  22,992.83         -                         105,729.99          

2)   Financial Liabilites

Trade Payables 17 -                             -                         -                      -                         -                         

Borrowings 18 8,157.15                  8,157.15              

Other Financial Liabili�es 19 120.26                      120.26                  

                                                               TOTAL 8,277.41                  -                         -                      -                         8,277.41              
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As at 31st March, 2024 (Rs in '000)

Par�culars   Note No  FVTOCI  FVTPL  Cost 
 Total Carrying 

Value 

1)    Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,668.73                  -                         -                      -                         1,668.73              

Trade receivables 10 2,625.00                  -                         -                      -                         2,625.00              

Loans 11 75,035.52                -                         -                      -                         75,035.52            

Investments 12 -                             1,048.75               25,348.37         22,000.00 48,397.12            

Other financial assets 13 -                             -                         -                      -                         -                         

                                                               TOTAL 79,329.26                1,048.75               25,348.37         22,000.00            127,726.37          

2)   Financial Liabilites

Trade Payables 17 -                             -                         -                      -                         -                         

Borrowings 18 8,079.15                  8,079.15              

Other Financial Liabili�es 19 97.42                        97.42                    

                                                               TOTAL 8,176.58                  -                         -                      -                         8,176.58              

 Amor�sed 
Cost 

B.      Fair value hierarchy
(1) The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabili�es are included at the amount at which the instrument 
could be exchanged in a current transac�on between willing par�es, other than in a forced or liquida�on sale.

(2) The Company uses the following fair value hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instrument:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es. This category consists of 
investment in quoted equity shares.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabili�es that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair 
values are determined in whole or in part ,using a valua�on model based on assump�ons that are neither 
supported by prices from observable current market transac�ons in the same instrument nor are they based on 
available market data. This level of hierarchy includes Company’s investment in equity shares which are unquoted 
or for which quoted prices are not available at the repor�ng dates
Carrying value of investments in unquoted shares approximates cost at which they are purchased

(I) Financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31st March, 2025:
(Rs in '000)

Par�culars  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 Total

1)    Financial assets

(i)  Investments in Equity Instruments 

       At FVTOCI -                   -                             691.25 691.25

(ii)  Investments in Equity Instruments

      At FVTPL 472.83             22,520.00 22,992.83

       Total 472.83 -                             23,211.25 23,684.08
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(ii) Financial assets  measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31st March, 2024:
(Rs in '000)

Par�culars  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 Total

1)    Financial assets

(i)  Investments in Equity Instruments 

       At FVTOCI -                   -                             1048.75 1048.75

(ii)  Investments in Equity Instruments

      At FVTPL 328.37             -                             25020.00 25348.37

       Total 328.37             -                             26068.75 26397.12

There have been no transfer between Level 1 and Level 3 for the years ended 31st March 2025 and 31st March 
2024

The following methods and assump�ons were used to es�mate the fair values
Financial instruments measured at fair value
(I) Investments carried at fair value are generally based on market price quota�ons. However in cases where 
quoted prices are not available than different valua�on technique are used by the management for different 
investments.

Certain investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for long term strategic 
purposes, hence The Company has chosen to designate these investments in equity instruments at FVOCI since, it 
provides a more meaningful presenta�on. Further investments which are held for trading and company considers 
them as stock in trade are designated through FVTPL Level 1 investments are valued at the quoted closing price on 
stock exchange. Investments included in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy have been valued using the cost 
approach to arrive at their fair value.

Cost of unquoted equity instruments have been considered as an appropriate es�mate of fair value because of 
wide range of possible fair value measurements and cost represents the best es�mate of fair value within that 
range.

As at 31st March, 2025, the company did not hold any financial assets or financial liabili�es which could have been 
categorized as Level 2could have been categorized as Level 2

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(ii) Financial assets not measured at fair value include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans and 
other financial assets. These are financial assets whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, due to their 
short term nature.

Addi�onally, financial liabili�es such as trade payables and other financial liabili�es are not measured at FVTPL 
whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-term nature.

(iii) Management uses its best judgement in es�ma�ng the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there 
are inherent limita�ons inany es�ma�on technique. Therefore, for substan�ally all financial instruments, the fair 
value es�mates presented above are not necessarily indica�ve of the amounts that the Company could have 
realised or paid in sale transac�ons as of respec�ve dates. As such, fair value offinancial instruments subsequent 
to the repor�ng dates may be different from the amounts reported at each repor�ng date.
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Note No. : 34  Risk Management
2)     Financial risk management
Risk is an integral part of the Company's business and sound risk management is cri�cal to success. The Company's 
primary business are reflected based on the principal business carried out i.e. loans and investments (and all other 
ac�vi�es of the company revolve  around the main business), hence the company is exposed to risks that are 
par�cular to its lending and the environment within which it operates and primarily includes credit risk, liquidity 
risk and market risk.

Since the company is Systema�cally non-important and non-deposit taking NBFC, and also in terms of Sub -
Regula�on (5) of  Regula�on 21 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�on and Disclosure Requirement), Regula�ons 2015 as 
amended, the Company is not required to have Risk Management Commi�ee, but as a prudence the Board of 
Directors of the Company oversees the overall risk management approach, risk management strategies, 
procedures and principles.

The senior management provides assurance that the Company’s financial risks are iden�fied, measured and 
managed in accordance with the Company's internal guidelines and risk objec�ves.

a) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obliga�ons under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss to the Company.

The Company’s main income genera�ng ac�vty inter-alia is lending to customers and therefore credit risk is a 
principal risk. Credit risk mainly arises from loans and advances which are in en�rety payable on demand.

The credit risk management guideline of the company seeks to have following controls and key metrics that allows 
credit risks to be iden�fied, assessed, monitored and reported in a �mely and efficent manner in compliance with 
regulatory requirements.

> Standardise the process of iden�fying new risks and having in place appropriate controls for these risks
> Maintain an appropriate credit administra�on and loan review system
> Establish metrics for por�olio monitoring
> Minimize losses due to defaults or un�mely payments by borrowers and implemen�ng appropriate risk 
mi�ga�on techniques.

In order to mi�gate the impact of credit risk in the future profitability, the company makes reserves basis the 
Expected Credit Loss. (ECL) Model for the outstanding loans including interest accrued but not due and interest 
overdue therein at balance sheet date. Asset classifica�on is as per Reserve Bank of India guidelines and provisions 
is as per Expected Credit Loss Methodology as per Ind AS, which ever is higher than the minimum required as per 
pruden�al norms.

The below discussion describes the Company's approach for assessing impairment as stated in the significant 
accoun�ng policies.

The mechanics of ECL
Ind AS requires the company to calculate ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected 
cash shor�alls, discounted at an approxima�on to the EIR. A cash shor�all is the difference between the cash flows 
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cashflows that the company expects to 
receive. The mechanics of the ECL calcula�ons are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of default (PD) - The probability of default is an es�mate of the likelihood of default over a given �me 
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain �me over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously 
derecognised and is s�ll in the por�olio.
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Exposure at default (EAD) - The exposure at default is an es�mate of the exposure at a future default date. The 
outstanding balance (including the interest accrued but not due and interest overdue) at the repor�ng date is 
considered EAD by the Company.

Since all the loans given by the company are repayable on demand, in this specific of on-demand repayable loan 
there are two op�ons
1) The borrower is able to pay immediately (if demanded) or
2) The borrower is not able to pay immediately 

Hence the company examines whether the borrower has sufficient liquid assets to repay the loan immediately If 
the borrower has sufficient liquid assets (cash and cash equivalents) to repay the outstanding loan including 
interest accrued therein, then ECL is close to zero, because probablity of default is zero.

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL  
Calcula�ons in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

As a part of the qualita�ve assessment of whether a customer is in default, the company also considers a variety of 
instances that may indicate unlikeness to pay. When such events occur, the Company carefully considers  whether 
the event should result in trea�ng the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calcula�ons 
or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Considering that the PD determined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to
es�mate EAD.

However, the probability of loss (PD) is not zero, if the company assess that the borrower has no sufficient liquid 
assets to repay the loan when demaded and accordingly the Company es�mates the PD based on historical 
observed default rates adjusted for forward looking es�mates, based upon macro-economic developments 
occuring in the conomy and market it operates in and the rela�onship between key economic trends like GDP, 
benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, infla�on and most importantly the compe��ve advantage and 
disadvantage the company has in comparison to its peer group(s).

Based upon the above facts, the Company has assessed the following PD Percentage as at 31st March, 2025 while 
PD percentages for 31st March 2024 remain same at 5%

Category
Loans: Unsecured and repayable on demand
Stage 1: All Standard loans in the above category upto 30 days past due (DPD) are considered as Stage 1 assets for 
computa�on of ECL

Stage 2: Exposure under Stage 2 include under-performing loans having 31 to 90 days past due (DPD) for 
computa�on of ECL

Stage 3: Exposure under Stage 2 include non-performing loans with overdue more than 90 days past due (DPD).

Based upon historical data the Company assigns PD to Stage 1 and Stage 2 and applies it to the EAD to compute the 
ECL. For Stage 3 assets PD is considered as 100%

Based upon historical data the Company assigns PD to Stage 1 and Stage 2 and applies it to the EAD to compute the 
ECL. For Stage 3 assets PD is considered as 100%
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Pools Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Unsecured loans, repayable on demand 5% 5% 100%

Pools Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Unsecured loans, repayable on demand 5% 5% 100%

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

Loss given default (LGD) - The loss given default is an es�mate of the loss arising in the case where a default
occurs at a given �me. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the 
Company would expect to receive, including from the realisa�on of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a 
percentage of the EAD.

Since the company's loan por�olio mainly comprises of unsecured loans (repayable on demand), Loss given 
default (LGD) is always close to 100%.

Further refer note no 11 which provides informa�on about exposure to credit risk and ECL on loan
Trade receivables
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and do not involve significant financing cost ,further all the receivables 
are of short term in nature, hence transac�on value approximates fair value for trade receivables. The Company 
follows ‘simplified approach’ for recogni�on of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.  The applica�on of 
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.

An impairment analysis is performed at each balance sheet date on an individual basis for major clients. In 
addi�on, number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment 
collec�vely. Based on Company's past history and the model under which it works, where it obtains most of the 
revenues on cut off dates or on se�lement date, the Company does not provide for loss allowances during the 
repor�ng period.

b) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the en�ty will encounter difficulty in mee�ng the obliga�ons associated with its 
financial liabili�es that are se�led by delivering cash or another financial asset. The en�ty’s approach to managing 
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabili�es when they are due, 
under both normal and stressed condi�ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to en�ty’s 
reputa�on.

Prudent liquidity risk management requires sufficient cash and marketable securi�es and availability of funds 
through adequate commi�ed credit facili�es to meet obliga�ons when due and close out market posi�ons.

The Company has a view of maintaining liquidity with minimal risks while making investments. The Company
invests its surplus funds in short term liquid assets. The Company monitors its cash and bank balances periodically 
in view of its short term obliga�ons associated with its financial liabili�es.

Refer note 34(4)  for analysis of maturi�es of financial assets and financial liabili�es.
c) Market Risk
Market risk arises when movements in market factors (interest rates, credit spreads, equity prices etc.) impact the 
Company's income or market value of its por�olios. The Company, in its course of business, is  exposed to market 
risk due to change in equity prices and interest rates. The objec�ve of market risk management is to maintain an 
acceptable level of market risk exposure while aiming to maximizing returns.

Pools 31-03-25 31-03-24

Unsecured loans, repayable on demand 100% 100%
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i) Equity price
The Company’s exposure to equity price risk arises primarily on account of investments in equity instruments (both 
short term and long term). The Company designates its investments in equity instruments based upon its
business model. Investments which are held for trading are fair valued through profit and loss, whereas  
investments which are held for long term and strategic purpose are fair valued through Other comprehensive 
income. The Company’s equity price risk is managed in accordance with the objec�ve of the Company and as 
approved by the senior management of the Company.

ii) Interest Rate Risk
The Company is exposed to Interest rate risk if the fair value or future cash flows of its financial instruments will 
fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair 
values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctua�ons in the interest rates.

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing deposits with bank and loan given to customers.
Such instrument exposes the Company to fair value interest rate risk. Management believes that the interest rate 
risk a�ached to these financial assets is not significant due to the nature of these financial assets.

d) Opera�onal And Business Risk
Opera�onal risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. when controls 
fails to operate effec�vely, opera�onal risks can cause damage to reputa�on, have legal or regulatory implica�ons, 
or lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all opera�onal risks, but it endeavours to manage 
these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to poten�al risks. Controls include 
effec�ve segrega�on of du�es, access, authorisa�on and reconcilia�on procedures, staff educa�on and 
assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.

3)    Capital Management
The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilita�ng the mee�ng of long 
term and short term goals of the Company. The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis 
of recurring business plan coupled with long term and short term Strategic investments and expansion plans.

The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from opera�ons,  short term borrowings and through 
use of bank overdra�s if required. For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued 
equity capital, and all other equity reserves a�ributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. The 
Company’s objec�ve when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to con�nue as a going concern so that it can 
con�nue to provide returns to shareholders and other stake holders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in the financial condi�on
and the requirement of the financial covenants if any. 

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders (buy back its shares) or issue new shares.

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited
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The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabili�es analyzed according to whenthey are expected to be 
recovered or se�led. (Rs in '000)

 Total  Within 12 months  A�er 12 months 
I.  Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 577.37 577.37 -

                                  

Trade receivables -
                      

-
                                       

-
                                  

Loans 81,168.55 81,168.55 -
                                  

Investments 23,684.08 22,992.83 691.25
Other financial assets 300.00

               
300.00

                                
-

                                  

105,729.99 105,038.74 691.25
                            

Non-Financial Assets
Current tax assets (net) 475.42 475.42 -                                  

Deferred tax assets (net) 1,082.96 -                                       1,082.96
 Other non-financial assets 381.05 381.05

1,939.42 475.42 1,464.00
Total Assets 107,669.41 105,514.16                        2,155.25
II.  Liabili�es
Financial Liabili�es
Trade payables -                      -                                       -                                  
Borrowings 8,157.15           8,157.15                            -                                  
Other financial liabili�es 120.26               120.26                                -                                  

8,277.41           8,277.41                            -                                  
Non-Financial Liabili�es
Other non-financial liabili�es 10.36 10.36 -                                  

10.36 10.36 -                                  
Total Liabili�es 8,287.77 8,287.77 -

                                  Net Assets 99,381.64 97,226.39 2,155.25

Par�culars
As at 31 March, 2025

(Rs in '000)

 Total  Within 12 months  A�er 12 months 
I.  Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,668.73 1,668.73 -

                                  Trade receivables 2,625.00 2,625.00 -
                                  Loans 75,035.52 75,035.52 -

                                  Investments 26,397.12 25,348.37 1,048.75
Other financial assets -

                      
-

                                       
-

                                  105,726.37 104,677.62 1,048.75Non-Financial Assets
Current tax assets (net) 538.31 538.31 -

                                  
Deferred tax assets (net) 813.38 813.38

 Other non-financial assets 298.00 -

                                       

298.00

1,649.69 538.31 1,111.37

Total Assets 107,376.06 105,215.94 2,160.12
II.  Liabili�es
Financial Liabili�es
Trade payables -

                      

-

                                       

-

                                  
Borrowings 8,079.15

           

8,079.15

                            

-

                                  
Other financial liabili�es 97.42

                 

-

                                       

97.42

                              
8,176.58

           

8,079.15

                            

97.42

                              

Non-Financial Liabili�es
Other non-financial liabili�es 10.47 10.47 -

                                  
10.47 10.47 -

                                  

Total Liabili�es 8,187.05 8,089.63 97.42

                              

Net Assets 99,189.01 97,126.31 2,062.70

Par�culars
As at 31 March, 2024

Note No. : 34(4) MATURITY ANALYSIS

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited
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(Rs in '000)

Par�culars

Provision as per RBI Pruden�al Norms As at March, 2025 As at March, 2024

Standard Asset 16.53
                         

49.58

Sub-Standard Asset -
                                  

-
                                

Doub�ul Asset -

                                  

-

                                

Loss Asset -

                                  

-

                                

Total 16.53

                         

49.58

Amount In Rs

a) Asset classifia�on is as per Reserve Bank of India guidelines and provisions is as per Expected Credit Loss 
methodology as per Ind AS which is higher than minimum required as per pruden�al norms.

b) As the ECL provisions is higher than provision required under IRACP (Income Recogni�on, Assets classifica�on & 
provisioning, there is no requirement to create Impairment allowance reserve.

Note No 36 (1)
Addi�onal Regulatory Informa�on
Amended Schedule III requires addi�onal regulatory informa�on to be provided in the financial statements. 
These are as follows;
1) Title deeds of Immovable Property
The Company does not have any immovable property during the year.

2) Revalua�on of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right -of- Use Assets
The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment during year

3) Intangible Assets under development
The Company does not have any intangible assets under development during the current and previous year 
repor�ng period

4) Details of Benami Property held : Addi�onal Disclosure
The Company does not hold any Benami Property and hence there were no proceedings ini�ated or pending 
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�ons) Act, 1988 and 
the Rules made thereunder, hence no disclosure is required to be given as such.

5) Capital Work in Progress
The Company does not have any capital work in progress during the current and previous year repor�ng period

6) Loans or advances to specified persons
The Company has granted loans to related par�es (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) either severally or 
jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand.

Refer note no 33 (6) and Note 11 for further details.
7) Undisclosed Income
The Company does not have any undisclosed Income which was not recorded in the books of accounts and which 
has been surrenderedor disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions. Also the Company does not have previously 
unrecorded income and related assets which were required to be properlyrecorded in the books of accounts 
during the year.

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited
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8) Borrowings secured against current assets
The Company does not have any borrowings from banks or financial ins�tu�ons on the basis of security of current 
assets hence no disclosure is required as such.

9) Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or government or any 
government authority or any lender as at the date of the balance sheet or on the date of approval of the financial 
statements.

10) Rela�onship with Struck off Companies
The Company does not have any transac�ons with Companies which are struck off under Sec�on 248 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or Sec�on 560 of the Companies Act, 1956, hence no disclosure is required as such.

11) Registera�on of Charges or Sa�sfac�on with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
There are no charges against the companies which are yet to be registered or sa�sfac�on yet to be registered with 
ROC beyond the statutory period, hence no disclosures are required as such.

12) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company does not have investment in any downstream companies for which it has to comply with the number 
of layers prescribed under Clause (87) of Sec�on 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restric�on on 
number of layers). Rules, 2017, hence no disclosure is required as such.

13) U�liza�on of Borrowings
The Company does not have any outstanding balances towrads the borrowings from banks and financial 
ins�tu�ons at the balance sheet date, hence no further disclosure is required as such.

14) U�liza�on of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium
(A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or Share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (intermediaries) with 
the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng  or otherwise ) that the intermediary shall;

a) Directly or indirectly lent or invest in other person(s) or en�ty(ies) iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company  (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) Or
b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.
Hence no disclosure is required as such.

(B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (Funding 
Par�es) with the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng  or otherwise ) that the company shall;

a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person(s) or en�ty(ies) iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party  (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) Or

b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.
Hence no disclosure is required as such.

15) Details of Crypto Currency Or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year, hence 
disclosure requirments for the same is not applicable.

16) Corporate Social Responsibility Ac�vi�es
The Company is not required to comply with the provisions of Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited
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Note. 36(2): Ra�o Analysis & its element Amount in thousands

Current 

Year

Previous 

Year

% 

variance

Reason for 

variance

12.73 13.01 -2.11% NA

0.08 0.08 NA NA

0.06 -0.15         -245.00% Due to FVTPL loss

NA NA NA No inventory

NA NA NA No credit sales

-               -             NA NA

0.06 0.06 3.98% Due to FVTPL loss

5.57% -28.38% -119.63% Due to FVTPL loss

0.35% -1.70% -120.39% Due to FVTPL loss

0.47% -1.20% -139.22% Due to FVTPL loss

-13.66% -11.90% 14.76% Due to FVTPL loss

Ra�o Numerator  Denominator

Current ra�o (in �mes) Current Assets  Current Liabili�es 

Debt-equity ra�o (in �mes) Total Debt Shareholder's equity 

Debt service coverage ra�o (in �mes) EBITDA Debt service obliga�on

Inventory turnover ra�o (in �mes) Net Turnover Average inventory

Trade Receivables turnover ra�o Net Credit sales Average Trade Receivables

Trade payables turnover ra�o Net credit purchse Average trade payables

 Net capital turnover ra�o Net Turnover Average Working capital

 Net profit ra�o (%) Net Profit a�er tax Net Turnover

 Return on equity (%) Net Profit a�er tax- Average Shareholders 

 Return on capital employed (%) EBIT Capital employed

Return on investment (%) Net Profit a�er tax Total average investment

Note No. : 36 (3)  Fraud
During the year there have been no such instances of fraud  on the Company  by the  officers and employees, 
whether  loan related misappropria�ons or cash embezzlements/ burglaries 

Note No. : 36 (4)  Previous year figures
Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform current year’s classifica�on.

Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited
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SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET OF SCINTILLA COMMERCIAL & CREDIT LIMITED AS ON 31.03.2025 AS 
REQUIRED IN TERMS OF PARAGRAPH 13 OF A NON-BANKING FINANCIAL (NON-DEPOSIT ACCEPTING OR 
HOLDING) COMPANIES PRUDENTIAL NORMS (RESERVE BANK) DIRECTIONS, 2015

LIABILITIES SIDE����                                                                                                                     PARTICULARS     (Rs. In '000)

1 LOANS AND ADVANCES AVAILED BY THE NBFCS INCLUSIVE OF 
INTEREST ACCRUED THERE ON BUT NOT PAID: 

AMOUNT 
OUTSTANDING 

AMOUNT 
OVERDUE 

a DEBENTURES   

 · SECURED - - 

· UNSECURED 
(OTHER THAN FALLING WITHIN THE MEANING OF PUBLIC DEPOSITS*) 

- - 

b DEFERRED CREDITS - - 

c TERM LOANS - - 

d INTER – CORPORATE LOANS AND BORROWINGS - - 

e COMMERCIAL PAPER - - 

f OTHER LOANS (SPECIFY NATURE) 8157.15 - 

 Nature: Short term borrowings represent unsecured demand loan 
from other par�es 

  

 

2 BREAKUP OF LOANS AND ADVANCES INCLUDING BILLS RECEIVABLES 
 OTHER  THAN THOSE INCLUDED IN (4) BELOW:  

AMOUNT 
OUTSTANDING 

 SECURED - 

UNSECURED 81549.60 

3 BREAKUP OF LEASED ASSETS AND STOCK ON HIRE AND OTHER ASSETS   
WARDS AFC ACTIVITIES:  

 

a LEASE ASSETS INCLUDING LEASE RENTALS UNDER SUNDRY DEBTORS  

 FINANCIAL LEASE - 

OPERATING LEASE - 

b STOCK ON HIRE INCLUDING HIRE CHARGES UNDER SUNDRY DEBTORS  

 ASSETS ON HIRE - 

REPOSSESSED ASSETS - 

c OTHER LOANS COUNTING TOWARDS AFC ACTIVITIES  

 LOANS WHERE ASSETS HAVE BEEN REPOSSESSED - 

LOANS OTHER THAN (a) ABOVE - 

ASSETS SIDE
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4 BREAK UP OF INVESTMENTS:  

 CURRENT INVESTMENTS  

1. QUOTED  

 · SHARES  

i. EQUITY - 

ii. PREFERENCE - 

· DEBENTURES AND BONDS - 

· UNITS OF MUTUAL FUND - 

· GOVERNMENT SECURITIES - 

· OTHERS - 

2. UNQUOTED  

 · SHARES  

 i. EQUITY - 

 ii. PREFERENCE - 

 · DEBENTURES AND BONDS - 

 · UNITS OF MUTUAL FUND - 

 · GOVERNMENT SECURITIES - 

 · OTHERS - 

 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS  

   

1. QUOTED  

 · SHARES  

 i. EQUITY 22992.83 

 ii. PREFERENCE - 

 · DEBENTURES AND BONDS - 

 · UNITS OF MUTUAL FUND - 

 · GOVERNMENT SECURITIES - 

 · OTHERS - 

2. UNQUOTED  

 · SHARES  

 i. EQUITY 691.25 

 ii. PREFERENCE - 

 · DEBENTURES AND BONDS - 

 · UNITS OF MUTUAL FUND - 

 · GOVERNMENT SECURITIES - 

 · OTHERS - 

5 BORROWER GROUP WISE CLASSIFICATION OF ASSETS FINANCED AS IN (2) AND (3) ABOVE: 
Please Note 2 below 

CATEGORY AMOUNT NET OF PROVISIONS 
  SECURED UNSECURED TOTAL 
1. RELATED PARTIES**    
 (a) SUBSIDIARIES NIL NIL NIL 
 (b) COMPANIES IN THE SAME GROUP NIL NIL NIL 
 (c) OTHER RELATED PARTIES - 65590.13 65590.13 
2. OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES - 15578.42 15578.42 
 TOTAL - 81168.55 81168.55 
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6 INVESTOR GROUPWISE CLASSIFICATION OF ALL INVESTMENTS (CURRENT AND LONG TERM)
 IN SHARES AND SECURITIES (BOTH QUOTED AND UNQUOTED):   
Please see note 3 below as per Accoun�ng Standard of ICAI 

CATEGORY 
MARKET VALUE / 
BREAKUP OR FAIR 

VALUE OR NAV 

BOOK VALUE 
(NET OF 

PROVISION) 
1. RELATED PARTIES**   
 (a) SUBSIDIARIES NIL NIL 
 (b) COMPANIES IN THE SAME GROUP 3140.07 1091.25 
2. OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES 22592.83 22592.83 
 TOTAL  23684.08 
7 OTHER INFORMATION: 
 PARTICULARS AMOUNT 
I GROSS NON-PERFORMING ASSETS  
 (a) RELATED PARTIES NIL 
 (b) OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES NIL 
II NET NON-PERFORMING ASSETS  
 (a) RELATED PARTIES NIL 
 (b) OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES NIL 
III ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF DEBTS NIL 

 

NOTES:
1. As defined in paragraph 2 (1) (xii) of the Non- Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits 

(Reserve bank) Direc�ons, 1998.

2. Provisioning Norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Non-Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial 
(Non-Deposit Accep�ng or Holding) Companies Pruden�al Norms (Reserve Bank) Direc�ons, 

3. All Accoun�ng Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valua�on of 
Investments and other asset as also assets acquired in sa�sfac�on of debts. However, market value in respect 
of quoted investment and break-up/ fair value/ NAV in respect of unquoted investment should be disclosed 
irrespec�ve of whether they are classified as long term or current in (4) above.
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NOTICE OF THIRTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY 
 

Notice is hereby given that the 36th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of M/s. 
Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Friday, 26th 
September, 2025 at 3:00 pm (IST) at “B B D Bag Professional Association”, “Commerce 
House”, 2A Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 8th Floor, Room No: 1, Kolkata-700013 to transact the 
following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
Item No. 1. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements:  
 
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company including 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow 
Statement for the year ended as on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon. 
 
Item No. 2. Re-appointment of a Director: 
 
To appoint a director in place of Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal (DIN: 00468744), who retires by 
rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-election. 
 
Item No. 3. Appointment of M/s Surajit Roy and Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 
326099E) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five consecutive years: 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (the ‘Rules’), including any statutory amendments or modifications or re-
enactments thereof for the time being in force, and pursuant to recommendation made by 
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 2nd September, 
2025, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for appointment of 
M/s. Surajit Roy and Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 326099E), 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five consecutive years from the 
conclusion of 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company until the conclusion of the 41st 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2030 at such remuneration 
as the Board of Directors may fix in this behalf in consultation with the Audit Committee.   
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or Company Secretary be and are hereby 
severally authorized to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered 
necessary and execute all necessary documents, applications and returns for the purpose of 
giving effect to the aforesaid resolution.” 
 
  



 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
Item No. 4. To appoint Mr. Anand Khandelia, Practicing Company Secretary as 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five consecutive years 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule 2014 and Regulation 24A of 
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, [including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof] upon, the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee and Board of Directors of the Company at their respective meetings held on 2nd 
September, 2025, consent of the Members of the Company be and are hereby accorded for 
appointment of Mr. Anand Khandelia, Practicing Company Secretary holding valid Peer 
Review Certificate No. 3985/2023, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of 
5 (five) consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of 36th Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of 41st Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2030 to conduct 
Secretarial Audit and issue Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed format on such terms 
and conditions, including remuneration, as may be mutually agreed by the Secretarial 
Auditor and Board of Directors.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or Company Secretary of the 
Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, and things and 
to execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required in this 
connection and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any 
Director/Company Secretary of the Company to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.” 
 
Item No. 5. To approve existing as well as proposed material related party transactions: 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 15 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 23 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s), re-enactment(s), 
amendment(s), clarification(s) or substitution(s) thereof for the time being in force), the 
Company’s policy on Materiality and dealing with Related Party Transaction(s), provisions 
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and recommendations of 
the Audit Committee and the Board, consent of the Members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded for entering into related party transactions and/ or carrying out and/ or 
continuing with contracts/ arrangements/ transactions (whether individual transaction or 
transactions taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) with the related parties as 
mentioned in explanatory statement, from the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) up to the date of the next AGM for a period not exceeding fifteen months. 
 



 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to execute all such 
agreements, documents, instruments and writings as deemed necessary, with power to alter 
and vary the terms and conditions of such contracts/ arrangements/ transactions, settle all 
questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard, as they may in their sole and 
absolute discretion deem fit, file requisite forms with the regulatory authorities and to do all 
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary and appropriate and to 
delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any authorized person(s) to give effect 
to this resolution.” 
 
Item No. 6. Appointment of Mrs. Meena Agarwal (DIN: 11276790) as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company: 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”), and the 
Rules made thereunder read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, including any 
statutory modifications, re-enactments and amendments thereof, Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (LODR) Regulations 2015, applicable regulations, notifications and circulars 
of Reserve Bank of India and based on the performance evaluation, recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of Board of Directors at their 
respective meetings held on 2nd September, 2025, Mrs. Meena Agarwal (DIN: 11276790), who 
has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of independence as provided under 
Section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16 of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (LODR) Regulations 2015 and who is eligible for appointment 
and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member under 
Section 160 of the Act, proposing his candidature for the office of director, be and is hereby 
appointed as the Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire 
by rotation, for a term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 2nd September, 2025.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or the Company Secretary of the 
Company be and are hereby severally authorized to take such steps, as may be required, for 
obtaining necessary approvals, if any, and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental 
thereto and to settle any question, difficulty, doubt that may arise in respect of the matter 
aforesaid and further to do all such other acts, deeds, matters and things as may be 
necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to the said resolution.” 

 
For Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited 

 
Sd/- 

        Priyanka Mohta 
      Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Place: Kolkata 
Date: 02.09.2025 
  



 
 

Notes: 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (“MEETING” OR “AGM”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The instrument appointing 
the proxy should, however, be submitted at the corporate office of the company not less 
than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the meeting. 
 

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in 
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying 
voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the 
company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person 
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 
 

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the 
Act’) relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto. 
 

3. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) and 36(5) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and Secretarial Standard - 2 on General 
Meetings, issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director 
retiring by rotation seeking re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting is furnished 
as an Annexure to the Notice.  
 

4. Members are requested to bring their attendance slips duly completed and signed 
mentioning therein details of their DP - ID and Client - ID/ Folio No. 

 
5. Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) intending to attend 

AGM through their Authorised Representatives are requested to send a scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of their respective Board or Governing Body 
Resolution/Authorization, etc. authorizing its representative to attend the AGM on its 
behalf and to vote through poll or remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization 
shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to 
anandkhandelia@gmail.com with a copy marked to the company’s email address i.e., 
info@scintilla.co.in. 

 
6. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in 

the order of names will be entitled to vote. 
 

7. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding 
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts 
or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of 
the Act and other relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open 
for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working 
days, during business hours up to the date of the meeting. 

 



 
 

8. The Company has appointed M/s. Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd, as its Registrars and 
Share Transfer Agents for rendering the entire range of services to the Shareholders of 
the Company. Accordingly, all documents, change of address intimation and other 
communication in relation thereto with respect to shares in electronic form should be 
addressed to the Registrars directly quoting Folio No., full name, and name of the 
Company as Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited. 

 
9. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any 

change in their address to their Depository participants with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. 

 
10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 

 
11. Notice of the AGM along with attendance slip and proxy form is being sent to all the 

members whose name appears in the Register of Members as on 22nd August, 2025 at 
the e-mail ids registered with the Company/ Depository Participant(s). For Members 
who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies are being sent by the 
permitted mode. The Members may note that the Notice of AGM will also be available 
on the Company’s website www.scintilla.co.in, website of the BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com, website of the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited at www.cse-
india.com and on the website of National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.   

 
12. To support the “Green Initiative”, Members who have not registered their email 

addresses are requested to register the same with the Company’s Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent/their Depository Participants, in respect of shares held in electronic 
mode, respectively. 

 
13. The Chairman shall, at the meeting, at the end of discussion on the resolution on which 

voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of Scrutinizer, by use of Polling 
Paper for all the members. 

 
14. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Anand Khandelia, Practicing 

Company Secretary as a Scrutinizer, for conducting poll during the Annual General 
Meeting and to oversee voting process. 

 
15. The Voting Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the 

website of the Company at www.scintilla.co.in and on the website of National Securities 
Depository Limited at www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the declaration of 
Result by the Chairman or any person authorized by him in writing. 

 
16. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the Annual General Meeting is 

annexed. 
 



 
 

17. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 
Saturday, 20th September, 2025 to Friday, 26th September, 2025 (both days inclusive) for 
the purpose of AGM of the Company. 

 
Voting Through Electronic Means: 

18. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management of Administration) Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards 
on General Meetings, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its 
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the 
Company has entered into an arrangement with NSDL for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The manner of voting remotely is provided 
in the instructions for e-voting section which forms part of this Notice. 

 
19. A person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the register of 

beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on 19th September, 2025 being the 
cut-off date shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or voting during the 
AGM. Persons who are not Members as on the cut-off date, but have received this 
notice, should treat receipt of this Notice for information purpose only. 

 
20. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to AGM may also 

attend the AGM, but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. During the voting 
period, Members can login to NSDL’s e-voting platform any number of times till they 
have voted on the resolution. Once the vote on a resolution is casted by a Member, 
whether partially or otherwise, the Member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently or cast the vote again. 

 
21. The Members whose names appear in the Register of Members / List of Beneficial 

Owners as on 19th September, 2025 are entitled to vote on resolutions set forth in the 
Notice. Eligible Members who have acquired shares after sending the Notice and 
holding shares as on the cut-off date may approach the Company for issuance of the 
User Id and Password for exercising their right to vote by electronic means. 

 
22. The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 at 9.00 A.M. (IST) 

and ends on Thursday, 25th September, 2025 at 5.00 P.M. (IST). The remote e-voting 
module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. A person who is not a Member 
as on the cut-off date shall treat this notice for information purpose only. 

 
23. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up 

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date 19th September, 2025. A 
person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members maintained by Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date shall be entitled to avail the facility of e-voting. 

 
24. The instructions for members for remote e-voting are stated in Annexure I of this 

Notice. 
 



 
 

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

Details of Directors seeking appointment / reappointment in Annual General Meeting in 
pursuance of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

Name of Director Jitendra Kumar Goyal Meena Agarwal 

Date of birth 03.11.1963 28.06.1990 

Nationality Indian Indian 

Date of first appointment on 
the board 

29.01.1990 
02.09.2025 

Qualification Commerce Graduate CS and CMA 

Experience in functional area 

He has more than 25 years of 
experience and versatile 

knowledge in the fields of 
Accountancy, Statutory 

Compliance and Auditing. 

Qualified Company 
Secretary and Cost 

Management 
Accountant. Having 
more than 10years 

working experience in 
Accounting and 

Secretarial filed with 
little know how of GST 

and Income Tax. 

Relationship with other 
Directors 

NIL 
NIL 

Shareholding in the Company 211 - 

List of directorships held in 
other Listed Companies 

3 
- 

Committee membership in 
other Listed Companies 

5 
- 

 
  



 
 

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) 
 

Item No. 3 
 
M/s Ghosh & Basu LLP, Chartered Accountants have tendered their resignation as 
Statutory Auditors w.e.f. 30th August, 2024 citing reasons that due to the developments in 
the Audit Firm (“M/s Ghosh & Basu LLP, Chartered Accountants”) they will not be able to 
continue as Statutory Auditors of the Company. This has resulted into a casual vacancy in 
the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company as envisaged by Section 139(8) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Appointment of Auditor in casual vacancy caused by the resignation 
of Statutory Auditors shall be approved by the Shareholders at the General Meeting within 
three months from the date of recommendation of the Audit Committee/Board of Directors 
of the Company.  
 
The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company at their respective 
meetings held on 30th August, 2024 recommended the appointment of M/s. Surajit Roy and 
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 326099E) as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company in order to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of the 
previous M/s Ghosh & Basu LLP, Chartered Accountants and accordingly, members 
approved the same by way of passing Ordinary Resolution.    
 
Further, the current auditors namely M/s. Surajit Roy and Associates, Chartered 
Accountants were appointed for a period of one financial year as per provisions relating to 
casual vacancy of Statutory Auditors under Companies Act, 2013 and they shall be eligible 
to hold office till the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting.  
 
However, since the term of Statutory Auditors are expiring at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting, on recommendation of Audit Committee at their meeting held on 2nd September, 
2025 and further the same was also discussed at the Board Meeting on same date, your 
Board is proposing to appoint M/s. Surajit Roy and Associates, Chartered Accountants, for a 
period of five consecutive years and shall hold office from the conclusion of ensuing Annual 
General Meeting till the conclusion of 41st Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 
2030. 
 
M/s. Surajit Roy and Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 326099E), 
have conveyed their consent for being appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made by the Shareholders, would be 
within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and shall satisfy the criteria as 
provided under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.    
 
Your Board of Directors considered the same and recommends passing of the resolution 
contained in Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
Other than those mentioned above, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 
resolution. 
 



 
 

Item No. 4 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 
24A(1A) & (1B) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and SEBI Master Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated 31st 
December 2024 w.e.f. 1st April 2025 every listed entity is required to appoint an individual or 
a firm as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, who shall be a peer reviewed Practising 
Company Secretary and who has not incurred any disqualifications for appointment or 
continuation as Secretarial Auditors of the listed entity. 
 
In compliance with the aforesaid provisions, the Board of Directors on recommendation of 
Audit Committee, in their respective meeting(s) held on 2nd September, 2025 has appointed 
Mr. Anand Khandelia, a Peer-Reviewed Practising Company Secretary (COP: 5841), as the 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a consecutive period of 5 (five) years. He shall 
conduct Secretarial Audit from F.Y. 2025-26 and shall hold the office of Secretarial Auditors 
from the conclusion of 36th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 41st Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held for the F.Y. 2030 for a remuneration of Rs. 
5000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Only) payable annually. 
 
Brief Profile of Mr. Anand Khandelia, Practising Company Secretary 
 
He is a Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and is also a Commerce 
Graduate. He is a Peer-Reviewed Practising Company Secretary having experience in the 
field of Corporate Laws, Securities Laws and Corporate Governance and Regular 
Compliances. 
 
Your Board of Directors considered the same and recommends passing of the resolution 
contained in Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice as a Special Resolution. 
 
Other than those mentioned above, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 
resolution. 
 
Item No. 5 
 
As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), transactions 
with related parties which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of 
business, are exempted from the obligation of obtaining prior approval of shareholders. 
However, such transactions, if material, require prior approval of shareholders, 
notwithstanding the fact that the same are at an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary 
course of business, as per the requirements of the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

As per the amendments to clause (zc) of Regulation 2(1) read with the proviso to Regulation 
23(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which was effective from 1st April, 2022, provides 
transaction with a related party shall be considered material if the transaction(s) to be 



 
 

entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial 
year, exceeds Rs. 1,000 crore or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last 
audited financial statements of the listed entity, whichever is lower. 
 
The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC), primarily engaged in the 
business of financing/investing, needs various corporate having presence in the state of 
West Bengal. Considering the nature of business and operations, the Company enters into 
various Related Party Transactions in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length 
price. 
 
As per Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2022/40 dated 30th March, 2022, approval of the Members 
is sought for arrangements/ transactions/contracts undertaken whether by way of 
continuation/ modification/ratification of earlier arrangements/ transactions/contracts and 
for transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company with Related Parties. 
 
Further, the SEBI vide its circular bearing reference no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2022/47 dated April 08, 2022 has clarified and specified 
that the Shareholders’ approval of omnibus RPTs approved in an Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) shall be valid up to the date of the next AGM for a period not exceeding fifteen 
months. Therefore, the Company is required to obtain Shareholders’ approval in every 
AGM. 
 
The details required as under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015and SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated 22nd November, 2021 in connection with 
the Material Related Party Transactions is given below. 
 
Details of Summary of information provided by the management to the Audit Committee: 
 
Name of the Related Party and its relationship with the listed entity including nature of its 
concern or interest (financial or otherwise):  
 

Name of Companies/LLP/HUF/Individual Nature of Interest 

Virat Leasing Limited KMP is director in the Entity 
Goyal Toys LLP KMP is Partner in the Entity 

Moti Finvest Private Limited KMP is director in the Entity 

Rambhakta Enterprises LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 
Entity 

Sumit Goyal Relative of KMP 
Virendra Kumar Goyal Relative of KMP 

Virendra Kumar Goyal HUF Karta is Relative of KMP 

VZ Vanijya LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 
Entity 

Yashoyog Commercial LLP KMP is Designated Partner in the Entity 
Centuple Commercial LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 



 
 

Entity 

Goyal Commercial Private Limited KMP is Director in the Entity 

Littlestar Tracom LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 
Entity 

Mayborn Investments Private Limited KMP is Director in the Entity 
Priyanka Mohta Company Secretary-KMP 

Manoj Biyani Chief Financial Officer-KMP 

Aurelian Commercial LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 
Entity 

ABM Finlease Private Limited KMP is Director in the Entity 
Decillion Finance Limited KMP is KMP in the Entity 

Varsha Jain Relative of KMP 
Renu Goyal Relative of KMP 

Spectrum Pestrogan LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 
Entity 

Tubro Consultants & Enterprises Private 
Limited Relative of KMP is Director of Entity 

Kaushal Investments Ltd Relative of KMP is KMP of Entity 

Lifestyle Vanijya LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 
Entity 

G Jitendra HUF Karta is a KMP 
Y.K. Goyal & Sons HUF Karta is a KMP 

Horizon Agro Processing LLP KMP is Designated Partner in the Entity 
Anjaniputra Promoters Private Limited KMP is Director in the Entity 
Laxmidhan Properties Private Limited KMP is Director in the Entity 

Shreyans Stockinvest Pvt Ltd KMP is Director in the Entity 
Sumit Technisch & Engineering Pvt Ltd KMP is Director in the Entity 

Aurelian Trading LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 
Entity 

Merit Commosales LLP KMP is Designated Partner in the Entity 

Twinkle Vintrade LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 
Entity 

Daulat Vintrade LLP KMP is Designated Partner in the Entity 

Suncity Dealers LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 
Entity 

Silverlake Tradelinks LLP KMP is Designated Partner in the Entity 
Success Dealers LLP KMP is Designated Partner in the Entity 

Icon Commotrade LLP Relative of KMP is Designated Partner of 
Entity 

Skylight Vintrade LLP KMP is Designated Partner in the Entity 
Maruti Tie-Up LLP KMP is Designated Partner in the Entity 

Yashoyog Investments KMP is Partner in the Entity 
KVZ Enterprises KMP is Partner in the Entity 

Jitendra Kumar Goyal Managing Director 
 
Materiality Thresholds for Related Party Transactions: 
 



 
 

Nature of Transactions (per transaction per party) Value of Transactions (Rs) 
Purchase/ sale of securities from/ to related parties 2,50,00,000/- 
Granting of loan to each related party 2,50,00,000/- 
Availing of loan from related parties 2,50,00,000/- 
Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel 25,00,000/- 
Rent Paid 5,00,000/- 
Expenses incurred/ re-imbursed for availment/ 
providing of services 

10,00,000/- 

 
In the event the Company becomes aware of any RPT that has not been approved or ratified 
under this Policy, the transaction shall be placed as promptly as practical before the 
Committee or Board or the Shareholders as may be required in accordance with this Policy 
for review and ratification. 
 
The Committee or the Board or the Shareholders shall consider all relevant facts and 
circumstances respecting such transaction and shall evaluate all options available to the 
Company, including but not limited to ratification, revision, or termination of such 
transaction and the Company shall take such action as the Committee deems appropriate 
under the circumstances. 

 
Material terms and particulars of the proposed transaction:  
 
Material terms and conditions are based on the contracts which inter alia include the rates 
which are based on prevailing market price and commercial terms as on the date of entering 
into the contract. The particulars of the proposed transaction are mentioned above. 
 
If the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments 
made or given by the listed entity:  
 
Not applicable as the Company is Non-Banking Financial institution (NBFC) Company. 
Details of the source of funds in connection with the proposed transaction:  
 
Not Applicable 
 
Details of financial indebtedness Incurred:  
 
Not Applicable 
 
Applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, interest rate and repayment schedule, 
whether secured or unsecured; if secured, the nature of security:  
 
Not Applicable 
 
The purpose for which the funds will be utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of such funds 
pursuant to the related party transaction:  
 
Not Applicable 

 



 
 

Justification as to why the Related Party Transaction is in the interest of the listed entity:  
 
The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC), primarily engaged in the 
business of financing/investing, needs various corporate having presence in urban and 
semi-urban areas of India. Considering the nature of business and operations of the 
Company, transactions as mentioned above will help for meeting its business requirements 
and overall business performance of the Company. 
 
A copy of the valuation or other external party report, if any such report has been relied 
upon:  
 
Not Applicable 
 
Any other information:  
 
Nil 
 
The Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company have approved the Related 
Party Transactions at their meetings held on 2nd September, 2025 and have noted that such 
transactions may, in aggregate, cross the applicable materiality thresholds as mentioned 
above. 
 
Your Board of Directors considered the same and recommends passing of the resolution 
contained in Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice as a Special Resolution. 
 
Other than those mentioned above, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 
resolution. 
 
Item No. 6 
 
On recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board has proposed 
the appointment of Mrs. Meena Agarwal (DIN: 11276790) as the Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company at the meeting held on 2nd September, 2025 for a 
period of five consecutive years w.e.f. 2nd September, 2025.  
 
The Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act 
proposing the candidature for appointment of Mrs. Meena Agarwal (DIN: 11276790), for the 
office of Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company.  
 
The terms and conditions of appointment of Mrs. Meena Agarwal (DIN: 11276790), shall be 
open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal 
business hours on any working day, excluding Saturday. 
 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective 
relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution of item no. 4. 
 



 
 

Brief profile of Mrs. Meena Agarwal (DIN: 11276790), nature of his expertise in functional 
areas and names of listed companies in which he holds directorship and 
membership/chairmanship of Board Committees, shareholding and relationships between 
directors as required under SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard – 2 
and other provisions of applicable laws are annexed to the Notice. 
 
The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 6 for the approval of the 
Members of the Company 
 

For Scintilla Commercial & Credit Limited 
 
 

Sd/- 
        Priyanka Mohta 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Place: Kolkata 
Date: 02.09.2025 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
  



 
 

Attendance Slip 

(Please fill in attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting Hall.) 
 
I hereby record my presence at the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company being held 
on Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 3:00 pm (IST) at “B B D Bag Professional Association”, 
“Commerce House”, 2A Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No: 1, Kolkata-700013 
and at any adjournment thereof. 
 
DP-ID* 
No. of shares held 
 
 
 

Client ID* 

Member / Proxy Name 
(Please mention in block letters) 
 
 
 

Member / Proxy Signature 

 
* Applicable for Members holding Shares in electronic form. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS SECTION IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  



 
 

FORM NO MGT-11 - PROXY FORM 
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 

Name of the member(s)  
Registered Address  
E-mail id  
Registered Folio No.  
DP-ID  Client ID  

 
I/We, being the member(s) holding  equity shares of Scintilla Commercial & 
Credit Limited hereby appoint: 

Mr. _________________________  residing at _____________________________ having email-
id__________________________________ as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our 
behalf at the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on Friday, 
26th September, 2025 at 3:00 pm (IST) at “B B D Bag Professional Association”, “Commerce 
House”, 2A Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No: 1, Kolkata-700013 and any 
adjournment thereof, in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 

Item No Resolutions 

1. 
To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended 31st March 2025. 

2. 
To appoint a director in place of Mr. Jitendra Kumar Goyal (DIN: 00468744), 
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

3. 
To appoint M/s Surajit Roy & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five consecutive years. 

4. 
To appoint Anand Khandelia, Practising Company Secretary as the Secretarial 
Auditors of the Company for a period of five consecutive years. 

5. To approve existing as well as proposed material related party transactions. 

6. 
To appoint Mrs. Meena Agarwal, as Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company for a period of five consecutive years. 

 

Revenue 
Stamp of 
Re. 1/- 

Signature of Shareholder 
 
Signature of proxy holder(s) 
 
Date:  , 2025 

Notes: 

 The Proxy form duly completed must be deposited at the corporate office of the 
Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 



 
 

 This form of proxy will be valid only if it is duly complete in all respects, properly 
stamped and submitted as per the applicable law. Incomplete form or form which 
remains unstamped or inadequately stamped or form upon which the stamps have not 
been cancelled will be treated as invalid. 

 Undated proxy form will not be considered valid. 
 If Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy 

which is dated last will be considered valid; if they are not dated or bear the same date 
without specific mention of time, all such multiple proxies will be treated as invalid. 

 Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if 
he so wishes. When a member appoints a Proxy and both the member and Proxy attend 
the Meeting, the Proxy will stand automatically revoked. 

 In the case of joint-holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names 
of all the joint-holders should be stated. 

 This form of proxy shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in 
writing, or if the appointer is a body registered, be under its seal or be signed by an 
officer or an attorney duly authorized by it. 

 A proxy need not be a member of the Company and shall prove his identity at the time 
of attending the Meeting. 
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ANNEXURE I 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on 23rd September, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 25th 
September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for 
voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 19th September, 2025, may cast 
their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their 
share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 19th 
September, 2025 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to 
vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given 
below: 
Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services 
home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this 
will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services under Value added 
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.
jsp  

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser 
by typing the following URL: 



 
 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL 
Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the 
QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 
experience. 

 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, 
can login through their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 
without any further authentication. The users to login 
Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New 
System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi 
username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able 
to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where 
the evoting is in progress as per the information 
provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, 
the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting 
service provider for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 
providers’ website directly. 
 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at CDSL website 



 
 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System 
Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page 
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. 
from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com 
home page. The system will authenticate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded 
in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the 
evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to 
use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 
no. 1800 22 55 33 

  



 
 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 
i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 

below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email 
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 



 
 

the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 
your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send 

a request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 

on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and 
also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 

  



 
 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to anandkhandelia@gmail.com 
with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of 
Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / 
Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 
the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000  or send a request to Ms 
Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager  at evoting@nsdl.com  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories 
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to info@scintilla.co.in.  

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 
Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to info@scintilla.co.in. If you are an 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to 
refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned 
documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number 
and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
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